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FINANCIAL HICHLIGHTS

Proforma twelye '

in thousands, excep! per share data Fiscal year ended monthsended(2)
Al information audited unless otherwise noted June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004
{Unaudited)
Net sales $1.141.075 $1,127475 $ 954550 $ 920,538 $ 832003
Gross profit 466,118 461,319 404,072 411,364 349,200
Net income, as reported 19,901 37334 32754 37604 2528
Net income, as adjusted (unaudited) 18,1190 39,0789 342319 39,072 27,9220

Diluted earnings (loss) per share,
as reported 3 0.68 % 1.30 $ 10 $ 1.25 3 (188

Diluted earmings per share,
as adjusted (unaudited) 1310 .36 1156 130 1010

*Diluted earnings per share,

as adjusted (unaudited) 1.44®) .50 .29 1.30%) 1019
Shareholders’ equity $ 336,601 $ 320927 $ 277.847 $ 259200 $ 202060
EBITDA, as reported® $ 73798 $ 98524 $ 89,608 $ 100,038 $ 51338
EBITDA, as adjusted® 103,798" 100,618 91,5394 102,194 93,7020
*EBITDA, as adjusted® 108,014%) 1053330 97,2919 t02,194(®) 93,7020

For additional detail and information, including a discussion of EBITDA, please refer to Part Il, kem 6. Selected Financial Data in cur Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is
included in this Annual Report.

{a) On June 2.2004, the Company's Board of Directors approved a fiscal year-end change from January 31 to June 30, The pro forma presentation reflects the unaudited
consolidated selected financial data for the equivalent prior-year period based on the new fiscal year end, consistent with the presentation on our corporate website at
www.elizabetharden.com.

{b) Adjusted to exclude expenses related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement, including product discontinuation charges, of $27.0 milion and restructuring charges
of $3.0 million,

{c) Adusted to exclude restructuring charges of $2.1 millien.

(d) Adjusted 1o exclude debt extinguishrnent charges associated with long-term debt redemption and restructuring charges of $0.8 million ang $1.2 million, respectively.

(e} Adjusted to exclude impairment charge related te the szle of the Miami Lakes facifity of $2.2 million.

() Adjusted to exclude debt extinguishment charges associated with long-term debt redemption and restructuring charges of $38.8 million and $3.5 million, respectively,
and the accelerated accretion on converted preferred stock.

(g} EBITDA (unaudited) is defined as net income plus the provisicn for income taxes, plus interest expense, plus depreciation and amortization.

+ Adjusted to exclude share-based payment expenses resulting from the appiication of SFAS | 23R, which was adopted on July |, 2005 for the year ended June 30,
2006 and subsequent periods, of $4.2 million, $4.7 million and $5.8 million for the years ended June 3C. 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. This information is being
presented for comparisan purposes.

NET SALES FISCAL 2008 NET SALES®
in rnillions By Reportable Segment
in mitlions
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Twelve months ended @ (1) Excludes $3.2 million of unallocated
sales allowances related to the
Liz Claiborne license agreement,
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e accomplished a great

deal in fiscal 2008, making
significant progress towards
many of our key corporate
initiatives. We accelerated

. our extended supply chain
and business processes re-engineering initiative,
entered into an exclusive global licensing agreement ior
the Liz Claiborne fragrance portfolio, increased sales
of Elizabeth Arden-branded products and expanded
our penetration in fast-growing beauty markets.

We were pleased to be able to advance our goals in
fiscal 2008 despite operating in a difficutt economic
environment in the US. and certain European markets.

As we begin fiscal 2009, we believe that we are well
positioned for increased sales and profitability. Our
recent license for the Liz Claiborne fragrances adds
several strong and complementary fragrance brands
to our portfolio and provides the opportunity for
new brand launches associated with Claiborne
appare! brands. We are launching a number of new
brands in fall 2008 and spring 2009 to further expand
our fragrance business, including new fragrances
under our licenses for Juicy Couture, Rocawear, Usher,
Mariah Carey and Giorgio Beverly Hills, among others,
as well as a new Elizabeth Arden fragrance. Our fiscal
2009 product launch plans also include a number
of new Elizabeth Arden-branded skin care and color
products, including a new PREVAGE product and a
mineral-based foundation. Finally, we anticipate
savings in fiscal 2009 and 2010 from our global supply
chain and business processes re-engineering project.

DEAR
FELLOW
SHAREHOLDERS:

g

Elizabeth Arden — A Truly Global Beauty
Brand with a Strong Heritage

Nearly 100 years ago, Ms. Elizabeth Arden began
her skin care and cosrnetics business and launched
the iconic Elizabeth Arden brand. By the 1930,

it was said that there were only three American
names known in every corner of the globe: Singer
Sewing Machines, Coca-Cola and Elizabeth Arden.
By the time of her death in |96, the Elizabeth
Arden brand had achieved gross sales estimated

at $60 million per year Since that time, billions of
dollars in advertising and marketing support have
been spent on the Elizabeth Arden brand, and today,
Elizabeth Arden-branded products are sold in over
90 countries with estimated annual global retail sales
in excess of $1.0 billion. Recognition of the Elizabeth
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Arden brand name remains strong. In Europe’s
largest countries, Elizabeth Arden ranked 6ith among
global beauty brands for brand-aided awareness,
and in Asia, Elizabeth Arden ranked 5th overall and
ranked 4th among women 25 to 44 years old. &
Growth of the Elizabeth Arden skin care, color cos-
metics and fragrance business continues to outpace
worldwide sales growth for this combined category™

In fiscal 2008, global sales of Elizabeth Arden skin
care and color cosmetics products increased by 7%,
due in part to our strategic re-alignment and focus
on three core pillars: PREVAGE, Ceramide and the
third pillar, a market-specific mix of Intervene, Eight
Hour Cream and Elizabeth Arden White Glove, which

0 Based on a study conducted for Elizabeth Arden by GfK a global market research firm, in 2007.

(ii)Eummonitor - fragronce, color and skin core sales: 2004-2007.




allows us to maximize the strongest opportunities
in each market. PREVAGE, the ground-breaking cos-
meceutical product incorporating idebenone, one
of the most powerdul antioxidants on the market
today, is our premium anti-aging skin care line,
Ceramide includes both a skin care and color founda-
tion business, and intervene, our latest skin care and
color cosmetics line, targets a younger Elizabeth
Arden consumer. Each of the PREVAGE, Ceramide
and Intervene skin care franchises achieved double-
digit sales growth in fiscal 2008,
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We have aligned our color cosmetics business with
these key skin care franchises to drive customers 1o
the Elizabeth Arden brand. Focusing on these core
pillars allows us to concentrate our innovation and
investments in advertising, offers more consistent
price positioning on a global basis and addresses
the need for market diversity. During the last two
fiscal years, we have eliminated non-performing
items, improving the overall productivity of our
sales associates and expanding gross margins.

We have focused on expanding distribution in

key, high growth markets, such as Asia and Europe,
with market specific innovation. For example, sales
of Eight Hour Cream, a cult beauty product in Europe
for over 50 years, increased by 22% in international
markets in fiscal 2008, and we developed and
launched the Elizabeth Arden White Glove skin

care line specifically for the Asian markets. In fiscal
2009, we will be introducing Eight Hour Cream Sun
Defense for Face SPF 50 and new Intervene and
Elizabeth Arden White Glove products.

Launched just three years ago, PREVAGE is sold
in 55 countries and has garnered over 30 beauty
awards around the world, including in the United
Kingdom, Australia, Canada, South Africa, Travel
Retail, Switzerland and Spain. In fiscal 2008, we
expanded the PREVAGE franchise throughout
Europe and introduced PREVAGE Anti-aging Night
Cream. International sales of PREVAGE increased
by 14% in fiscal 2008. In fiscal 2009, we will be
launching the latest additions to the PREVAGE
franchise - PREVAGE Body Tota! Transforming Anti-
aging Moisturizer and PREVAGE WHITE, developed
specifically for the Asian markets. We also will
continue to expand distribution of PREVAGE

by introducing PREVAGE more broadly in Latin
America and further developing distribution

in China.

When introduced over |8 years ago, Ceramide
anti-aging capsules were the first single-application
skin care treatment. Since that initial product launch,
over 500 million Ceramide capsules have been sold
globally, and the franchise has won over 30 awards.
We have expanded the Ceramide franchise greatly,
growing sales by 30% over the past two years,
driven largely by new product innovations. In fiscal
2008, we launched Ceramide Gold Ultra Restorative
Capsules, and we will be introducing a new Ceramide
Gold eye product in fiscal 2009.

oy gz

" 3 I! "] \:

I Cooo
= [=lij=]]

T o nu \’

1a o doay




Roepori

Aaonual

o0
[=]o]m]a]

<+

Arden

i1 Il (L | [I

iz

In fiscal 2008,
6 1% of the sales
of Elizabeth
Arden-branded
products were

in international

markets.
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The classic brands of the Elizabeth Arden fragrance
portlolio, Red Door, Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue

and Elizabeth Arden green tea, comprise 67% of
Elizabeth Arden-branded fragrance sales and con-
tinue to mainiain a loyal following around the world,
In South Adrica and New Zealand, for example, Red
Door remains the top selling prestige fragrance at
the largest retailers, and Efizabeth Arden green tea
enjoys a strong following throughout Asia. The strong
brand equity of these fragrances allows us to launch
new and exciting Elizabeth Arden fragrance brands,
such as Elizabeth Arden Mediterranean, which we
launched in fiscal 2006, and our newest Elizabeth
Arden fragrance, Pretty Elizabeth Arden, launching in
spring 2009.

We're very excited about Pretty Llizabeth Arden, which
will be the first iragrance launch in the Elizabeth Arden
portfolio in over two years. We believe it will have
a positive impact on sales for the second half of fiscal
2009, particularly for our international business, and
should help drive the overall performance of the
Elizabeth Arden brand during fiscal 2009,

*SRI International: Global Spa Econormny 2007,

No discussion of the heritage of the Elizabeth Arden
brand would be complete without mentioning the
famous Red Door Spas. We currently license the
Red Door name to an unrelated third party who
operates the Red Door Spas. The spa industry is
estimated at approxamately $47 billion* We believe
there exists tremendous opportunity to exploit the
Red Door Spas as a global channel of distribution
for the Elizabeth Arden brand and. to that end, are
exploring a number of inttiatives for the Red Door
Spas. One of the greatest symbols of the Elizabeth
Arden brand is the landmark Red Door Spa and
Elizabeth Arden global flagship store, located at 691
5th Avenue in New York. In December 2007, we
proudly unveiled the newly-renovated Elizabeth Arden
global flagship store that we now operate and which
features the best of our products,
m ., ' 0

This ribbon
cutting ceremony
with Catherine
Zeta-fones at
the re-opening

flagship store
created over

65 million media
impressions,

Global Footprint

As a truly global beauty company, we believe we are
well positioned to take advantage of a very exciting
time for the beauty industry. Our global footprint,
through our |9 international affiliates, covers 80%
of the world's beauty market. Our international
business segment, which represented 35% of our
net sales in fiscal 2008, continued to show strong
sales growth, with net sales increasing by 9% in fiscal
2008. Greater China, Travel Retall, other Asia Pacific
territories and our distributor markets, including
Latin America, Eastern Europe, the Middle East and
India, represented over 50% of our international busi-
ness segment sales in fiscal 2008. In total, net sales
in these markets grew by nearly 15% in fiscal 2008,
and we are pursuing strategies to further develop
these markets.




In Eastern Europe, for example, the sales responsibifity
for Poland and Hungary is now being managed by
our European team to more cohesively manage the
large European perfumery chains, and we are planning
to add resources to open other markets in Eastern
Europe. In Latin America, where the retail landscape
is less developed, we are exploring initiatives to
more fully develop our fragrance business in several
markets. While we currently operate in india with
the help of a distributor, sales growth is strong, and
we are considering additional resources to increase
our market penetration. In China, since opening our
affiliate in 2006. we have improved our ranking for
all beauty brands to 9th place in 2007 from |5th
place in 2005 and have had over a four-fold increase
in sales over the last two fiscal years.(i)

In Europe, we experienced strong sales momentum
through the first half of fiscal 2008, although this
slowed down in the latter part of the fiscal year

due to a weakening of the economy. Nevertheless,
Furope continues to be ore of the largest beauty
markets in the world, and we believe we are well
positioned to take a larger share of that market given
our sales and marketing infrastructure. With the
opening of an affiliate in France in fiscal 2008, we now
have sales offices in eight countries across Europe.

We also are particularly focused on acquisitions and
new brand licensing opportunities to fuel the growth
of our European fragrance business. In fiscal 2008,
we signed a license with the Halian designer Alberta
Ferretti for 2 fragrance targeted for the European
market, which we plan to launch in fiscal 2010.

O Beaute Research Paris, March 2008,
e yromonitor: 2007.

Other initiatives to grow our European fragrance
portfolio include expanding our GANT fragrance
franchise with the introduction of the new
fragrance GANT Silver and re-launching one of

our classic fragrances, Geoffrey Beene's Grey Flannel
in the fall of 2008. These initiatives complement
our offerings of other designer fragrance brands,
including the Badgley Mischka fragrance brand,
which we have licensed since June 2006, and the
Gilorgio Beverly Hills fragrance brands, which we
licensed from Procter & Gambile in Decemnber 2006,

In fiscal 2008, 50% of the sales of Britney Spear’s
fragrances were in international markets. According
to Guinness World Records, Britney Spears is the
most searched person on the internet.

Strongly Positioned North American
Fragrance Business

The global fragrance market is estimated at approxi-
mately $18 billion, with North America and Europe,
the two largest markets, representing 65% of global
retail sales.() We believe that given our unique
business model, there continues to be a tremendous
opportunity for us in the global fragrance market.

In North America, we have strong market share in
the fastest growing retailers of prestige {ragrances
and have a number of initiatives in place to further
expand the prestige fragrance category at those
retailers, which collectively encompass over 30,000
doors. Over the last |8 months, we have strength-
ered our category management and sales tearns

1o focus on our largest mass retail customers and
have been working with the managernent of those
retailers to more fully develop the fragrance category.
Specific initiatives include improved merchandising,
category management and sales analysis, better
placement of holiday items and improved visuals,
signage and displays.
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The biggest development with our fragrance
business in fiscal 2008 was our exclusive global
license of the Liz Claiborne fragrance portfalio,
which includes the fuicy Couture, Usher, Lucky
Brand and Liz Claiborne fragrance brands. fuicy
Couture is a top 10 women's fragrance in the
LS. When introduced in 2006, the Juicy Couture
fragrance was the #1 launch in the history of
Bloomingdale's and has ranked in the top 10 of
women's fragrance brands in U.S. department stores
since its launch.* With the addition of the iconic

*Source: NPD.

Curve brand, came the #1 fragrance in US. mass
retail for men, which complements our extensive
fragrance portfolio that already includes the #1
fragrance for women in US. mass retail, Elizabeth Tay-

lor's White Diomonds. We also added the Usher
men's and women's fragrances to our portfolio.
The Usher men's fragrance was launched in fall
2007 at L).S. department stores, achieving the

#1 spot among men's fragrance launches for

the fall season, and is currently ranked 5th overall
in S, department stores for men's fragrances.*

In addition to expanding our brand portfolio, the
Liz Claiborne license is strategically important for
us, allowing us to leverage our existing infrastructure
and double the size of our U.S. department store
fragrance business, while keeping our overhead
structure relatively flat. Prior to entening into the
license agreement, we were the distributor of the
Liz Claiborne fragrance brands to U.S. mass retailers.
As the licensee of these brands, we will now be
able to improve cur gross margins by converting
those sales from a distributor margin to that of

a brand licensee. We also believe that there is

a meaningful opportunity for us to grow and
develop these brands in international markets.




The juicy Couture apparel brand, for example, has
a presence in numerous countries where we also
have affiliate offices, including across Europe, Asia
and the Middle East, and we are working closely
with the juicy Couture apparel team to grow the
fragrance business as they expand their apparel
business. We also are optimistic that the Usher
and Curve brands will perform strongly in inter-
national markets, particularly in Europe.

THE NEW MEN'S
FRAGRANCE

As discussed above, we are very excited about

our new fragrance launches planned for fiscal 2009.
In tate 2007, we announced a beauty license with
Rocawear, the clothing label co-founded by hip-hop
mogul Shawn “Jay-Z" Carter: In addition to producing
ten #1 albums on The Billboard 200 and earning
26 Grammy award nominations, Jay-Z was instru-
mental in creating the hip hop movement, and the
Rocawear brand is at the center of this cutture.
Launched in 1999, Rocawear has expanded its
appeal beyond the U.S. and has become a global
fashion brand. Jay-Z's vision resonates strongly with
the young male consumer, which provides us with
a unique opportunity to build a leading men’s fra-
grance business. We believe we set the standard in
fragrance innovation and led the industry with the
innovative viral marketing campaign for the curious
Britney Spears fragrance. We believe the advertising
campaign for the fall 2008 launch of X Rocawear,
which has been met with great excitement by
retaiters, will prove to be equally groundbreaking.

(n August 2008, we launched Mariah Carey's
Luscious Pink, the follow-up scent ta M by Mariah,
which ranked #1 or #2 in celebrity fragrance
launches in virtually all international markets in
which it was launched in fiscal 2008. From the
Liz Claiborne fragrance portfolio, we are excited
by the September 2008 launch of a new juicy
Couture fragrance for women called Viva Lo Juicy,
and the fall 2008 launch of new Usher men's and
women’s limited edition fragrances. We also

will be intreducing a number of new fragrance
brands to North American mass retailers on behalf
of other beauty companies.

T 5>
WL DINONDS

g
Elizabeth Taylor's White Diamonds fragrance
became the most successful celebrity fragrance of
all time with more than $/1 biflion in retail sales.
(Since its launch in 1991.)
— Fortune Magazine, November 2005
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Corporate Initiatives to Improve Return
on Invested Capital

We have made significant progress this year towards
the re-engineering of qur extended supply chain,
logistics and transaction processing systems, which

we refer 1o as our Global Efficiency Re-engineering
project. This initiative involves several functions,
including account management, category manage-
ment, supply chain, sales and operations planning,
logistics and the migration to a shared services
model for our key transaction processes.

Seifridges-Oxford Street (London, England)

After implementing various successful pilot pro-
grams in these functional areas. we accelerated this
initiative earlier this year with the hiring of a senior
executive to lead our global supply chain and
attracted additional personnel with extensive supply
chain experience to our organization. Our Global
Efficiency Re-engineering project remains on track,
and we currently anticipate savings of approximately
$10 million to $12 million by the end of fiscal 2009
and additional savings of approximately $13 million
to $15 million by the end of fiscal 2010.

A significant component of our Glotal Efiiciency
Re-engineering project is the implemeniation of an
Oracle financial accounting and order processing sys-
tem. During fiscal 2007, we successfully imple-
mented the same Oracle solution in our Greater
China business. This provides us confidence that we
will be able to complete the global implementation
on schedule within the next 18 to 24 menths.

With this new transaction processing systern, we
expect to reduce, on a global basis, our general and
administrative overhead expenses, which should
help drive profitability and cash flows in fiscal 2010
and fiscal 2041,

Looking Ahead

While we expect the retaill environment to remain
difficult in fiscal 2009, we are confident that our
strategies will result in increased sales and earnings.
For this fiscal year, our priorities are focused on:

B Driving the Elizabeth Arden brand globally by
leveraging the brand's significant awareness
and our global infrastructure and by further
developing the brand's penetration in high
growth emerging markets;

@ Expanding our fragrance business, particularly
in the larger fragrance markets of Europe;

B Improving efficiencies in our extended supply
chain and logistics platform and transaction
processing systems, thereby increasing operating
margins and cash flow performance; and

B Successfully integrating the Liz Claiborne business
and growing that brand portfolio globally.

We are excited about our near and long-term
growth prospects and expect fiscal 2009 to be a
year of significant accomplishments for our company.

Thanks to our Stakeholders
and Employees

f would like to extend my sincere appreciation to
all of our employees and beauty advisors around
the world who work sc hard every day to make
Elizabeth Arden a success. Your dedication and
passion inspire all of us and are instrumental to
our company’s success and future prospects.

| also would like to thank our business partners
and shareholders for their continued support of
our company.

E Scott Beattie
Chairrman, President and Chief Executie Officer
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Elizabeih Arden, Inc. is a global prestige beauty products company with an exiensive portfolio
of prestige (ragrance, skin care and cosmetics brands. Elizabeth Arden branded products include the
Elizabeth Arden fragrances: Red Door, Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue, Elizabeth Arden Provecative
Woman, Elizabeth Arden green tea, and Elizabeth Arden Mediterranean; the Elizabeith Arden skin
care brands: Ceramide, Eight Hour Cream, Intervene and PREVAGE®; and the Elizabeth Arden
branded lipsiick, foundation and other color cosmetics products. Our prestige fragrance portfolio
includes the following celebrity, lifestyle and designer fragrances:

Celebrity Fragrances  Elizabeth Tavlor’s  White  Diamonds and  Passion,
curious Britney: Spears, fantasy Britney Spears and
Britney Spears  believe, with  Love...Hilury  Duff,
Danielle by Danielle Steel, M by Mariah Carey, Usher

Lifestyle Fragrances  Curoe, Giorgio Beverly Hills, Lucky, PS Fine Cologne for
Men, Design and White Shonlders

Designer Fragrances  Juicy Cowture, Badgley Mischka, Rocawear, Alberta

Ferretti, Alfred Sung, Nannetie Lepore, Geoffrey Beene,
Halston, Bely Mackie, and GANT

a0 In addition v our owned and licensed fragrance brands, we disuibute over 400 additional
oo v ‘

il prestige fragrance brands, primarily in the United States, through distribution agrecients and other
19 purchasing arrangements.

We sell our prestige beauty producis to retailers and other oudlets in the United Siates and
internationally, including:

s U.S. department stores such as Macy's, Dillard’s, Belk, JCPenney, Saks, Bloomingdales and
Nordstrost

o U.S. mass retailers such as Wal-Mart, Target, Sears, Kohl’s, Walgreens, Rite-Aid and CVS;
and

¢ lmcrnational retailers such as Boots, Debenhams, Sephora, Marionnaud, Hudson’s Bay,
Shoppers Drug Mart, Myer, Donglas and various travel retail outlets such as Nuance,
Heinemunn and World Duty Free.

In the United States, we seil our Elizabeth Arden skin care and cosmetics products primarily in
prestige department stores and our {ragrances in department stores and mass retailers. We also sell
our Elizabeth Arden fragrances, skin care and cosmetics products and other fragrance lines in
approximately 90 countries worldwide through perfumeries, boutiques, department siores and travel
reiail outlets, such as duty free shops and airport boutiques, and on the internet.

Our operations are organized into the following reportable segments:

s  North America Fragrance — Our North America Fragrance segment sells fragrances 1o
department stores, mass retailers and wholesalers in the United Srates, Canada and Puerto
Rico. This segmemnt also sells our Elizabeth Arden products in prestige department stores in
Canada and Puerto Rico. and to other selected retailers.

* International — Our International segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed
brands, including our Elizabeth Arden products, in approximately 90 countrics ouside of
North America through perfumeries, boutiques, deparunent stores and 1ravel retail outlets
worldwide.




¢ Other — The Other reportable segment sells our Elizabeth Arden products in prestige
department stores in the United States and dirough the Red Door beauty salons, which are
owned and operated by an unrelated third party.

Financial infortation relating to our reportable segments is included in Note 18 to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our ner sales (0 customers in the Unied Siates and in forcign countries (in U.S, dolars) and net
sales as a pereentage of consolidated vet sales for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2000,
are listed in the following chart:

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2016
{Amounts in mitlions) Sales % Sales % Sales %
United States .. .................. $ 6854 O60% § 7005 63% $5576.7  60%
Foreign ....... SRRSO 4357 40% 4210 37% 3719 0%
Total ..o S1141.1 100% $1,127.5 100% $954.6 100%

Our largest foreign countries in terms of net sales for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and
2000, are listed in the following chart:

Year Ended June 31},

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2000
United Kingdom ... 0o ool e .. BB5T 8715 5085
Australia . ... .. e e e 40.1 388 321
Canada ........ e 400 316 204
Spain ........ e e 281 239 23.0

The financial results of our international operations are subject 16 volatility because of foreign
currency exchange rate changes, inflation and changes in political and economic conditions in the
countries in which we operate. The value of international assets is also affected by fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. For information on the breakdown of our long-lived assets in the
United States and internationally and risks associated with our international operations, see Note 18
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Siateinents,

Our principal cxcentive offices are located at 2400 S.W. 145th Avenue, Miramar, Florida
33027, and our telephone number is (954) 364-6900. We maintain a website with the address
www.elizabetharden.com. We are not incliding information comuained on our website as part of, nor
incorporating it. by reference into, this Aunual Report on Form 10-K. We make available free of
charge through our website our Aunual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
and Current Reporis on Form 8-K, and amendments 1o these reports, as soon as reasonably
practicable afier we electronically file such material with or furnish such material 10 the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Information relating 10 corporate governance at Elizabeth Arden, luc., including our Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Principles, Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive and Finance
Officers, Code of Business Conduct and charters for the Audit Comuniuee, the Compensation
Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, is available on our website
under the section “Corporate Info — Investor Relarions — Corporate Governance.”™ We will provide
the foregoing information without charge upon written request to Secretary, Elizabeth Arden, [nc.,
2400 5. W. 145t Avenue, Miramar, L 33027,

Business Strategy

Our business sirategy is to increase net sales, operating margins and earnings by (a) growing
the sales of our existing brand portfolio, including the Elizabeth Arden brand, through new product




innovation and targeting additional demographics and geographic markets, (b) acquiring prestige
beauty brands through licensing opportunitics and acquisitions, {¢) expanding the prestige fragrance
category at mass retail customers in the US., and (d) implementing initiatives 10 immprove our cost
structire and working capital efficiencies.

We believe the Elizabeth Arden brand is one of the most widely recognized beauty brands in the
world, and we imend to continue 1o invest behind and grow this hrand on a global basis through
brand innovation and increased penetration in certain international markets. In fiscal 2009, we plan
to introduce a number of new Elizabeth Arden branded products, including {i) a new Elizabeth
Arden fragrance, (i) PREVAGE® Body (a product under the PREVAGE® franchise), (iii} a mineral-
hased foundation, and a number of other Elizabeth Arden branded skin care and color products. Tn
addition, during fiscal 2009 we plan to launch a new fragrance under our Rocarear fragrance
license, a new Juicy Couture fragrance and new fragrances under our Mariah Carev, Giorgio Beverly

Hills, Badgley Mischika, GANT and Usher licenses.

We coutinue 1o pursue business efficiencies throughout vur company. particularly in the supply
chain, logistics and information technology areas to improve our cash flow, operating margins and
profitability and 10 accommodate the anticipated growth of our business. In fiscal 2007, we
commmnenced a comprehensive review of our global business processes (o re-engineer our extended
supply chain, logistics and transaction processing svstems. We call this initiative our Global
Efficiency Re-engineering initiative. This initiative includes (i) improvements in the efficiency of our
supply chain and business processes, (ii) a migration 10 a shared services model to simplify
transaction processing by consolidating our global transaction processing functions, and (iii) the
implementation of an Oracle financial accouming and order processing system.

We continue 1o evalnate and invest in inarkets around the world that we believe have significant
opportunitics for growth of our products. For example, during the last three {iscal vears, we have
established sules alfiliates in France, the Middle East (Dubai) and Greater China, where previously
we had used distributors in those markets ro sell our producis. We are also focused on expanding
sales of our products in developing markets including Latin America, Eastern Europe and India.

Recent License Agreements and Acquisitions

Effective June 9, 2008, we became the exclusive, global licensee for the sale, manufacture,
distribution and marketing of the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands under a long-term agreement with
Liz Claiborne, Inc. and certain of its affiliates. The Liz Claiborne fragrance portfolio consists of the
Juicy Couture, Curve by Liz Claiborue, Lucky, Liz, Realities, Bora Bora and Mambo fragrances. In
connection with 1he Liz Claiborne license agreement we also assumed a license for the Usher
celebrity fragrances. We anticipate that the Liz Claiborne licensing arrangement will allow us 10
(i) increase our market share in our Nortlt America Fragrance segment, (it} gain efficiencies from a
larger fragrance business, particolurly by leveraging our supply chain, logistics and sales
organizations, (i) increase our gross margins by converting existing North America mass customer
sales from distribution margins to owned/licensed margins, and (iv) provide additional sales volume
for our International segment.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2000, we (i) entered into a license agreement
with Procter & Gamble for the license of the Giorgio Beverly Fills fragrance brand, (i) completed
the acquisition of certain assets comprising the {ragrance business of Sovereign Sales, LLC, a
distributor of prestige fragrances 1o mass vetail customers, allowing us to offer additional fragrance
brands 1o our mass retail customers, and (i) completed the acquisition of certain assets of Riviera
Concepis Ine.. including brand licenses for a number of fragrance brands, including Alfred Sung,
HUMMER™ , Badgley Mischka, Nanneue Lepore and Bob Mackic,




Products

Our net sales of producis and net sales of products as a percentage of consolidated net sales for
the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 20006, are listed in the following chart.

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
{Ameurnds in millions} Salexs % Sales % Sales Y
Fragrance . ... ... .. e e, 8 B454 4% S 8511 75% 3716.6 TH5%
SkinCare ... .. . 2176 19% 2006 18% 169.0  18%
Cosmetics ... 78.1 7% B8 7% 6.0 7%
Towal oo o e S1.141.1 100% S$1.127.5 100% $954.6 100%

Fragrance.  We offer a wide varietv of fragrance producis for both men and women, including
perfume, cologne, eau de 1oiletie, can de parfum. hody sprav and gift sers. Our fragrances are
classificd into the Llizabeth Arden branded fragrances, celebrity branded fragrances, designer
branded fragrances, and lifestvle fragrances. Eacl fragrance is sold in a variety of sizes and
packaging assornments. In addition, we sell bath and body products thar are based on the particular
fragrance, such as soaps, deodorants, body lotions, gels, creams and dusting powder, to complement
the fragrance lines. We sell {ragrance products worldwide, primarily 10 depariment stores, mass
retailers, wholesalers, perfumerics, boutiques and rravel retail owlets. We railor the size and
packaging of the fragrance 1o suit the particular arget customer.

g

Skin Care. Our skin care lines are sold under the Elizabeth Arden name and include products
such as moisturizers, creams, lotions and cleansers. Our core Elizabeth Arden branded producis
include Ceramide, PREVAGE®, ight Hour Cream, and Intervene. Our Ceramide skin care line
targets women who are 40 and over, fnfervene is our pre-cmptive anti-aging skin care line, targeted
to the 25 10 39 vear old imerested in fighting (he signs of aging. PREFVAGE® is our preminm
cosimecentical skin care line. We scll skin care products worldwide, primarily in prestige departient
and specialiv stores, perfumeries and ravel retail outlets.

Cosmetics. Under the Elizabeth Arden name, we offer a variety of cosmetics, including
fonndadions, lipsticks, mascaras, eve shadows and powders. We offer these products in a wide array
of shades and colors. Our strategy is 10 align our color offerings with our core skin care products. We
nse our cosietic products o atiract consumers 10 the beawy counters au depariment stores where
the Elizabeth Arden fragrance and skin care products are also sold. We sell our cosmetics
internationally and in the United States, pritarily in prestige and specialty stores, perfumeries and
travel retail ontlers,

Trademarks, Licenses and Palents

We own or have rights to use the trademarks necessary for the manufacturing, marketing,
distribution and sale of numerous fragrance, cosmetic amd skin care brands, including Elizabeth
Arvden’s Red Door, Red Door Recealed, Elizabeth Arden 3th Avenue, Flizabeth Arden Provocative
Woman, Llizabeth Arden Mediterranean, Plump Perfect, Intercene, Millenniwim, White Shoulders,
Halston, Z-14, PS Fine Cologne for Men, Design and Wings. These vademarks are registored or have
pending applications in the United States and in cerain of 1he countries in which we sell these
product lines. We consider the protection of our trademarks (o he important 1o our business.

We are the exclusive worldwide irademark licensee for a number of fragrance brands including:
* ihe Elizabeth Tavlor fragrances Wiite Diamonds and Elizabeth Taylor’s Passion;
¢ the Liz Claiborne fragrances Curee, Realities, Lucky, Momho and Bora Bore;

* the liicy Couture lragrances Juicy Couture, Dirty English and Viea fa Juicy;




*  the Mariah Carey fragrance M by Mariah Carey:
*  the Usher fragrances;

e the Alfred Sung fragrances SUNG Alfred Sung, SHI Alfred Sung and JEWEL Alfred Sung;
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* the designer fragrance brands of Badgley Mischka, Alberta Ferrewdi, Rocawear, Nanctie
Lepore, Bob Mackie, Geoffrey Beene and Halston:

e the Brimey Spears fragrances curious Britney Spears, fantasy Britney Spears and Britney
Spears belicve;

* the Hilary Dulfl fragrance with Love... Hitary: Duff:

*  the Danielle Steel fragrance Danielle by Danielle Steel; and

the Giorgio fragrances Giorgio Beverly Hills and Giorgio Red.

We are the exclusive worldwide licenses for the PREVAGE® skin care line for retail owlets, The
Elizabeth Tavlor license agreement terminates in October 2022 and is renewable by us, at our sole
option, for unlimited 20-year periods. The Britney Spears license terminates in December 2009 and
is renewable by us, at our sole option, for a five-vear term. The PREVACE® license terminates in
December 2010 and is renewable by us for unlimited five-vear terms if’ certain sales argets are
achieved. The license agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc. and its affiliaies relating o the Liz
Claiborne and Juicy Couure fragrances terminates in December 2017, and is renewable by us for
two additional five-vear terms, provided specified conditions are met. The other license agreements
have terms ranging from 2009 (o 2045 and beyond, and, typically, have renewal 1erms dependent
on sales targets being achieved.

We also have the right under various exclusive distributor and license agreements and
Hrrangenents (o distribute  other fragram:t:s in various territories and to use the l‘cgislcrccl
trademarks of third parties in conncetion with the sale of these products.

Certain of our skin care and cosmetic products and the PREVAGE® skin care line incorporate
patented or patent-pending formulations. In addition, several of our packaging methods, packages,
components and products are covered by design patents, patent applications and copyrights.
Substantially all of our trademarks and all of our patents are held by us or by one of our wholly-
owned United States subsidiaries.

Sales and Disiribution

We sell our prestige beauty products to retailers in the United States, including department
stores such as Macy’s, Dillard’s, Saks, JCPennev, Belk, Bloomingdales and Nordstrom: specialty
stores such as Ulta and Sephora and mass retailers such as Wal-Mari, Targer, Scars, Koll's,
Walgreens. Rite-Aid and CVS; and o international rerailers such as Boots, Debenhams, Sephora,
Marionnaud, Hudson’s Bav, Shoppers Drug Mart, Myer, Douglas and various travel retail outlets
such as Nuance, Heinemann and World Duty Free. We also sell preducts to independent fragrance,
cosmetic, gift and other stores and through our e-commerce site at www elizabetharden.com. We
currently sell our skin carc and cosmetics products in North America primarily in prestige
department and specialty stores. We also sell our fragrances, skin care and cosmetic products in
approximately 90 other countries worldwide through department stores, perfumerics, pharmacies,
specialiy retailers, and other retail shops and “duwy free” and travel retail locations. In certain
countries, we maintain a dedicated sales force that solicits orders and provides customer service. In
other countries and jurisdictions, we sell our products through local distribuiors under contractual
arrangements. We manage our operations outside of North America from our offices in Geneva,
Switzertand.

We also sell our Elizabeth Arvden products in the Elizabeth Arden 5t Avenue store in New York,
which we operate, and in Red Door beauty salons, which are owned and operated by an unrelated




third party. In addition to the sales price of our products sold to the operator of these salons, we
receive a licensing fee based on the net sales from each of the salons for the use of the “Elizabeth
Arden” or “Red Door™ rrademarks.

Our sales and marketing support staff and personnel are organized by customer acconunt. Qur
sales force routinely visits retailers to assist in the merchandising, layout and stocking of selling
areas. In the U.S., we have a sales force for Elizabeth Arden branded products that are sold in
prestige distribution. For many of our mass retailers in the United Srates and Canada, we sell basic
products in special packaging that deter theft and permit the products to be sold in open displays.
Our fulfillment capabilities enable us to reliably process, assemble and ship small orders on a timely
basis. We use this ability to assist our customers in their rerail distribution through “drop shipping”
directly to their stores and by fulfilling their sales of beauty products over the Internet.

As is customary in the beauty industry, we do not generally have long-term or exclusive
contracts with any of our retail customers. Sales to customers are generally made pursuant to
purchase orders. We believe that our continning relationships with our customers are based upon
our ability to provide a wide selection and reliable source of prestige beauty products, our expertise
in marketing and new product inrroduction, and our ability to provide value-added services,
icluding our category management services, to U.S. mass retatlers.

Our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 39% of net sales for the vear ended
Lo} Py -

June 30, 2008. The only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales during that
seriod was Wal-Mart (including Sam’s Club), which accounted for approximately 15% of our
I £ : )
cousolidared net sales and approximately 25% of our North America Fragrance scgment net sales.
The loss of or a significant adverse change in our relationship with any of our largest customers
could have a marerial adverse effect -on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

The industry practice for businesses that market beauty products has been to grant ceriain
retailers, snbject to our authorization and approval, the right to either return merchandise or 10
receive a markdown allowance for certain products. We establish estimated return reserves and
markdown allowances at the time of sale based upon historical and projected experience, economic
trends and changes in customer demand. Our reserves and allowances are reviewed and updated as
needed during the vear, and additions o these reserves and allowances may be required. Additions
to our reserves and allowances mayv have a negative impact on our financial results. We have a
dedicated sales organization 1o sell returned products thar are saleable.

Marketing

Our marketing approach emphasizes a consistent global image for our brands, and cach of our
fragrance, skin care and cosmerics products is distinctively positioned with specific advertising
themes, logos and packaging tailored for that particular product. We uditize our spokesperson,
Catherine Zeta-Jones, to contemporize the Elizabeth Arden brand globally, and our classic Red Door
svinbol to reinforce the Elizabeth Arden braund heritage. We use traditional print, television and
radio advertising, and point-of-sale merchandising, including displays and sampling, as well as less
traditional methads, such as the internet, mobile phones and instant messaging. We work with third
party advertising agencies to assist us in our worldwide media planning. which includes developing
the media strategy for our brands and assisiing us in developing the marketing campaigns for many
of our products. We believe these agencies have the expertise to help us effectively market our
products.

During the last three fiscal vears, we have focused our Elizabeth Arden skin care and color
costetics innovation on our three core skin care franchises: Ceramide, PREVAGE®, and Intercene.
By aligning our cosmetic product offerings with these franchises, we have simplified our product
offerings, reduced excess stock-keeping units (SKUs) and, we believe, more effectively leveraged our
advertising and marketing expenditures.




New product introduction is an important element: in attracting consumers to our brands and in
creating brand excitement with our retail customers. Our marketing personnel work closely with our
retatl customers to develop new products and promotions and exrensions of our well-cstablished
brands. Our efforts are primarily focused on the identfication of consumer needs and shifts in
consumer preferences in order to develop new fragrance, skin care and cosmetic products, develop
line extensions and promotions, and redesign or reformulais existing products.

Our marketing cfforis also benefit from cooperative advertising programs with our retailers,
often linked with particular promotions. In our department store and perfumerie accounts we
periodically promote our brands with “gift with purchase™ and “purchase with purchase™ programs.
At in-store counters, sales representutives offer personal demonstrations to market individual
products. We also engage in extensive sampling programs.

With many of our reiail customers, our marketing personnel often design model schematic
planograms for the customer’s fragrance department, identify trends in consumer preferences and
adapt the product assortment to these trends, conduct training programs for the customer’s sales
personnel and manage in-store “special events.” Our marketing personnel also work 10 design gift
sets tailored to the customer’s needs. For certain cnstomers, we provide comprehensive sales analysis
and active management of the prestige fragrance category. We believe these services distinguish us
from our competitors and contribute to customer lovalty.

Seasonalily

Our operations have historically been seasonal, with higher sales occurring in the first haif of
our fiscal vear as a result of increased demand by rerailers in anticipation of and during the holiday
seasonl. For the year ended June 30, 2008, approximately 61% of our net sales were made during the
first hall of our fiscal vear. Due to product imnovations and new product launches, the size and
timing of certain orders from our customers, and additions or losses of brand distribution rights,
sales, results of operations, working capital requirements and cash flows can vary significamly
between quarters of the sume and different vears. As a resuli, we expeetr (o experience variability in
net sales, operating margin, net income, working capital requirements and cash flows on a quarterly
basis. Increased sales of skin care and cosmetic products relative to fragrances may reduce the
seasonality of our business.

Manufaciuring, Supply Chain and Logistics

We use third-party contract manufacturers in the United States and Europe to obtain
substandally all of our raw materials, components and packaging products and to manufacture
finished products relating to onr owned and licensed brands. Our fragrance and skin care products
are primarily manufactured by Cosmetic Essence, Ine., an unrelated third party, in plants located in
New Jersev and Roanoke, Virginia, under a manufacturing agreement that expires on January 31,
2010, Pricing is based on fixed costs per item. Third parties in Europe manufacture certain of our
fragrance and cosmetic products. We also have a small manufacturing facility in South Africa
primarily to manufacture local requirements of our products.

Except for the Cosmetic Essence, Inc. manufacturing agreement, as is custemary in our
industry, we generally do not have long-term or exclusive agreements with contract manufacturers
of our owned and licensed brands or with fragrance manufacturers or suppliers of our distribured
brands. We geuerally make purchases through purchase orders. We belicve that we have good
relationships with manufacturers of our owned and licensed brands and that there are alternative
sources should onc or more of these manufacturers become unavailable, We receive our distributed
brands in finished goods form directly from fragrance manufacturers, as well as from other sources.
Our ten largest fragrance manufacturers or suppliers of brands that are distributed by us on a
non-exclusive basis accounted for approximately 33% of our cost of sales for the vear ended
June 30, 2008. The loss of, or a significant adverse change in our relationship with, any of our key




fragrance manufaciurers for our owned and licensed bramds, such as Cosmetic Essence, Inc., or
suppliers of our distributed fragrance brands could have a material adverse effect on our business,
prospects, results ol operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Our fulfillnent operations for the United States and certain other areas of the world are
conducted out of a leased distribution facility in Rounoke, Virginin. The 400,000 square-foot
Roanoke facility accommodates our disiribution activitics and houses a large portion of our
inventory. Our fullillment operations for Europe are conducted under a logistics services agreement
by CEPL, an unrelated third party, at CEPL’s facility in Beville, France. The CEPL agreemem
expired in June 2008, and we are negotiating an extension of this logistics services agreement
through June 2013, While we insure our inventory and the Roanoke fucility, the loss of either of
these distribution facilities, as well as the inventory stored in those facilitics, would require s 10 find
replacement factlities and inventory and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
prospects, results of operations, financial conulition or cash flows,

Covernment Regulation

We and our products are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration and the
Federal Trade Comnnission in the United States, as well as by vartous other federal, stae, local and
international regulatory authorities in the countries in which our products are produced or sold.
Such regulations principally relae w0 the ingredients, manufacturing, labeling, packaging and
marketing of our products. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with such regulations,
as well as with applicable federal, state, local and international and other countries” rules and
regulations governing the discharge of materials hazardous to the enviconment,

Management Information Systems

Jur primary information techiology svstems discussed below provide a complete portfolio of
Our primary information technology svsiens discussed belo le a complete pordolio of
business systems, business intelligence systems, and information technology infrastracrure services
to support our global operations:

*  Logistics and supply chain systems, including purchasing, materials  managemen,
manufacturing, inventory management, order management, customer service, pricing,
demand planning, warchouse management and shipping;

*  Financial and adminisirative svsiems, including general ledger, pavables, receivables,

[)GI‘SOH]](!L‘ [Nl\’l‘(]“._ tax, treasury ('llll] HERIH] IIllel{lgl:llH}IH;

¢ Electronic data interchange svstems 1o enable electronic exchange of order, status, invoice,
and financial information with our customers, financial service providers and our pariners
within the extended supply chain;

*  Business intelligence and business analysis svstemns 10 enable munagement’s informational

needs as thev conduct business operations and perforin business decision making: and

* Informaion technology infrasiruciure services (o enable seamless integration of our global
business operadons  through  Wide Area Networks (WAN), personal  computing

o}
technologics,  electronic mail, and  service agreements with  outsourced  computing
operations.

These management information svstems and infrastructure provide on-line business process
support for our global business operations. Further, many of these capabilities have heen extended
into the operations of our U.S. customers and third party service providers (o enhance these
arrangements, with examples such as vendor managed inventory, third party distribution, third
party manufacturing, inventory replenislunent, customer billing, rewil sales analysis, product
availability, pricing information and transportation management.




In connection with our Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative, we are implementing an
Oracle financial accounting and order processing system to improve key transaction processes and
accommodate anticipated growth of our business. We expect this infrastructure investment to
simplify onr transaction processing by utilizing a common platform to centralize all of our global
transaction processing functions.

We have back-up facilities 10 enhance the reliability of owr management inforination systems,
These facilities are designed to continue to operate if our main facilities should fail. We also have a
disaster recovery plan, which is tested periodically, to protect our business operations and customer
information. We also have business interruption insurance to cover a portion of any disruption in
our management information systems resulting from certain hazards.

Competition

The beauty industry is highly competitive and, at times, subject to rapidly changing consumer
preferences and industry trends. Competition is generally a function of brand swrength, assorunent
and continuity of merchandise selection, reliable order fulfillinent and delivery, and level of brand
support and iu-store customer support. We compete with a large number of manufacturers and
marketers of beauty products, some of which have substantally mnore resonrees than we do.

We believe that we compete primarily on the basis of brand recognition, quality, product
efficacy, price, and onr emphasis on providing value-added customer services, including category
management. services, to certain retailers, There are products that are better-known and more
popular than the products manufactured or supplied by us. Many of our competitors are
substantially larger and wore diversified, and have substantially greater financial and marketing
resources than we do, us well as greater name recoguition and the ability to develop and marker
products similar to and competitive with those manufactured by us.

Employees

As of September 5, 2008, we had approximately 2,125 full-time emplovees and approximately
400 part-time emplovees in the United States and 17 foreign countries. None of our emplovees are
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relationship with our emplovees is
satisfactory.

ixecutive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth the names and ages of each of our executive officers as of September 5,
2008 and the positions they hold:

Name Age  Position with the Company

E. Scott Beatie .. ....... ... 49 Chairinan, President and Chief Exccutive Officer

Stephen [. Smith ........ .. 48  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

L. Hoy Heise ... .. e 62 Executive Vice President and Chief [uformation Officer

Michael H. Lombardi .. .. ... 065 Executive Vice President, Package Design and [nnovation

Oscar E. Marina ........... 49 Executive Vice Presidem., General Counsel and Secretary

Elizabeth Park .. .. .. e 4> Executive Vice President, Skin Care & Color Marketing and
Ceneral Manager — Arden U.5.

Ronald L. Rolleston . ... .... 52 LExecuiive Vice President, Global Fragrance Marketing

Joel B. Roukin .. ... R 40 Executive Vice President, General Manager — North America
Fragrances

Jacobus A. ). Steffens . ... ... 47 Executive Vice President, General Manager — International

Each of our executive officers holds office for such term as mav be determined by our board of
directors. Set forth below is a brief description of the business experience of each of our executive
officers.



E. Scott Bealtie has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since April 2000, as our
President. and Chief Executive Officer since Angust 20006, as our Chief Executive Officer since March
1998 and as a member of our Board of Directors since January 1995, Mr. Beattic also served as our
President from April 1997 to March 2003, as our Chicl Operating Officer from April 1997 to March
1998, and as our Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Assistant Secretary [rom November
1995 to April 1997. Mr. Beautie is a director of Object Video, Inc., an information technology
company. Mr. Beaute is also a director and a member of the Executive Committee of The Personal
Care Products Council and a member of the advisory hoard of the Ivey Business School,

Stephen J. Smith has served as our Exccutive Vice President and Chief Finaneial Officer since
May 2001. Previously, Mr. Smith was with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an international
proflessional services firm, as partner from October 1993 until May 2001, and as manager fromn July

1987 until October 1993,

L. Hoy Heise has served as our Executive Viee President and Chief Informarion Officer since
November 2007, as our Executive Vice President, Chiel Information Officer and Operations
Planning from March 2006 to November 2007, and as our Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer from May 2004 to February 2006. From February 2003 to April 2004,
Mr. IHeise was the founder and principal of his own technology consulting firm. From June 1999
until May 2001, Mr. Heise was Senior Vice President of Gartner, an information technology research
firm. Prior to that time, Mr. Heise worked in various management and consulting capacities for
Renaissance Worldwide, a global provider of business process improvement and information
technology consulting services.

Michael H. Lombardi has served as our Executive Vice President, Package Design and
Innovation since November 2007, as our Executive Vice President, Operations from April 2004 1o
Ocrober 2007, as our Senior Vice President, Operations from January 2001 10 March 2004, and as
Senior Vice President, Marketing/Supply Chain Operations with the Elizabeth Arden Company, a
division of Unilever N.V., from April 1999 to January 2001. Prior 10 joining the Elizabeth Arden
Cowmpany, Mr. Lombardi worked in various management capacities for Chescbrough Ponds, Ine.

Oscar E. Marina has served as our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
since April 2004, as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary from March 2000 1o
March 2004, and as our Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary from March 1996 to March
2000. From October 1988 to March 1996, Mr. Marina was an attiorney with the law firm of Steel
Hector & Davis L.L.P. in Miami, becoming « partuer of the firm in January 1995.

Elizabeth Park has served as our Executive Vice President, Skin Care & Color Marketing and
Ceneral Manager — Arden U.S., since April 2006 and as our Senior Vice Presidens, Clobal
Marketing from May 2005 to March 2006. Prior to joining our company, Ms. Park was Senior Vice
President Marketing U.S.A. for Lancéme, a division of L’Oreal Products from March 2003 1o March
2005. From July 1995 to July 2002, Ms. Park held several marketing management positions with
The Estee Lauder Companies.

Ronald L. Relleston has served as our Executive Vice President, Global Fragrance Marketing
since April 2006, as our Exccutive Vice President, Global Marketing from April 2003 10 March
2000, as our Executive Vice President, Clobal Marketing and Prestige Sales from April 2002 to
April 2003, as our Senior Vice President, Global Marketing from October 2001 to January 2002,
and as our Senior Vice President, Prestige Sales from March 1999 to January 2001. Mr. Rolleston
served as President of Paul Sebastian, Inc., a fragrance manufacturer, from September 1997 to
January 1999, Mr. Rolleston served as Executive Vice President of Global Markeling of the
Elizabeth Arden Company from January 1995 to March 1997 and as the General Manager of
Europe for the Calvin Klein Cosmetics Company from May 1990 o September 1994,
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Joel B. Ronkin has served as our Exceative Viee President, General Manager — North America
Fragrances since July 20006, as our Excentive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer from
April 2004 10 June 2006, as our Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer from
February 2001 through March 2004, and as our Vice President, Associats Gencral Counsel and
Assistant Secretary from March 1999 through January 2001, From June 1997 through March 1999,
Mr. Ronkin served as the Vice President, Secretary and Ceneral Counsel of l\.lll(_)lhl' Auo Finance
Company, Inc., an automobile finance company. From May 1992 (0 June 1997, Mr. Ronkin was an
attorney with the law firm of Steel Hector & Davis L.L.P. in Miami, Florida.

Jacobus A, J. Steffens has served as our Execcutive Vice Prosident, General Manager —
[nternarional since March 2004 and as our Senior Vice President, General Manager — International
from January 2001 through February 2004. Before joining the company, Mr. Steffens worked in
aarious management capacities for divisions of Unilever N.V._ including as the Chief Information
Officer of Unilever’s European Ice Cream & Frozen Foods division from January 1997 to December
2000, as the Controller Clobal Marketing & Creative at the Elizabeth Arden Company from January
1992 to December 1995 and in various financial roles for Unilever’s Quest lnternational Flavours
and Fragrances division from the end of 1986 (o December 1991,

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

The risk factors in this section describe the major risks to our business, prospects, resulis of
operations, financial condition or cash flows, and should be considered care fullv Lir addition, these
factors constitute our ¢ umundrv staternents under the Private Securities Lm"mun Reform f\bl ol
1995 and could canse our actual results 1o differ mater ially from those I)mJHH,d in any forward-
looking statements (as defined in such act) made in this Annnal Report on Form 10- K. Investors
ahnuld not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statemenms. Any statements that are
not historical facts and that express, or involve discussions as to, expectations, beliels, plans,
objectives, assumptions or future events or pvrfm‘nlancv {ofien, 1'}lll‘ not alwayvs, through the use of
words or phraaes such as “will likely result,” “are expected 10, “will cominue,” ®is anticipared.”

“estmated,” “intends,” “plans,” “Delieves® and “projects”™) may be forward-looking and may
involve estimates and uncertainties which could cause acinal resulis to differ marerialiv from those
expressed in the forward-looking statenients.

Further, anv forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is
made. and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement 10 reflect events or
circumstances after the date on which such simement is made or to reflect the occurrence of
anticipated or nnanticipated events or circumstances. New factors emerge from time to tme, and it
is not possible for us 1o predict all of such factors. Further, we cannot assess the impact of cach such
factor on our results of operations or the extent to which any facior, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results o differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking staticments.

We do not have contracts with customers or suppliers of our distributed brands, so if we
cannet maintain and develop relationships with customers and suppliers our business,
prospects, resulis of operations, financial condition or cash flows may be materially
adversely affected.

We do not have long-terin or exclusive contracts with any of our customers and generally do nor
have long-term or exclusive contracts with our suppliers of distributed brands. Our ten largest
customers accounted for approximately 39% of our net sales in the vear ended June 30, 2008. Our
only customer who accounted for more than 10% of our ner sales in the vear ended .lum: 30, 2008
was Wal-Mart (including San’s Club), who, on a global basis, accounted for approximately 15% of
our consolidated net sales and approximately 25% of our North America Fragrance segment net
sales. In addition, our suppliers of distribuied brands, which represented approximately 33% of our
cost of sales for fiscal 2008, generally can, at any time, elect o supply products 10 our customers
directly or through another (ll::lrlhulor. Our suppliers of distribuwted brands may also choose 1o



reduce or eliminate the volume of their products distributed by us. The loss of any of our key
suppliers or customers, or a change in our relationship with any one of them, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condirion or cash flows.

We rely on third-party manufacturers and component suppliers for substantially all of our
owned and licensed products.

We do not own or operate any significant manufacturing facilities. We use third-party
manufacturers and component suppliers 1o manufacrure substantially all of our owned and licensed
products. We currently obrain these products from a limited number of manufacturers and orher
suppliers. Qur husiness, prospects, resulrs of operations, financial condition or cash flows could he
materially adversely affected il our manufacturers or component suppliers were to experience
problems with product quality or delays in the delivery of the finished products or the raw materials
or componens used to make such product.

The loss of or disruption in our distribution facilities may have a material adverse effect on
our business.

We currently have one distribution facility in the United Siates and use a third-party fulfillment
center i1 France primarily for Ewropean distribution. These facilities house a large portion of our
inventory. Any loss of or damage to these fucilities or the inventory stored in these facilities, could
adversely affect our business, prospects, resulis of operations, financial condirion or cash flows.

We may be adversely affected by factors affecting our customers’ husinesses.

Factors that adversely iimpact our customers’ businesses may also have an adverse effect on onr
business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. These lactors may
include:

* any credit risks associated with the financial condition of our customers;

¢ the cffect of conselidation or weakness in the retail industey, including the closure of
customer doors and the uncertainwy resulting therefrom: and

¢ invenrory reduction initiarives and other factors affecting customer buving patterns,
including any reduction in retail space commitment to fragrances and cosmerics and
practices used to control inverory shrinkage.

We may be adversely affected by domestic and international economic conditions and other
events that impact consumer confidence and demand.

We believe that consumer spending on beauty products is influenced by general economic
conditions and the availability ol discretionary income. US. or international general economic
downturns, including periods of inflation or high gasoline prices or declining consumer conlidenee,
may affect consmmner purchasing patterns and result in reduced net sales to our customers. Sudden
disruptions in business conditions due o events such as terrorist attacks or natural disasrers may
have a short-term, or sometimes long-termn, adverse impact on consumer spending. 1n addition, any
reductions in travel or increases in restrictions on travelers’ ability to transport our products on
airplanes due to general econemic downturns, diseases, acts of war or terrorism could result in a
material decline in the net sales and profitability of our travel retail business.

The beauly industry is highly competitive and if we cannot effectively compele our business
and results of operations will suffer.
The beauty industry is highly competitive and can change rapidly due to consumer preferences

and industry trends. We compete primarily with global prestige beauty companies, some of whom
have greater resources than we have and brands with greater name recognition and consumer lovalty
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than our brands. Our products also compete with new products that often are accompanied by
substantial promotional campaigns. Qur suceess depends on our products® appeal to a broad range
of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to change, and
on our ability to develop new products through product innovations and product line extensions. We
mnay incur expenses in connection with product development, marketing and advertising that are not
subsequently supported by a sufficient level of sales, which could negatively affect our results of
operations. These competitive factors, as well as new product risks, could have an adverse effect on
our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Our business strategy depends upon our ability to acquire or license additional brands or
secure additional distribution arrangements and obtain the required financing for these
agreements and arrangements.

Our business strategy contemplates the continued growth of our portfolio of owned, licensed
and distributed brands. Our [uwure expansion through acquisitions, new product licenses or new
product distribution arrangements, if any, will depend upon our ability to identify suitable brands to
acquire, license or distribute and our ability to obtain the required financing for these acquisitions,
licenses or distribution arrangements, and thus depends on the capital resources and working capital
available (o us. We may not be able to identify, negotiate, finance or consummare such acquisitions,
licenses or arrangements, or the associated working capiral requirements, on terms acceptable 1o us,
or at all, which could hinder our ability to increase revenues and build our business.

The suecess of our business depends, in part, on the demand for celebrity beauty products.

We have license agreements to manufacture, market and distribute a number of celebrity
beauty products, mcludmﬂ those of Elizabeth Tavlor Britnev Spears, Hilary Duff, Danielle Steel,
Mariah Carey and Usher. lu fiscal 2008, we derived dpprozmlatelv 20% of our net sales from these
celebrity beduty products. The denmnd for these products is, to some extent, dependent on the
appeal to consumers of the particular celebrity and the celebrity’s repurarion. To the extent that the
celebrity fragrance category or a particular celebrity ceases to be appealing to consumers or a
celebrity’s reputation is adversely affected, sales of the related products and the value of the brands
can decrease materially. In addition, under certain circumstances lower net sales may shorten the
duration of the applicable license agreement.

We may not be able to successfully and cost-effectively integrate acquired businesses or new
brands.

Acquisitions entail numerous integration risks and impose costs on us that could materially and
adverselv affect our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows,
including:

» difficulties in assimilating acquired operation, products or brands, including disruptions to
our operations or the unavailability of key employees from acquired businesses;

* diversion of management’s attention from our core business;
¢ adverse effects on existing business relationships with supplicrs and customers;
¢ incurrence or asswnption of additional debt and liabilities; and

* incurrence of significant amortization cxpenses related to intangible assets and the potential
impairment of acquired assets.

Our husiness could be adversely affected if we are unable to successfully protect our
inteHectual property rights.

The market for our products depends to a significant extent upon the value associated with our
trademarks and trade names. We own, or have licenses or other rights o use, the material




trademark and trade name rights used in connection with the packaging, marketing and distribution
of our major owned and licensed products both in the U8, and in other countries where such
products are principally sold.

Although most of our brand names are registered in the U.S. and in cerain loreign counries in
which we operate, we may not bhe successful in asserting trademark or trade name protection. In
addition, the laws of certain foreign conntries may not protect our intellectual property rights 10 the
same extent. as the laws of the U.S. The costs required 1o protect our trademarks and trade names
may be subsiantial, We also cannot assure that the owners of the trademarks that we license can or
will successfully maintain their intelleciual property rights or that we will he able 10 comply with the
terms set forth in the applicable license agreememts, including among other things payvment of
minimum rovalties, minimum marketing expenses and maintenance of certain levels of sales.

If other parties infringe on our inteflectual property rights or the intellectnal property righis
that we license, the value of our brands in the marketplace may be diluted. In addition, any
infringement of our intellectual property rights would also likely result in a commitment of our time
and resources to protect these rights through litigation or otherwise. We may infringe on others’
intellecrual property rights. One or more adverse judgments with respect 1o these intellectual
property rights could negatively impact our ability 10 compete and could marterially adversely affect
our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows,

We are subject to risks relaled to vur international operations.

We operate on a global basis, with sales in approximately 90 coumries. Approximately 40% of
our fiscal 2008 net sales were generated outside of the United States. Our international operations
could be adversely affected hy:

¢ import and export license requirements;

¢ rade restricrions;

* changes in tariffs and raxes;

® restrictions on repatriating foreign profits back 10 the United Stares:
* changes in, or our unfamiliarity with, foreign laws and regulations;
¢ (difficulties in staffing and managing imernational operations; and

* changes in social, political, legal and other conditions.

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could adversely affect our results of operations and
cash flows.

OCur funciional currency is the U.S. dollar. Our results of operations, debi, interest expense and
a significant portion of our overhead expenses are reported in U.S. dollars. Approximately 40% of
our net sales for fiscal 2008 were from our international operations, with a substantial portion of
this amount denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, Owiside the United States, our
sales and costs are denominated in a variety of currencics including the Euro, British pound, Swiss
franc and Canadian and Australian dollar, A weakening of the foreign currencies in which we
generate sales relative 1o the currencies in which our cosis are denominated, which is primarily the
U.S. dollar, may adversely affect our ability to meet our obligations and could adversely affect our
results of operations and cash flows used to fund working capital,

Our quarterly results of operations fluctuate due to seasonality and other factors, and we
may not have sufficient liquidity to meet our seasonal working capital requirements,

We generate a significant portion of our net income in the first half of our fiscal vear as a result
of higher sales in anticipation of the holiday season. Similarly, our working capital needs are greater
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during the first half of the fiscal vear. We may experience variability in net sales and net income on
a guarterly basis as a result of a variety of laciors, including new product inmovations and launches,
the size and timing of customer orders and additions or losses of brand distribution rights. 1If we
were to experience a significant shortfall in sales or internally gencrated funds, we may not have
sufficient liquidity 1o fund our business.

Our level of debt and debt service obligations, and the restrictive covenants in our revolving
credit facility and our indenture for our 7% % senior subordinated notes, may reduce our
operaling and financial flexibility and could adversely affect our business and growth
prospects.

At June 30, 2008, we had total debt of approximately $344 million, including $225 million in
aggregate principal amount outstanding of our 7% senior subordinated notes and $119 willion
outstanding under our revolving bank credic facility, both of whicly have requirciments that may
limit our operating and financial flexibility. Our indebtedness conld adversely impact our business,
prospecis, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows by increasing our vulnerability 1o
gencral adverse economic and industry conditions and reswricting our ability 1o consummate
acquisitions or fund working capital. capital expenditures and other gencrul corporate requirements.

Specifically, our revolving credit facility and our indenwre for our 7%% senior subordinated
notes limit or otherwise affect our ability to. among other things:

* incur additional deby;

¢ pay dividends or make other restricied pavmenis;

* create or periit certain liens, other than customary and ordinary liens;

* sell assets other than in the ordinary course of vur business:

* invest in other entities or businesses: and

* consolidate or merge with or into other companies or sell all or substamially all of our
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assets,

These restrictions could limit our ability 1o finance our future operations or capital needs, make
acquisitions or pursuc available business opportunities. Our revolving credit facility also requires us
1o maintain specified amounts of borrowing capacity or maintain a debt service coverage ratio. Our
ability 10 mect these conditions and our ability to service our debt obligations will depend upon our
future operating performance, which can be affecied by gencral economic, financial, competitive,
legislative, regulatory, business and other factors bevond our control. If our acinal resulis deviate
significantly from our projections, we may not be able to service our debt or remain in compliance
with the conditions contained in our revolving credit facility, and we wonld not be allowed 10 borrow
under the revolving credit facility. If we were not able to borrow under our revolving credit facility,
we would be required 1o develop an alternative source of lignidity. We canmot assure vou that we
could obtain replacement financing on faverable terms or ac all.

A default under our revolving credit facility could also result in a default under our indenre
for our 7¥%% senior subordinated notes. Upon the oceurrence of an event of default under our
indenture, all mmounts outstanding under our othier indebtedness may be declared 1o be immediately
due and payable. If we were unable 10 repay amoums due on our secured debe, 1he lenders wonkd
have the right to proceed against the collateral granted to them o secure that debr.

Our success depends. in part, on the quality, efficacy and safety of our products.

Our success depends, in part, on the quality, efficacy and safety of our producis. If our products
are found to be defective or unsafe, or if they otherwise fail to meet our custmers’ standards, our
relationships with customers or consumners could suffer, the appeal of one or more of our brands




could be diminished, and we conld lose sales and/or hecome subject o liability claimns, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

Our success depends upon the retention and availability of key personnel and the succession
of senior management,

Our suceess largely depends on the performance of our management team and other key
gely de [ 5 A
personnel. Our future operations could be harmed if we are wnable 1o atract and retain talented,
highly qualificd senior exeentives and other kev personnel. [n addition, il we are unable o effeciively
ghiv g h : \
provide for the suceession of senior management, including our chief executive officer, our business,
prospects, resuelis of operations, financial condition or cash flows may e maerially adversely
affected,

Our business is subject 1o regulation in the United States and infernationalty,

The manufacturing, diswibution, formulation, packaging and advertising of our products and
those we distribute are subject 10 numerous federal, siate and {oreign governmental regulations,
Compliance with these regulations is difficule and expensive. If we [ail o adhere, or are alleged 10
have failed o adhere, 10 any applicable federal, state or foreign laws or regulations, our business,
prospects, results of operation, financial condition or cash flows may be adversely affecied. In
addition, our fwure results could be adversely affected by changes in applicable federal, stare and
foreign laws and regulations (including product lability, trade rules and customs regulations,
intellectual property, consumner laws, privacy laws and product regulation), as well as changes in
accounting standards and 1axation requirements (including tax-rae changes, new 1ax laws and
revised 1ax law interpretations).

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate as a result of a varicty of factors.

The marker price of our common stock could fluctuare signilicamily in response 10 various
faciors, many of which are bevond our control, including:

e voluility in the financial markets;
* actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly or annual financial results;

e announcetments or significant developments with respect. to beanty produets or the beauty
industry in general;

o veneral cconomic and political conditions; and

s covernmental policies and regulations.

We are subject 1o risks associated with implementing global information systems.

We have information svstems that support our business processes, including marketing, sales,
order processing, distribution, finance and intracompany communications throughout the world.
These svstems may be susceptible to outages due 1o fire, floods, tornadoes, hurricanes, power loss,
telecommunications failures, and similar events. Despite the implementation of network security
measures, our svstems may be vuluerable to computer viruses and similar disruptions from
unauthorized tampering. The occuwrrence of these or other events could disrupt or damage our
information systems and adversely affect our business and resulis of operations. In addition, we are
implementing an Oracle financial accounting and order processing svsiem, which will require a
substantial investment and dedication of management resources. Any failure 1o properly maintain or
upgrade our systems or 1o implement the Oracle financial accoumting and order processing svstem
on o timely and cost-effective basis may adversely affect our husiness prospects, results of
operatioms, linancial condition or cash flows.




ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

United States.  Our corporate headquaricers are located in Miramar, Florida, where we lease
approxinmately 35,000 square feet of general office space. The lease expires May 31, 2011, Our U.S.
fulfillinem operations are conducted in our Roanoke, Virginia distribution facility that consists of
approximately 400,000 square feet and is leased through September 2013, We also lease (i) a
76,000-square foor warchouse in Roanoke to coordinate returns processing that is leased through
December 2009 and, (i) a 132,000-square foor overflow warchouse in Roanoke that is leased
through July 2009. From time to time, we also lease additional temporary warchouse facilives to
handle inventory overflow. We lease 62,000 square feet of general office space for our supply chain,
information systems and finance operations in Stamford, Connecticur under a lease that expires
October 2011, We lease approximately 33,000 square feet of general offices primarily for our
marketing operations in New York City under a lease that expires in April 2016.

International, Our international operations are headquartered in leased offices in Geneva,
Switzerland. We are negouating an extension of this lease through December 2012, We also lease
sales offices in Australia, Ausiria, Canada, China, Denmark, Dubai, France, Germany, haly, Korea,
New Zealand, Puerto Rico, Singapore, South Africa, Spain, Taiwan, and the United Kingdom, and a
small distribution facitity in Puerto Rico. We own a small manufacuiring and distribution facility in
South Africa primarily to nmanufacture and distribute local requireinents of our products.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In October 2005, we received a demand from Mystic Tan, Inc., a licensee of certain of our
patents, alleging that we had hreached the license agreement with them, indicating that it would not.
pay any further rovaltics and requesting that we return approximately 83 million in royalty
pavments already made by it. In November 2000, we filed a lawsuit against the licensee in the U.S.
District Court for the Southern District of New York seeking recovery of our damages for breach of
contract. In April 2007, the licensee filed a counterclaim for breach of contract, negligence, unjust
enrichment and other related coums, and alse sought declaratory relief that the licensee was not
obligated 10 make further rovalty payments and was entitled 10 recover approximarely $3 million in
rovalty paviments already tade by it plus interest. Tn April 2008, we setiled our litigation with the
licensee. Under the terms of the setilement, the licensee agreed to pay us $540,000 in royaliies in
installments through June 2010, and we agreed 1o provide the licensee with a fully-paid license ro
use one of our patents for the duration of the patent.

We are a party to a number of other legal actions, proceedings and claims. While any action,
proceeding or claim contains an element of uncertainty and it is possible that our cash flows and
resulis of operations in a particular quarter or vear could be materially affecied by the impact of
such actions, proceedings and claims, our management helieves that the outcome of such actions,
procecdings or claims will not have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, resulis of
operations, {inancial condition or cash flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No mauters were submitted w a vote of seeurity holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal

vear ended June 30, 2008,




PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information. Our common stock, $.01 par value per share, has been traded on the
NASDAQ Clobal Seleet Market under the symbaol “RDEN7 since January 25, 2001. The following

table sets forth the high and low sules prices for our common stack, as reported by NASDAQ for
sach of our fiscal quarters from July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2008,

6130708 $21.63  $12.81
BI31I08 $20.86 $16.04
12731707 e $28.05 $19.85
0730707 e $27.11 $18.21
6730707 oo $24.73 $21.64
B 3107 $22 97 §17.41
L2/3H06 . o e $10.74 $16.06
/30006 o o $10.04 $13.63

Haolders,  As of September 5, 2008, there were 391 record holders of our common stock. The
number of record holders does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held
in the names of banks, brokers, nominees or other fiduciaries.

Dividends.  We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock since we bhecame a
heauty products company in 1995, and we currently have no plans to declare dividends on our
common stock in the foresecable future. Any future determination by our board of direciors to pay
dividends on our common stock will be made only after considering our financial condition, resulis
of operations, capital requirements and other relevanr factors, Additionally, our revolving credit
facility and the indentures relating 10 our 7 3/4% senior subordinaied notes due 2014 restrict our
ability 10 pay cash dividends based upon our ability to satisfy certain financial covenants, including
having a certain amount. of borrowing capacity and a fixed charge coverage ratio after the payment
of the dividends. See Notes 9 and 10 10 the Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Siatements.

Performance Graph.  The following performance graph dara and 1able compare the cumulative
g1 gray [

total shareholder returns, including the reinvestment of dividends, on our common stock with the

companies in the Russell 2000 Index and a market-weighted index of publicly waded peer

companies for the 65 month period from January 31, 2003 through June 30, 2008 (in June 2004,

we changed our fiscal vear end from January 31 1o June 30}.

We have elected to modify our peer group to include four new beauty products companies (Bare
Escentuals, Inc., Clarins S.A., International Flavors and Fragrances, Inc., and Physicians Formula
Holdings, Ine.) and remove Avon Products, Ine. and Chattens, Inc. We believe 1hat the four new peer
companics are wore comparable to our business than the two companies that we have removed from
the peer group in terms of size {(market capitalization and/or revenues), channels of distribution,
and/or products sold. We believe that our newly-selected peer group is a good representation of
beauty companies with similar marker capitalizations, channels of distribution and/or products as
our company. The publicly traded companics in our new peer group are Bare Escentuals, Inc.,
Clarins, S.A., The Esiee Lauder Companies [nc., International Flavors and Fragrances, Inc., Inter
Parfuins, Ine., Physicians Formula Holdings, Inc., and Revlon, In¢. The publicly traded companies
in our old peer group were Avon Products, [nc., Chatrem, Inc., The Estee Lauder Companies Inc.,
Inter Parfums, Inc. and Revlon, Inc. The graph and table assume thar $100 was invested on
January 31, 2003 in each of the Russell 2000 Index, each of the new and old peer groups, and our
commuon stock, and that all dividends were reinvested.




COMPARISON OF 65 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Elizabeth Arden, Inc., The Russell 2000 Index,
A New Peer Group And An Old Peer Group
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—&8— Elizabeth Arden, Inc.  — A — Russell 2000 -- Q- - New Peer Group ~ —¥— Old Pcer Group
Fiscal Year Ended
January 31, June 30.
H4M 20050 2006 2007 2008
Elizabeth Arden, Inc. ..o 0 o L 160,63 19237 147.05 199.52 12485
Russell 2000 Index .. ... oo oo 158.03 176,96 20276 236.08 197.85
New Peer Group ... oL 136.02 142,53 138.82 184.88 148.94
Old Peer Group .. ..o 132.01 154.06 131.31 16220 161.36

(1) As a result of the change in our fiscal vear end, the measurement point from January 31, 2004
to Junre 30, 2005 covers a period of 17 months which includes the five-month transition period
from February 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005 and the fiscal vear period from July 1. 2004
through June 30, 2005,

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the following sclected financial data from our audited consolidated financial
statements. The following data should he read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and our consolidated  financial
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annuoal report.




On June 2, 2004, our hoard of direciors approved a change in [iscal vear end from January 31
to June 30, (,[[L(,llv ¢ as of June 30, 2004. The change was llllpl(_,]]lbnl(‘(l to better reflect our business
cvele and to enhance business pldmung relative 10 our customers’ retail calendars. See our website
www.elizabetharden.com\Corporate Info for unaudited financial results for the twelve months ended

June 30, 2004,

Five Months Year Ended

. Yeur Ended June 30, Ended January 31,
({;::;i:jrmrs it thousands, except per share 2008 2007 2006 2005 June 30, 2004 2004
Sclected Statement of Income Data
Netsales ... ... .o oL $1,141,075 $1,127476  $954,550 3920538  $222.784 5814425
Grossprofiv ............... ... 466, 11800 461,319 404,072 311,304 88.284 335,777
Incone (loss) from operations .......... 49,0300 74,0006 68,257 78.533 {32.314) 72,3530
Debt extinguishiment eharges .. ... ... —_ — 758 — 3.874 3+.808
Netincome (loss) ... ... .. ... .. 19.901 37.334 32,794 37,604 (31,843) 2,036
Aceretion and dividend on preferred
stock oL - - — - 702 3.502
Accelerated acaretion on converted
preferred stock oo — — - — 19.09¢ 18,584
Net income (Joss) ateributable to conmmon
sharcholders ... ... .. ... . L. 19,9018 37,334 32.794 37,604 (51.095) (20.050)
Selecied Per Share Data
Earnings (loss) per common share .
Basic ... 8 0715 1.35M% 1.15M8 1350 § (208§ (1.02)@
Diluted ..o $ 0.680% 130008 110005 1250 § (2080 5§ (1.02)6
Weighned average number of comimon
shares —
Basic ....... .. ..ol 27.981 27,607 28,028 27.792 2+4.885 19,581 ag
Diluted ... ... 20,303 28.820 29818 30.025 24,885 19.581 0o
Other Data 31
EBITDACY (. o $ 73798 § 98,52+ 5 89,608 5100038  §(27,495) § 58374
Ner cash provided by (used in) operating
Activities .......... . i 8.037 58,816 65,270 35,540 (46.591) +5.801

Net cash (used in} investing aciivities ..., (28.588)  (110.518)  (24.335)  (17,508) (4.138) (11.305)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing ‘
ACHVILIES .. ... o e 16,791 53,120 (37.584) ({15.785) {15,080} 31,196

Year Ended June 30. Five Months  Year Ended

Ended January 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 June 30, 2004 2004

Selected Balance Sheet Daia
Cash ..o 5 2639 § 30,287 8 28400 $ 25316 3 23494 8 89.087
hwventories . ... ..o o oo 408,503 380,232 269270 273,343 258.638 193,362
Working capital ..o o o o oL 305,863 208.165 280,942 275,028 191.872 220.843
Totalassets .. ... .. ... .. ... . ... 970,734 936,175 759903 719897 603,680 68,079
Shors-termudels ..o oL 119,000 97.640 $0.000 47,700 65,900 -
Long-reem debr, including current

POCHON . ... 224,957 295,655 235951 233,802 238,500 325,089
Convertible, redeemable preferved

stock L - — - - - 10,793
Shareholders’ equity ... L 336,601 320,927 277.847  250.200 202,060 210,959

{1) For the vear ended June 30, 2008, costs related 1o the global licensing agreement with Liz Cluiborne which became
effective in June 2008, incinding product discontinuation charges, and restructuring charges reduced gross profic and
ineome from operations by approximatety $15.0 million and $30.0 million, respectively.

(2} For the vear eoded June 30, 2008, Liz Claiborne related costs, inchuding prodoct discontinuarion charges, and
resiructuring charges reduced basic and fully dilued earnings per share hy $0.65 and $0.63, respectively. Also, we
adopred SFAS t23R. Share-Based Payment, an July 1, 2005, for the year ended June 30, 2006 and subsequent periods.
For the vear ended Jane 30, 2008, share based expenses from the application of SFAS 123R reduced basic and fully
diluted earnings per share by 80.14 and $0.13, respeciively.

(3) For the vear ended June 30, 2007, share-based paymem expenses resulting from the application of SFAS 123R and
restructuring charges reduced basic and fully diluted earnings per share by $0.20. For the year ended June 30, 2000,
share-based pavment expenses resulting from the application of SFAS 123R, restructuring and debt extinguishment
charges reduced basic and [ully diluted carnings per share by $0.20 and $0.19, respeetively.
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{4) Reflects a reduction in basic and fully diluted carnings per share of 50.06 and $0.05, respectively, as a result of the
impairment charge related 10 the sale of the Miami Lakes faciliry in June 2005.

(5) Reflects an increase in basic and fully diluted Inss per share of $0.89, as a result of the accelerated accretion on the
conversion of our Series D convertible preferred stock into common stock in April 2004 and June 2004 and debe
extinguishment and restructuring charges.

(6) Reflects a reduction in basic and fully diluted earnings per share of $2.09 and $1,99, respectively, as a result of the
aceelerated aceretion on ke conversion of onr Series I converuble preferred stock inte commaon stock in Oetober 2003
and debt extinguishment and restructuring charges, .

(7) EBITDA is defined as net income plus the provision for income taxes (or net loss less the benefit from income taxes), plus
imerest expense, plus depreciation and amortization expense. EBITDA shoutd not be considered as an alternative to
operating income (loss) or net income (loss} (as determined in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles)
as a measure of our operating performance or 1 net cash provided by operating, investing and {inancing activides (as
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles) or as a measure of our ability to meet cash
needs. We believe that EBITDA is a measure commonly veported and widely used by investors and other interested
parties as a measure of & company’s operating performance and debt servicing ability because it assists in comparing
performance on a consistent busis without regard to capital structure (particularly when acquisitions are involved),
depreciation and amortization, or non-operating faciors such as historical cost. Accordingly, as a result of our capital
structure, we believe EBITDA is a relevant measure. This information has heen disclosed here to permit a more complete
comparative analysis of our operating performance relative 1o other companies and of our debi servicing abiliry. EBYTDA
inay not, however, be coraparable in all instances 1o other similar types of meusures,

I addition, EBITDA has limiwtions as an analytical tool, including the fact dha

* it does not reflect our cash expenditures, future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;

o i1 does not reflect the significant interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal
pavments on our debt;

* it does not reflect any cash income taxes that we may be required 10 pay; and
e although depreciation and amortizativn are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often

have to be replaced in the future and these measures do not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements.

The following is a reconciliation of net income (loss), as determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, to EBITDA:

Year Ended June 30, h“Ea‘:‘:ﬁths Jnnﬂ?re)dBI,
{Amounts in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 June 30, 2004 2004
Net income (loss) ....... $19,901 $37,334 $32,794 § 37,604  $(31,843) § 2,036
Provision for (benefit
from) income
taxes ... ... e 1.534 7.474 11,281 17,403 (14,188) (4,112)
[nterest expense ... ..  27.505 29,198 23,424 23,526 9,835 39,593
Depreciation and -
amortization ... .. 24,768 24518 22,109 21,505 8,701 20.857
EBIFDA........... oo §73,798) 898,524 89,6080 $100.038W  $(27.495) $58,374(0)

(a) Includes $27.0 million of Liz Claiborne related costs, including product discontinnation
charges, and $3.0 million of restructuring charges. Also includes $4.2 million of share-based
pavment expenses resulting from the application of SFAS 123R.

(b) Includes $4.7 million of share-based payment expenses resulting from the application of SFAS
123R and $2.1 million of restructuring charges.

(¢) Inclndes $5.8 million of share-based pavment expenses resulting from the application of SFAS
123R, $1.2 million of restructuring charges and $0.8 million of debt extinguishment charges.

(d) Includes an impairment charge related to the sale of the Miami Lakes facility of $2.2 million.

(e) Includes debt extinguishment and restructuring charges of $3.9 million and $1.3 million,
respectively.

(f) Includes debt extinguishment and restructuring charges of $34.8 million and $2.3 million,
respectively.




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read i conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes which appear elsewhere in this document.

Overview

We are a global prestige beauty products company with an extensive portfolio of prestige
fragrance, skin care and cosmetics brands. Our branded products include the Elizabeth Arden
fragrances: Red Door, Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue, Llizabeth Arden Provocative Woman, Elizabeth
Arden green tea, and Elizabeth Arden Mediterrancan; the Elizabeth Arden skin care brands:
Ceramide, Intervene and PREVAGE®; and the Elizabeth Arden branded lipstick, foundation and
other color cosmetics products. Our prestige fragrance portfolio also includes the following celebrity,
lifestvle and designer fragrances:

Celebrity Fragrances  Elizabeth Tavlor’s White Diamonds and Passion,
curions Britney Spears, fantasy Britney Spears and
Britney Spears believe, with Love.. IHilary Duff,
Danielle by Danielle Steel, M Iy Mariah Carey, Usher

Lifesiyle Fragrances  Curve, Giorgio Beverly: Hills, Lucky, PS Fine Cologne for
Men, Design and White Shoulders

Designer Fragrances  Juicy Couture, Badgley Mischka, Rocatear, Alberia
Ferretti, Alfred Sung, Nannetie Lepore, Geoffrey Beene,
Halston, Bob Mackic, und GANT

In addition to our vwned and licensed fragrance brands, we distribute over 400 additional
prestige fragrance brands, primarily in the United States, through distribution agreements and other
purchasing arrangements.

Our business strategy is to increase net sales, operating margins and earnings by (a) growing
the sales of our existing brand portfolio, including the Elizabeth Arden brand, through new product
innovation and 1argeting additional demographics and geographic markerts. (b) acquiring prestige
beauty brands through licensing opportunities and acquisitions, (¢) expanding the prestige fragrance
category at mass retail eustomers in the U.S. and (d) implementing initiatives to improve our cost
structure and working capital efficiencies. We manage our business by evaluating net sales, EBITDA
(as defined in Note 7 under ltem 6 “Selected Financial Data®), EBITDA margin, segment profit and
working capital utilization (including monitoring our levels of inventory, accounts receivable and
operating cash flow). We encounter a variety of challenges that mayv affect our business and should
be considered as described in liem 1A “Risk Factors™ and in the section *Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations — Forward-Looking Information and
Factors That May Affect Future Resules.”

Effective June 9, 2008, we became the exclusive, global licensee for the sale, manufacture,
distribution and marketing of the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands under a long-term license
agreement with Liz Claiborne, Ine. and certain of its affiliates. The Liz Claiborue fragrance portfolio
consists of the Juicy Couture, Curve by Liz Claihorne, Lucky, Liz, Realities, Bora Bora and Mambo
fragrances. In connection with the Liz Claiborne license agreement we also assumed a license for the
Usher celebrity fragrances. We anticipate that the Liz Claiborne licensing arrangement will allow us
to (i) increase our market share in our North America Fragrance segment, (ii) gain efficiencies from
a larger fragrance business, particularly by leveraging our supply chain, logistics and sales
organizations, (iii) increasc our gross margins by converting existing North America mass customer
sales from distribution margins to owned/licensed margins, and {iv) provide additional sates volume
for our International segment.



In fiscal 2008, we incurred expenses related 10 the Liz Claiborne transaction of $19.6 million,
before 1axes. In addition, in connection with this license we discontinued certain brands and
products resulting in a prodoct discontinnation charge of $7.4 million, before taxes. During fiscal
2009, we expect to incur transition expenses relating to the Liz Claiborne licensing agreement of
approximately $3.5 10 $4.5 million, primarily during the quarter ending September 30, 2008. In
addition, we anticipate that our gross margins for the first half of fiscal 2009 will be impacted by
expenses relating to Liz Claiborne inventory that we purchased at a higher cost prior 10 the effective
date of the license agreement. We expect this charge to be approximately $19.0 million, before
taxes, of which $15.4 million is expected to be recorded during the quarter ending September 30,

2008.

In fiscad 2007, we commenced a comprehensive review of our global business processes 10
re-engineer our extended supply chain, logistics and transaction processing systems, We call this
initiative our Glohal Efficiency Re-engineering initiative. In May 2008, we announced that we had
decided 0 aceelerate the re-engineering of our extended supply chain functions as well as the
realignment of other parts of our organization (o better support our new business processes.

[ connection with our Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative, we are also migrating to an
Oracle finuncial accounting and order processing svstem 10 improve kev rransaction processes and
accommmindare anticipated gr(‘n\'lh of our business. We expect this infrastructure investnent to

singplify our transaction processing by niilizing a common platform o centralize all of our global

1
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As a result of the aceeleration of the re-engineering of our extended supply chain functions and
the implementation of the Oracle financial accounting and order processing system, we are
implementing a restructuring plan that will result in restructuring and one-time expenses, including
severance, relocation, recruiting and temporary staffing expendinres. We expect these expenses to
be incurred primarily in fiscal vears 2009 and 2010 and curremly estimate that they will total $12.0
million 1o $14.0 million belore 1axes, of which $0.7 million was recorded in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2008, '

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated {inancial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires us 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts of assers, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported in those consolidated financial
statemenrs, We base our estimates on historical experience and other factors that we helieve are
most likelv 10 oceur. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates, whicl are
recorded in the period in which they become known. Actual results could differ rom those estimates.
If these changes result in a material impact to the consolidated financial statements, their impact is
disclosed in *Management’s Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations™ and/or in the “Notes (0 the Consolidated Financial Statements.™ The «isclosures below
also note situations in which ic is reasonably likely that future financial results could he affected by
changes in these estimates and assumptions. The rerm “reasonably likelv™ refers to an vccurrence
that is inore than remote but less than probable in the judgment ol management.

Our most critical accouning policies and estimates are described in detail below, See Note 1 to
- - = ” .
the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements —  “General  Information and  Sununary  of

Significant Accounting Policics,” for a discussion of these and other accounting polices.

Acconnting for Acquisitions and Intangible Assets.  We have accounted for our acquisitions
under the purchase method of accounting for business combinations. Under the purchase method of
accounting, the costs, including rransaction costs, are allocated 10 the underlying net assets, based on
their respective estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values
of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill,




The judgmens made in determining the estimated fair value and expected useful lives assigned
to cach class of assets and Habilities acquired can significamly affect net income. For example,
different classes of assets will have useful lives that differ, and the useful fife of properiy, plant, and
cquipment acquired will differ substantially from the useful life of brand licenses and tradenarks,
Consequently, to the extem a longer-lived asset is ascribed greater value under the purchase method
tlran a shorter-lived asser ner income in a given period may be higher,

Determining the fair value of cerain assets and liabilitics acquired is judgmental in natere and
often involves the use of significam. estimates and assumptions. One of 1the areas that requires more
judgment is determining the fair value and useful lives of intangible assets. lu this process, we often
ohtain the assistance of third party valuation firms for certain intangible assets.

Our intangible assets consist of exclusive brand licenses, trademarks and other intellectual
property, customer relationships and lists, non-compete agreements and goodwill. The value of these
assets is exposcd 1o future adverse changes if we experience declines in operating resulis or
experience significant negative industry or cconomic wends, We review indefinite-lived intangible
asse1s and goodwill for impairmeni at least annually. All of our intangibles are reviewed for
impairment or reconsideration of the uselul life assigned as circumstances diciate using the guidance
of applicable accounting literarure. An impairment loss is recognized 1o the extent the carrving
amount of the assct exceeds its estimated [air value. Factors used to estimate the fair value and
useful life of intangible assets include historical and expected future revenues and profitability and
the discounted future cash flows related 10 the asset.

Because the fair value and estimated useful life of an imangible asser is a subjective estimate, it
is reasonably likely thar circumstances mayv cause the estimate 10 change. For example, if we
discontinue or expericnce a decline in (the profitability of one or more of our brands, the value of the
imangible assers associated with those brands or their useful lives may decline, or, certain intangible
assets, such as the Elizabeth Arden heand trademarks, may no longer be classified as an indefinite-
lived asser, which could resule in additional charges to ner income.

We have derermined that the Elizabeth Arden trademarks have indefinite useful lives, as cash
Mows from the use of the rademarks are expected 10 be generated indefinitely. During the quarter
ended June 30, 2008, we perferined our annnal impairment testing of 1hese assets with the
assistance of a third party valuation firm. The analvses and assessients of these assets and onr
goondwill indicated that no impairment adjusiments were required.

Depreciation and Amortization.  Depreciation and amortization is provided over the estimated
uscful lives of the assers using the siraight line method. Pertodically, we review the lives assigned 1o
our fong-lived assers and adjust the lives, as circumsiances diciate. Because estimated nseful life is a
subjective estimate, it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate o change. For
exmmple, if we expericnce significant declines in net sales in certain channels of distribudion, it could
affect, the estimated uscful Tife of certain of our long-lived assets, such as counters or trade fixiures,
which could result in additional charges o net income.

Long-Lived Assets.  We review for the impairment of long-lived assers to be held and used
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of such assets may
uot be fully recoverable. Measuremem of an impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset
compared 1o its carrving value. An impairmient loss is recognized o the extent the carrving amount
of the asset exceeds its estimated faie value. Becanse the fair value is a subjective estimate, it is
reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate 1o change. The same circumsiances that
could affect the estimated useful life of a tong-lived asset, as discussed above, could cause us 10
change our estimate of (he fair value of thar asset, which could vesult in additional charges 1o net
income. Long-lived assets 10 be disposed of are reported ar the lower of carrving amount or fair
-alue less costs 1o sell.
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Recenue Recognition.  Sales are recognized when title and risk of loss transfers to the customer,
the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility of the resulting receivable is probable, Sales
are recorded net of estimated returns, markdowns and other ulluw'mre The provision for sales
returns and markdowns represents management’s estimate of future returns and markdowns based
on historical experience and considering current external factors and market conditions,

Allowances for Sales Returns and Markdowns.  As is customary in the prestige beauty business,
we grant certain of our customers, subject 10 our authorization and approval, the right to either
return product or to receive o markdown allowance. Upon sale, we record a provision for product
returns and markdowns estimated based on our historical and projected experience, cconomic trends
and changes in customer demand. Because there is considerable judgment used in evaluating the
allowance for returns and markdowns, it is reasonably likely that actual experience will differ {rom
our estimates. If, for example, customer demand for our products is lower than estimated, additional
provisions for returns or markdowns may be required resulting in a charge to income in the period
in which the determination was made. As a percentage of gross sales, our expense for returns and
markdowns was 7.0%, 6.4% and 6.7% for 1he fiscal years ending June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. A hypothetical 5% change in the v e of our :lll()\\'zulce for sales returns and
markdowns as of June 30, 2008 would result in a $0.7 million change to net income.

Allowances for Doublfil Accounts Receivable.  We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts
1o cover uncollectible acconunis receivable, and we evaluate our accounts receivable to determine if
they will ultimately be collected. This evaluation includes significant judgments and estimaies,
including an analysis of reccivables aging and a customer- bv-(‘uqlmnvr review for large accounts. It
is reasonably likely that actual experience will differ from our estimates, which may result in an
increase or decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts. If, for example, the financial condition
of our customers deteriorates resulting in an impairment of their ability to pay, additional
allowances may be required, resulting in a charge to income in the period in which the
determination was made. A hvpmhmlml 5% (]mno'e in the value of our allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable as of June 30, 2008 would n,suh in a $0.2 million change w net income,

Provisions for Inventory Obsolescence.  We record a provision for estimated obsolescence and
shrinkage of inventory. Our estimates consider the cost of inventory, forecasted demand, the
estimated market value, the shelf life of the inventory and our historical experience. Because of the
subjective nature of this estimate, it is reasonably Ilkelv that circumstances may cause the estimate
to change. If, for example, demand for our pmdm,ts declines or il we decide to discominue certain
products, we may need to increase our provision for inventory obsolescence which would result in
additional charges to net income. A hypothetical 5% change in the value of our provision for
inventory ohsolescenee as of June 30, 2008 would result in a $1.3 million change to net income.

Hedge Contracts. We have designated cach qualifying foreign currency contract we have
entered ito as a cash flow hedge. Unroaluml gains or losses, net of taxes, associated with these
contracts are included in dl.t,umulalcd other (,mnplelleuswc income on the balance sheet. Cains and
losses will only be recognized in earnings in the period in which the contracts expire.

Share-Based Compensation. All share-based pavments to employees, including the grants of
emplovee stock options, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair
values, but only to the extent. that vesting is considered probable. Compensation cost for awards that
vest will not be reversed if the awards expire without being exercised. The fair value of stock oprions
is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fuir value of the market-based
restricied stock dwlrds is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model, and the fair value of all
other restricted stock awards is based on lhv closing price of onr common stock on the date of grant.
Compensation costs for awards are amortized using the straight- line method. Option pricing moclel
input assumptions such as expected term, (L\}_)t:uttd volanllty and risk-free interest rate impact the
fair value estimate. Further, the forfeiture rate impacts the amount of aggregate compensation.
These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment 1o develop.



When estimaring fair value, some of the assumptions are based on or determined from external data
and other assuriptions may be derived from our historical experience with  share-based
arrangements. The appropriate weight o place on historical expericnce is a matter of judgment,
based on relevant facts and circimstances.

We rely on our historical experience and post-vested termination activity to provide data for
estimating our expected term for use in determining the fair value of our stock options. We currently
estimate our stock volatility by considering our historical stock volatility experience and other key
factors. The risk-free interest rate is the implied vield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-
coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term used as the input 1o the Black-
Scholes model. We estimate forfeitures using our historical experience. Our estimates of forfeitures
will be adjusted over the requisite service period based on ihe extent 10 which acimal forfeinieres
differ, or are expecied to differ, from their estimates. Because of the significant amount of judgment
used in these calculations, it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate 1o
change. If. for example, actual forfeitures are lower than our estimate, additional charges to net
income may be required.

Income Tazes and Valuation Reserves. A valuation allowance may be required to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. We consider projecied
future taxable income and ongoing tax planning strategics in assessing a potential valuation
allowance. In the event we determine that we may not he able to realize all or part of our deferred
tax asset in the future, or that new estimates indicate that a previously recorded valuation allowaunce
is no longer required, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would he charged or credited to net
income in the period in which such determination was made.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Siandards Board (*FASB”) Finauncial
Interpreration No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASH
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 487), we recognize in our consolidated financial statements the impact. of
a tax position if it is more likely than not that such pesition will be susiained on audit based on its
technical merits. While we belicve that our assessients of whether our tax posidons are more likely
than not to be sustained are rcasonable, each assessment is subjective and requires the use of
significant judgments. As a result, one or more of such assessments may prove ultimately to be
incorrect, which could result in a change to net income.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table compares our historical results of operations, including as a percentage of
net sales, on a consolidated basis, for the vears ended Jane 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006. (Amounts in
thousands, other than percentages. Percentages may not addd due to rounding):

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006

Neesales oo $1,141,075 100.0% $1.127,476 100.0% $954.550 100.0%
Costofsales . ................. 674,957 592 666,157  59.1 550,478 57.7
Crossprofit ................... 466,118 408 461.319 409 404,072 423
Selling, general and administrative

CXPENSES . ... 302 320 34.4 362,705 32.2 313.706 329
Depreciaion and amortization . . .. 24,708 2.2 24.518 2.2 22.109 2.3
Income from operations ......... 49,030 4.3 74,006 0.6 68,257 7.2
Interest expense ... 27.595 2.4 29,198 2.6 23,424 25
Debt extinguishment charges .. ... - — — 758 0.1
Income belore income taxes .. .. .. 21,435 1.9 44,808 4.0 44,075 4.6
Provision for income taxes . ... ... 1.534 0.1 7.474 0.7 11,281 1.2
Netincome . ... ..o on.. 19,901 1.7 37.334 3.3 32.794 3.4

Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006

Other data:
EBITDA and EBITDA margin® .. § 73,798 6.5% $ 98,524 8.7% $ 89,608 9.4%

(1) For a definition of EBITDA and a reconciliation of net income 10 EBITDA, see Nowe 7 under
liem 6 *Selected Finaucial Data.” EBITDA margin represems EBITDA divided by net sales.

Olll' ()|l€:['{l|i()115 HIEW (]l'g{llliZL‘(I into I.II(: fl)”(l\\’illg l‘(}l]l’ll'lill)l(: S(?gl!ll:lllS!

e Norih America Fragrance — Our North America Fragrance segment sells fragrances 1o
department stores, mass retailers and wholesalers in the United States, Canada and Puerto
Rico. This segment also sells our Elizabeth Arden products in prestige department stores in
Canada and Puerto Rico, and o other selected rerailers.

¢ International — OQur Iniernational segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed
brands, including our Elizabeth Arden products, in approximately 90 countries onntside of
North America through perfumeries, boutiques, departinent. stores and travel retail outlers
worldwide.

s Other — The Other reportable segment sells our Elizabeth Arden products in prestige
depariment stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty salons, which are
owned and operated by an unrelated third party.

Our segment reporting has been revised in accordance with the FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standavds No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Lnterprise and Related
Information.” Prior 10 June 30, 2008, we reported our operations under one reporting segment.
Financial information relating to our reportable segments is included in Note 18 1o the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Staremems.

Segment profit excludes depreciadon and amortization, interest expense, debt extinguisliment
charges and unallocated corporate expenses, as shown in the table reconciling segment profit 1o
consolidated income before income taxes. Included in unallocated  corporate expenses  are
(i) adjustments to eliminate intercompany mark-up, {(ii} emplovee incentive costs, and
(iii) restructuring charges. Unatlocated corporate expenses, including unallocated sales allowances,
for fiscul 2008 also include $27.0 million of expenses related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement,
including product discontinuation charges, as discussed above. The Company does not have any
intersegment sales.




The following table is a comparative summary ol vur net sules wd segment profit by reportable
segment for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2000, and reflects the basis of presentation
described in Note 1 — “CGeneral Information & Summary of Significanr Accounting Policies™ and
Note 18 — “Segment Data and Related Information™ to the Notes 10 Consolidared Financial
Statements for all periods presented. (Amounts in thonsands):

Year Ended June 30,

08 207 2006
Segment Net Sales:
North America Fragrance ... o o oL, 8§ 688807 & 095983 $565.197
International ... . L e 400,689 366,951 328,999
Other ... 54,799 04,542 60,354
Total v oo S1,144.295 S1,127,476 $954,550
Reconciliation:
Segrment Net Sales ... 81,144,205 $1,127476  $954,550
]..I:SS: .........................................
Unallocared Sales Allowances("W . ... . ... 3,220 — —
NetSales ..o oo $1.141.075 $1,127.476  $954.550)
Segment Profir:
North America Fragrance ... oo o o000 $ 116,855 § 116,369 3101,439
hwernadonal ... o 10,997 21,623 20,999
OUEE oo oo e (3.450)  (1,088)  (8.119)
Total .« oo $ 130,402 S 136,904 114,310
Reconciliation:
Segment Profin ... o S 130,402 5 136,904 S$114,319
Less:
Depreciation and Amortization ... oo o0 L. 24.768 24518 22.109
[rrerest expense ... o 27.595 29,108 28,424
Debt extinguishment oo oo - - 758
Unallocated Corporate Expenses ... .. ..., 56,004() 38.380 23.953
Income Before Income Taxes ... ..o o oo oo o L. $ 21435 $ 44808 § 44,075

(1) In May 2008, we entered into an exclusive long-term global licensing agrecment for the Liz
Claiborne fragrance brands, which became effective on June 9, 2008, In connection with this
new license, we discontinued certain brands and products. Anoums shown reflect $27.0 million
of expenses, including $3.2 million of unallocated sales allowances, related 10 1the Liz Claiborne
license agreement.

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net Sales. Nei sales increased 1.2%. or $13.6 milhon, for the vear ended hane 30, 2008,
compared to the vear ended June 30, 2007, The increase resulied largely from increased sales of
$44.1 million due 10 (i) the fragrance launch of M by Mariah Carey: and (i1} increased sales of the
Giorgio Beverly Hills brands resulting from the license agreement signed i December 2006, and
(iii} increased sales of Elizabeth Arden branded skin care products of $17.0 million. These increases
were mostly offset by a weakening reiail environment which contributed 1o a decline in sales of
certain other fragrance brands and higher sales allowances given primarily 1o cerain of ounr
European customners. Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, net sales

decreased 0.4%. Pricing changes had an immaterial clfect on aet sales.
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North America Fragrance

Net sales decreased by 1.0%, or $7.2 million, primarily due 10 a weak retail environment.
The lower net sales were partially offset by increased sales of $23.6 million due o (i) the
fragrance launch of M by Mariah Carey and (i) increased sales of the Giorgio Beverly Hills
hmnds, and increased sales of certain Elizabeth Arden branded skin care pmducls of $11.9
million.

International

Net sales increased by 9.2%, or $33.7 million, primarily as a result of increased sales of
$20.5 million due to (i) the fragrance launch of M by Mariah Carey and {ii) increased sales of
the Giorgio Beverly Hills hrands. and an increase of $1-} 3 million over the prior vear of sales of
Fllzal)elh Arden branded skin care and color products. Net sales were adversely affected by
higher sales allowanees given primarily (o European mass market customers 1o increase sales of
certain older brands.and in response to a weakening retail environment. Excluding the impact
of foreign currency translation, International net sales increased 4.2%.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased by 1.0% for the year ended June 30, 2008, compared to
the vear ended June 30, 2007, primarily due to the higher sales. Included in gross profit were $15.0
million of costs related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement, including product discontinuation
charges.

SC&A.  Selling, general and adminisirative expenses increased 8.1%, or $29.5 million, for the
vear ended June 30, 2008, compared to the year ended June 30, 2007. The increase was principally
due to (i) expenses related (o the Liz Claiborne license agreement of $12.1 million, (i) higher
advertising, promotional and rovalty costs of $12.4 million mainly related to new produet launches,
and (iii) hmh( ;v marketing and sales overhead costs of $6.4 million mainty related 10 our European
operations, e-commerce activities and the Fifth Avenue store in New York City. These amounts
include a portion of the aggregate unfavorable effect of foreign currency translation of $11.6 million.
The increases were partially offset by lower employee incentive compensation of $11.5 million, as
compared to the prior fiscal vear. We also incurred costs related to our Global Efficiency
Re-engineering initiative and restructuring expenses, which mostly offset prior period restructuring
expenses and ransition costs related to the acquisition of certain assets of Riviera Concepts Inc. in
June 2006 and the acquisition of the fragrance business of Sovereign Sales, LLC in August 2006.

Segment Profit
North America Fragrance

Segrnent profit increased 0.4%, or $0.5 million, prmlanlv due to improved gross margins
as a rcsult of a higher proportion of our net sales coming from owned and li¢ (‘nsed fra'rrmcu
brands, which lraclmmmlly operate al higher gross margins than our distributed fmgmm:cs.
This increase was mostly offset by higher general and administrative expenses.

International

Segment profit decreased 21.4%, or $4.6 million, as higher net sales were more than offset
by increased selling, general and administrative expenses primarily due 10 higher advertising,
promotional and royalty costs mainly related to new product launches, higher marketing and
sales overhead costs and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation.

Interest Expense. Interest expense, net of interest income, decreased by 5.5% for the year
ended June 30, 2008, compared to the vear ended June 30, 2007. The decrease is primarily a result
of lower interest rates under our credit Tacility.

Provision for Income Tarves. A provision for income taxes of $1.5 million was recorded for
the vear ended June 30, 2008, compared 10 $7.5 million for the year ended Jine 30, 2007. The
decrease




in the provision for income taxes was due to lower income from operations generated in the vear
ended June 30, 2008 mostly in the .S, and primarily as the resule of $27.0 million in Liz Claiborne
related expenses, including product discontinuation charges. The effective ax rate caleulated as a
percentage of income before income taxes for the vear ended June 30, 2008 was 7.2%, compared to
16.7% for the vear ended June 30, 2007. The decrease in the effective tax rate is due 10 a significant
loss being incurred in the US., which has a higher tax rate than our imternational operations,
primarily as a resuli of the Liz Claiborne related expenses, including product discontinuation
charges. See Note 13 to the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements,

Net Income.  Net income decreased by 46.7% 10 $19.9 niillion for the vear ended June 30,
2008, as compared 10 $37.3 million for the yvear ended lune 30, 2007. The decrease in net income
was mainly driven by the Liz Claiborme related expenses discussed above, including product
discontinuation charges.

EBITDA.  EBITDA (net income plus the provision for income taxes (or net loss less the benefit
from income taxes), plus interest expense, plus depreciation and amortization expense) decreased by
25.1%. or $24.7 million, 10 $73.8 million for the vear ended June 30, 2008 compared 10 $98.5
million for the vear ended June 30, 2007, The decrease in EBITDA was primarily the result of $27.0
million in Liz Claiborne related expenses. including product discontinnation charges, incurred in
fiscal 2008. For a reconciliation of net income w EBITDA for the vears ended June 30, 2008 and
2007, see Note 7 under ltem 6 “Selecied Financial Daia*

Year Ended June 20, 2007 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2006

Net Sales. Net sales increased 18.1%. or $173.1 million, for the vear ended June 30, 2007
compared to the vear ended June 30, 2000, Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency
reanslation, net sales increased 16.7%. The increase is due to $134.6 million, or 18.8%, of higher
fragrance sales primarily from the Sovercign Sales acquisition and the introduction of new brands,
including the with Love...Hilary Duff Tragrance, the Danielle by Danielle Steel fragrance, and the
Giorgio Beverly Hills and Riviera brands, and $38.4 million, or 16.2%, of higher sales of Elizabeth
Arden branded skin cure and color products, The increase in fragrance sales was partially offset by
the loss of distributed brands previously manufactured by Unilever Cosmetics and lower sales of
Britney Spears fragrances, as we did not launch a major Brituey Spears product in fiseal 2007 as
compared 1o fisecal 2000. Pricing changes had an immaterial effece on ne sales,

North America Fragrance

Net sales increased by 23.1%, or $130.8 million. Most of this growth was driven by the
Soversign Sales acquisition, the addition of 1he Riviera brands in June 2006 and sales of the
Giorgio Beverly Hills hrands resulting from the license agreement signed in December 2000,
aggregating $167.2 nillion. New fragrance launches, including with Love.. Hilary Duff and
Danielle by Dandelle Steel, also contributed $24.0 willion o the net sales increase. These
increases were partially offset by the loss of distribuwted brands previously manufactured by
Unilever Cosmetics and lower sales of Britney Spears fragrances, as we did not launch a major
Britney Spears fragrance product in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2000,

International

Net sales increased by 11.6%. or $38.1 million. The increase was driven by increased sales
of skin care products including a full fiscal vear of PREVAGE® sales, and new fragrance
launches, primarily Elizabeth Arden Mediterranean and with Love.. . Hilary: Duff. as well as sales
of the Ciorgio Beverly Hills bramds, aggregating $31.8 million. Excluding the impact of foreign
curreney translation, International ner sales increased 7.8%. '

Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased by 14.2% for the vear ended June 30, 2007, compared 10
the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase in gross profit was primarily due to the higher sales
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volumes. Gross margin decreased 10 40.9% for the vear ended June 30, 2007, from 42.3% for the
vear ended June 30, 2006 due to (i) a higher proportion of our net sales coming from distributed
fragrances, which traditonally operate at lower gross margins than our owned and licensed
fragrance brands, primarily as a result of the Sovereign Sales acquisition, and (ii} transition cosis
associated with the Riviera and Sovereign Sales acquisitions,

SC&A.  Selling, general and adminisirative expenses increased 15.6%. or $49.1 million, for
the vear ended June 30, 2007, compared to the vear ended June 30, 20006. The increase was
principally due o emplovee compensation costs of $22.0 million that were primarily incentive
related, higher advertising, promotional, rovalty and product development costs of $11.3 million
mainly related 10 new fragrance launches and costs of $2.1 million associated with our restructuring
plans announced in May 2006, primarily in our European operations. These amounts include a
portion ol the aggregate unfavorable effect of foreign currency translation of 55.0 million. Also
contribiting to the increase were transition costs associated with the Riviera and Sovereign Sales
aedquisitions.

Segment Profit
North America Fragrance

Segment profit increased 14.7%, or $14.9 million, mainly due to the higher sales discussed
above. This increase was partially offsct by a lower gross margin and higher selling, general and
achininistrative expenses. Gross margins were negatively affected by a higher proportion of our
sales coming from distributed fragrances as a result of 1he Sovereign Sales acquisition, while
selling, general and administrative expenses were higher primarily due to advertising and
promotional expenses  associated with new product launches and other general and
administrative expenses.

Internationel

Segment profic increased 3.0%, or $0.6 million, as the higher sales discussed above were
mostly offset by higher selling, general and administrative expenses, including employee
compensation costs, and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation.

Depreciation and Amortization.  Depreciation and amortization increased by 10.9% for the
vear ended hine 30, 2007, compared to the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase is primarily a
result of the amortization of intangible assets assoctated with the Riviera and Sovereign Sales
acquisitions and higher depreciation costs duc 1o the higher level of capiral additions during the
fiscal vears ended June 30, 2007 and 2000 as compared to the prior period.

Interest Expense. Interest expense, net of imerest income, increased by 24.6% for the year
ended June 30, 2007 compared (o the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase is a result of higher
average borrowings under our credit facility primarily due 1o the payment of $90.4 million of cash
for the Sovereign Sales acauisition.

Debt Extingnishment Costs.  On February 1, 2006, we redeemed the remaining 88.8 million
aggregate principal amount of onr 11 3/4% senior sceonred notes due 2011 at the redemption price
of 105.875% of their par amount plus acerued interest. As a result of the redemption, we incurred a
pre-tax debt extinguishment charge in fiscal 2006 of $0.8 million. See Note 10 10 the Notes 1o
Consolidaied Financial Statements.

Provision for lncome Taves. A provision for income taxes of $7.5 million was recorded for
the vear ended June 30, 2007, compared 10 $11.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2006, due to a
lower cffective 1ax rate and higher interest expense. The income tax provision for the vear endeid
June 30, 2007, reflects increased earnings contributions from our worldwide affiliates, which
generally have tax rates lower than the U.S. lederal stattory rate, as well as an adjustment o record




a benefit from research and development tax credits atiributable 1o prior vears and the reversal of a
valuation allowance associated with 1he tax henelit for new operating losses generated by certain
international subsidiaries, which are now expected 10 be utilized. The cffective 1ax rate for the vears
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was 16.7% and 25.0%, respectively. See Note 13 to the Notes to
Consolidared Financial Statements,

Net Income. Net income increased by 13.8% for the vear ended June 30, 2007 0 $37.3
million as compared 1o $32.8 million for the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase was primarily
a result of a decrease in the provision for income taxes due 1o a lower effective tax rate and higher
income from operations due to higher net sales, partially offset by higher interest expense:

EBITDA. EBITDA (nei income plus the provision for income taxes {or net loss less the benefit
from income taxes), plus interest expense, plus depreciation and amortization expense) increased by
10%. or $8.9 million, to $98.5 million for the vear ended June 30, 2007 compared to $89.6 million
for the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase in EBITDA was primarily the result of higher net
sales and gross profit, partially offset by higher selling, general and administrative expenses. For a
reconciliation of net income to EBITDA ior the vears ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, see Nowe 7
under ltem 6 “Selecied Financial Data.”

Seasonality

Our operations have historically been scasonal, with higher sales generally ocenrring in the first
half of the fiscal year as a result of iﬂ(‘l‘l“'l ed demand by retailers in anticipation of and during the
holiday season. In the vear ended June 30, 2008, 61% of our net sales were made during tll(, {irst
half of the fiscal vear. Dus to product innovation and new product launches, the size (md timing of
certain orders from our customers and additions or losses of brand distribution rights, sales, re sulta
of operations, working capital requirements and cash flows can vary between quarters of the same
and different vears. As a result, we expect o expericnce variability in new sales, operating margin,
net income, working capital requirements and cash flows on a quarterly basis. Increased sales of skin
care and cosmetic products relative to fragrances may reduce the seasonality of our business.

We experience seasonality in our working capiral, with peak inventory levels normally from July
to October and peak receivable balances normally from September to December. Our working
capital borrowings are also seasonal and are nonmnally highest in the months of September, October
and November. During the months of December, January and February of each vear, cash is
normally generated as customer pavments on holiday season orders are received.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Year Ended June 30,

(Amounts in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by operating activivies . .................. 8§ 8037 5 58,816 § 65270
Net cash used in investing activities ... ... ... ... ... .. ... (28,588) {110.518) (24.,335)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activites ........ ... 16,791 53,120 (37.584)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash cquivalems ... ... (3,891) 1.821 3,150

Cash Flows. For the vear ended June 30, 2008, net cash provided by operating activities was
$8.0 million, as compared ro $58.8 million for the year ended Junc 30, 2007. This decrease in cash
provided by operating activitics was primarily due to {i} lower net income driven, in part, by the
$27.0 million of Liz Claiborne related expenses, including product discontinuation charges, (ii) a
higher inventory balance of $28.3 million due to pure hdae under the Liz C]dl])mm, license
agreement and (iii) a decrease in accounts pavable of $7.9 million due to the fiming of pavinents.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $6.5 million lower for (the vear end June 30, 2007
as compared to June 30, 2006, as an increase in inventories, primarily due (0 new brands and the
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Sovereign Sales acquisition, was partially offset by higher accounts pavable and other pavables and
accrued Habilities primarily due to the timing of payments.

The following chart illustrates our net cash used in investing activities during the vears ended

June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended June 30,
{Amotnts in thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Additions to property and equipment . .. ... ... oL $(22,155) $ (19,031} $(19.225)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment .. ... ... .. — — 9.945
Acquisition of licenses and disuibutor assets ... ... oo 0L (6,433)  (91,487) (15,055)
Total ..o $(28,588) $(110,518) $(24.335)

For the vear ended June 30, 2008, net cash used in investing activities was $28.6 million, as
compared to 3110.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2007. Thc decrease in net cash used in
investing activitics is primarily a result of $90 million in cash paid in connection with the Sovereign
Sales acquisition in August 2006. Cash used in investing activities for the vear ended June 30, 2008,
includes $6.3 million paid to settle the first installinent of contingent consideration associated with
the Sovereign Sales acquisition, and $22.2 million related to capital expenditures, primarily for
computer hardware and software, wols and molds, in-store counters, and leasehold improvements.

Net cash used in investing activities increascd by $86 million for the year ended June 30, 2007,
as connpared to the vear ended June 30, 2006. The increase in net cash used in investing activities is
primarily a result of $90 million in cash paid in conncetion with the Sovercign Sales acquisition.
Additionally, we realized $10 million of cash proceeds from the sale of our Miami Lakes facility in
the vear ended June 30, 20006,

We currenily expect to incur between $40 million and 345 million in capital expenditures in the
vear ending June 30, 2009, primarily for (i) the implementation of the Oracle financial accounting
and order processing systemn, (ii) in-store counters and displavs and (iii) computer hardware and
sofrware.

For the vear ended June 30. 2008, net cash provided by financing activities was $16.8 million,
as compared 0 $53.1 million for the vear ended June 30, 2007. The cleucaSP in net cash pmwdcd
by financing activities was primarily due to additional I)(_Jl‘i‘OWl]lgm under our credit facility during
fiscal 2007, used to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Sovercign Sales acquisition, partially
offset by additional borrowings under our credit facility during fiscal 2008 to purchase inventory
from Liz Claiborne in connection with our license agreement. During the vear ended June 30. 2008,
we repurchased $7.4 million of our common stock.

Far the vear ended June 30, 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was $53.1 million,
as (()lllpdl’(‘(l to $38 million of net cash used in linancing activities for thf‘ vear ended June 30, 20006.
The increase was primarily due to additional b()rruwmgs under our credit facility used to furld a
portion of the purchase price for the Sovereign Sales acquisition in August 2006 and other payviments
related to the Riviera acquisition in June 2006. Share repurchases totaled $8.5 million and $25.0
million, in the vears ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. See Notes 9 and 14 to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest paid during the vear ended June 30, 2008, included $17.4 million of interest payments
on the 7%% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and $9.5 million of interest paid on the
berrowings under our credit faciliry. Inrerest paid during the year ended lune 30, 2007, included
$17.4 milliou of interest payments on the 7% senior subordinared notes and $11.0 million of
interest paid on the borrowings under our credit facility. Interest paid during the vear ended
June 30, 2006, included $17.4 million of interest payments on the 7%% senior subordinared notes,
swap termination costs of 33.0 million related to the 7%:% senjor subordinated notes and $5.0
million paid on the borrowings under our credit facility.
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Debt and Contractunl Financial Obligations and Comenitments. At June 30, 2008, our long-
term debt and financial obligations and commitnents by due dates were us follows:

Payments 1}ae by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5H More

(Amrounts in thousands) Total 1 Year Years Years Than 5 Years
Long-term deby, including carrent

portion() oo o oo $226.876 § 1,261 8 615 5§ — $225,000
Interest paynicts on tong-term

debt® o000 L e 94,531 17,502 34,888 34,870 7.2065
Operating lease obligations ... ... .. 61.209 16,463 25,668 13,272 5,816
Capital lease obligations .. ...... e 4,154 2,096 2,058 — —
Purchase obligations® .00 0oL 385,172 202,886 068.657  43.629 70,000
Other long-term obligations®G) 16,594 6,490 10,098 - —

B £ $788.530  $246,704 $141,974 $91,777  $308,081

(1) Total scheduled matarities do not include $1.9 million of swap wermination costs that were
recorded as a reduction to long-term debt and are 10 be amortized 10 interest expense over the
remaining life of tie 7%:% senior subordinated notes due 2014.

(2) Consists of interest ar the rate of 7%% per annum on the $225 million aggregate principal
amount of 7%% senior subordinated notes and interest at the rate of 4.15% per annum on the
Riviera Term Note. :

(3) Consists of purchase commitmems for finished goods, raw materials, components, advertising,

seally binding
obligations, including fixed or minimum obligations, and estimates of such obligations subjec
to variable price provisions.

(4) Includes contingem consideration paid 1o Suvereign Sales in July 2008 of $5.3 million and
consideration potentially pavable 1o Riviern of $8.60 million. See Note 12 10 the Notes 10
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5) Excludes $6.0 million of gross unrecognized tax benclits that, if nn realized, would resalt in
cash pavments. We cannot curremly estimate when, or if, the pavments will be due. See Note
13 to the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Future Liquidity and Capital Needs. Our principal future uses of funds are for working
capital requirements, including brand development and marketing expenses, new product launches,
additional brand acquisitions or product distribution arrangements, capiral expenditures and debt
service. In addition, we may use funds to repurchase our common stock and senior subordinated
notes. We have historically financed, and we expect to continue to finance, our needs primarily
through internally generated funds, our credi facility and external financing. We collect cash from
our customers based on our sales to them and their respeective payvment terms.

We have a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of hanks, for which JPMorgan Chase Bank
is the administrative ageut, which generally provides for borrowings on a revolving basis. [n order 10
acconunodate 1he increased working capital requiremems associated with the growth of our
business, on July 21, 2008, the credit facility was amended 10 increase its size from $250 million 10
$325 million, with a $25 million sub limit for letters of credit. Under the terms of the credit facility,
as amended by the July 2008 amendment, we may, at any time, increase the size of the credit
facility up 10 $375 million without entering into a formal amendment requiring the consent of all of

the banks, subject 10 our satisfaction of certain conditions. The eredit facility expires in December
2012

The credit facility is gearanteed by all of our U.S. subsidiarics and is collateralized by a first
priority lien on all of our U.8., Canada and Puerto Rico accounts receivable and U.S. inventory.
Borrowings under the credin facility are limited 10 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 85% of
the appraised net liquidation value of our inventory, as determined pursuant to the 1erms of 1he
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credit facility; provided, however, that pursnant 1o the weems of the luly 2008 wmendment, from
August 15 1o October 31 of each vear our borvowing base is 1emporarily increased by 325 million.
Qur obligations under the credit facility rank senior o our 7¥%% seoior subordinated notes due
2014,

The credit facility has only one financial maintenance covenant, which is a debt service
coverage ratio that must be maintained at not less than 1.1 10 130 average borvowing base capacity
declines 1o less than $25 million ($35 wmillion from December 1 through Mayv 31). No financial
maintenance covenant. was applicable for the vear ended June 30, 2008, Under the terms of the
credit facility, we may pay dividends or repurchase comumon stock il we mainmain borrowing buse
capacity of at least $25 million from June 1 t November 30, und at least $35 million from
December 1 10 May 31, after making the applicable pavment. The credir facility restricis ns from
incurring additional non-trade indebtedness (other than refinancings and certain small amounts of
indebtedness).

Borrowings under the credit portion of the credit fucility bear interest ar a floating rate based on
the “Applicable Margin,” which is determined by reference 10 a specific financial ratio. At our
option, the Applicable Margin may be applicd 10 cither the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
or the prime rate. The reference ratio for determining the Applicable Margin is a debt service
coverage ratio. The Applicable Margin charged on LIBOR loans ranges from 1.00% 10 1.75% and is
0% for prime rate loans, except that the Applicable Margin on the first $25 million of borrowings
from August 15 to October 31 of each vear, while the teiporary increase in our borrowing base is in
effect, is 1.00% higher. As of June 30, 2008, (he Applicable Margin was 1.25% for LIBOR loans and
0% for prime rate loans. The commiunent fee on the unused portion of the eredit facility is 0.25%.
For the vears ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the weighted average annual interest rate on
horrowings under our credit facility was 6.1% and 7.1%, respeciively.

As of June 30, 2008, we had (i) $119.0 million in borrowings and $5.0 million in letters of
credit outstanding under the credin facility, (i) $226.0 million of cligible accoums receivable and
inventories available as collateral ander the crediv facility, and (iii) remaining borrowing availability

of $101.4 million.

As of hie 30, 2008, we had omstanding $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7%:%
senior subordinated notes. The 7%% senior subordinated notes are guarameed by our US.
subsidiaries: DF Enterprises, Inc., FD Management, Inc., Elizabeth Arden International Holding,
Inc., Elizabeth Arden (Financing)., Inc., RDEN Management, Inc. and Elizabeth Arden Travel Reail,
Inc. The indentures pursuant 1o which the 7%% senior subordinated notes were issued provide that
such notes will be our senior subordinated obligations, The 7%:% senior subordinated notes rank
junior to all of our existing and future senior indebtedness, including indebiedness under the credir
facility, and pari passu in right of payvment 10 all of our senior subordinated indebtedness. Interest
on the 7%% senior subordinated nmes is payable semi-annually on February 15 and Angust 15 of
euch vear, The indentures generally permit us (subject to the satisfaction of a fixed charge coverage
ratio and, in certain cases, also a net income test)  incur addidonal indebiedness, pav dividends,
purchase or redeem our common swck or redeem subordinared indebredness. The indentures
generally limit our ability to create liens, merge or transfer or sell assets. The indentures also provide
that the holders of the 7% senior subordinated notes have the option to require us to repurchase
their notes in the event of a change of control involving us (as defined in the indentures).

We believe thar existing cash and cash equivalents, internally generated funds and borrowings
under our credic facility will be sufficient 10 cover debt service, working capital requirements and
capital expenditures for the next twelve months, other than additional working capital requirements
that may result from further expansion of our operations through acquisitions of additional brands,
new product launches or distribution arrangements.




Repurchases of Common Stock.  On November 2, 2005, our board of directors authorized us o
implement a stock repurchase program to repurchase up w $40.0 million of pur common stock
through March 31, 2007. On November 2, 2000, the board of directors authorized the repurchase of
an additional $40.0 million of our common stock under 1he 1erms of our existing stock repurchase
program and extended the term of the siock repurchase program from March 31, 2007 to
November 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2008, we had repurchased 2,273,038 shares of common stock
on the open marker under the stock repurchase program, at an average price of $18.18 per share, at
a cost of $41.3 million, including sales commissions. For the year ended June 30, 2008, we
repurchased 410,869 shares of common stock at an average price of $18.11 per share on the open
market under the stock repurchase program ar a cost of §7.5 million, incluling sales commissions.
The acquisition of these shares by us was accounted for under the treasury method. For the three
months ended June 30, 2008, we did not repurchase any shares of common stock.

We have discussions from time o time with manufacturers of prestige fragrance brands and
with distributors that hold exclusive distribution rights regarding our possible acquisition of
addinonal exclusive manufacturing and/or distribution rights. We currently have no agreements or
commitments with respect to any such acquisition, although we periodically execute routine
agreements (o maintain the confidendality of information obained during the course of discussions
with manufacturers and distributors. There is no assurance that we will be able to negotiate
successfully for anv such future acquisitions or that we will be able to obtain acequisition financing or
additional working capital financing on satisfactory terms for further expansion of our operatcions.

New Accounting Standards
Disclosures about Derivative Instriments and Hedging Activities

In March 2008, the FASB issucd Statement of Financial Accoumting Standards No. 161,
Disclosures abowt Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (*SFAS 1617). The new standard is
intended 10 improve financial reporting about derivative instrumems and hedging activities by
requiring enhunced disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantilative
disclosures about fair value amounts of guins and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures
about credit-risk-related contingem features in derivative agreements, SFAS 101 is effective for us
in our fiscal quarter beginning January 1, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact of SFAS
1071 on our consolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, 1he FASB issued Starcment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141
(revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS 141R significantly changes the
accounting for business combinations in a pumber of arcas including the treatment of contingent
consideration, pre-acquisition contingencies, transaction costs, restructuring costs and income 1axes.
SFAS 141R will be effective for ns on July 1, 2009, We are currently evaluating the impact of SFAS
141R on our consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2000, the FASB issued Statcment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (YSFFAS 157%), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measuremems. In February 2008, the FASB issued Swaff Position FSP
157-2 which delaved 1he effective dare of SFAS 157 for those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed ar fair value in the financial statements on a recurring
basis until fiscal vears beginning after November 15, 2008. With respect 1o financial assets and
liabilities, SFAS 157 will be effective for us on July 1. 2008. For nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, SFAS 157 will he effective for us on July 1, 2009. We are currentdy
evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 on our consolidated financiat statements.
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The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (*SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 permits
entities o choose 10 measure at fair value many financial instrurents and certain other items thae
are not currently required to be measured at fair value. This option is only available for select
financial instruments and is irrevocable once applied. SFAS 159 will be effective for us beginning
July 1, 2008. The adoprion of SFAS 159 will not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statemernts as we do not anticipate using the fair value option.

Forward-Looking Information and Factors That May Affect Future Results

The Securities and Exchange Commission encourages companies to disclose forward-looking
information so that investors can better understand a company’s future prospects and make
informed invesument decisions. This Annual Report on Form 10-K and other written and oral
statements that we make from time to time contain suech forward-looking statements that set out
anticipated results based on management’s plans and assuwptions regarding future events or
performance. We have wried, wherever possible, 1o identify such statements by using words such as
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan.” “believe,” *will” and similar
expressions in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance. In
limrlicul;u‘, these include  statements relating to future actions, |1|'us])f:cti\'{) pr()duct.s,, future
performanee or resulis of current and anticipated producis, sales efforis, expenses, inlerest rates,
foreign exchange rates, the outcome of contingencics, such as legal proceedings, and financial
resulis. A list of factors thar could cause our actual resnlis of operations and financial condition 10
differ materially is set forth below, and these factors are discussed in greater detail under Item 1A —
“Risk Factors™ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

e factors affecting our reladonships with our customers or our customers’ businesses,
inchuling the absence of contracts with customers, our customers® financial condition, and
changes in the retail, fragrance and cosmetic industries, such as the consolidation of
retailers and the associated closing of retail doors as well as retailer inventory control
practices, including bur not limited to levels of inventory carried at poine of sale and
practices used to control inventory shrinkage;

* our reliance on third-party manufacturers for subscanmially all of our owned and licensed
products ard our absence of contracts with suppliers;

* delavs in shipments, inventory shortages and higher costs of production due to the loss of or
disruption in our distribution facilities or at key third party manufacturing or fulfillment
facilities thar manufacture or provide logistic services for onr products;

*  our ability 1o respond in a timely manner (o changing consumer preferences and purchasing
patterns and other international and domestic conditions and events that impact consumer
confidence and demand, such as economic downturns;

¢ our ability 10 protect our imellectual property rights;

* the success, or changes in the timing or scope of, our new product launches, adverising and
merchandising programs;

* the quality, safety and efficacy of our products;

s the impact of competitive products and pricing;

* risks of imernational operations, including forcign currency fluctuations, hedging activities,
ecomomic and political consequences of 1errorist. attacks, and political instability in certain

regions of the world;

* our ability to implement our growth strategy and acquire or license additional brands or
sceure additional distribution arrangements, to successfully and cost-effectively integrare
acyuired businesses or new brands, such as the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands, and to
linance our growth strategy and our working capital requiretnents;




» our level of indebtedness, debt service obligations and restrictive covenants in our revolving
eredit facility and the indentare for onr 7% senior subordinated notes;

» changes in product mix to less profitable producis;
¢ the retention and availability of key personnel;

¢ changes in the legal, regulatory and political envirorment that impact, or will impact, our
business, including changes to customs or trade regulations or accounting standards or
critical acconunting estimates;

e the success of, and costs associared with, our Global Efficicncy Re-engincering initiative and
related restructuring plan; and

* aher unanticipated risks and uncerainties.

We caution that the factors described herein and other factors could cause our actual results of
operations and financial condition 10 differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
statements we make and that invesiors should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such
statement is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to
reflect events or cirenmstances after the dote on which such stiement is made or 10 reflect the
oceurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances. New factors emerge from time to
time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of such factors. Furiher, we cannot assess the impace
of cach such factor on our results of operations or the extent to which any factor, or combination of
factors, mav cause actual results 10 differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking
slatements.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2008, we had $119 million in borrowings owstanding under our revolving credit
facility. Borrowings under our revolving credit facility are seasonal, with peak horrowings typically
in the months of Seprember; October and November. Borrowings under the credir facility ave subject
10 variable rates and, accordingly, our carnings and cash flow will be affected by changes in interest
rates. Based upon our average borrowings under our revolving credit facility during the year ended
June 30, 2008, and assuming there had been a two percentage point (200 basis poims) change in
thie average interest vane for these borrowings. it is estimated that our intercst expensé for the vear
ended June 30, 2008 would have increased or decreased by $3.1 million. See Note 9 (o (he Notes 1o
Consolidated Financial Siatements.

Foreign Currency Risk

We sell our products in approximately 90 countries around the world. During the vears ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 we derived approximately 40% and 37%. respectively, of our net sales
from our international operations. We conduct our international operations in a varicty of dilferent
countries and derive our sales in various currencies including the Euro, British pound, Swiss franc,
Canadian dollar und Australian dollar, as well as the U.S. dollar. Most of vur skin care and cosmetic
products are procuced in a third-party manufacturing facility locared in Roanoke, Virginia. Our
operations may be subject 10 volatility becanse of currency changes, inflation changes and changes
in political and cconomic conditions in the countries in which we operaie. With respect ta
international operations, our sales, cost of goads sold and expenses are typically denominated in a
combination of local currency and the U.S. dollar. Our results of operations are reported in U.S.
dollars. Fluctuations in currency rates can affect our reported sales, margins, operating costs and the
anticipated settlement. of our foreign denominated receivables and pavables. A weakening of the
foreign currencies in which we generate sales relative to the currencies in which our costs are
denominated, which is primarily the U.S. dollar, may adversely affect our ability to meet our
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obligations and could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows used 0 fund working

mpltdl Our competitors wmay or may not he subject to the same {luctuations in currency rates, .md

our competitive position could be affected by these changes. As of lune 30, 2008, our subsidiaries

outside the United Srates held 27% of our total assets. The cumulative effect of translating halance

sheet accourns from the functional currency into the U.S. dollar at current exchange rates is included
1 “Accumulated vther comprehensive income™ in our consolidated balance sheets.

As of June 30, 2008, we had notional amounts of 63.3 million Euros and 38.2 million British
pounds under foreign currency contracis that expire between Julv 31, 2008 and June 30, 2009 10
reduce the exposure of our forelrrn subsidiary revenues to fluctuations in currency rates. As of
June 30, 2008, we had notional amounts of 10.1 million Canadian dollars under furu«rn Currency
contracts that expire between September 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009 to reduce the exposure of our
Canadian subsidiary’s cost of sales to flnctuations in currency rates. We have designated cach
qualifying foreign currency contract as a cash flow hedge. The gains and losses of these contracts
will only be recognized in earnings in the period in which the contracts expire. The realized loss, net
of taxes, recognized during the vear cnded June 30, 2008 from the setilement of contracts, was $8.5
million. At June 30, 2008, the unrealized loss, net of 1axes, associated with these contracts of $9.5
million is inclnded in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income,

When appropriate, we also enter into and setle foreign currency contracts for Euros, British
pounds and Camadian dollars to reduce the exposure of our forcign subsidiaries” net balance sheets
to fluctuations in foreign currency vates. As of June 30, 2008, llu,m were no such foreign currency
contracts owtstanding. The realized loss, net of taxes, recognized from coutracts in place during the
vear ended June 30, 2008 was $2.6 million.

We do not utilize foreign exchange contracts for trading or speculative purposes. There can be
no assurance that our hedging operations or other _\change rate practices, if any, will eliminate or
substanuially reduce risks associated with fluctuaring exchange rates.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Elizabeth Arden, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Report on Consolidated Financial Siatements

We prepared and are responsible for the consolidaied financial statements that appear in the
Aunual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended e 30, 2008 of Elizabeth Arden, Inc. (the
“Company™). These consoliduted financial statements are in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and therefore, include amounts hased on
informed judgments and estimates. We also accept responsibility for the preparation of other
financial information that is included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maimtaining adequate
internal conwrol over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The Companv's internal control over financial reporting is
designed w provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policics and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records than,
tn reasonable detail, accurarely and fairly reflect the transactions and dispesitions of the assets of the
Compauy; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and {iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control aver financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of anv evaluation of effectiveness 1o future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policics or procedures may deteriorate. Management of the Company
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2008. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0) in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework. Based on our assessment using those criteria, management conchided that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounmiing firm that audited
the consolidated financial statemems that appear in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for 1he vear ended June 30, 2008, has issued an unqualified attestation on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, as siated in their report which is included
herein.

I£. Scott Beattie Stephen ). Smith
Chairman, President. and Chicf Excentive Vice President and Chiefl Financial Officer
Execcutive Officer

Seprember 12, 2008




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Elizabeth Arden, Ine,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Elizabeth Arden, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three vears in the period ended June 30, 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
thaterial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, based on
criteria established in frternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Cominittee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial srarements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal conurol over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Report of Management appearing under ltemn 8. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversizht Board {United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the andits to vbtain reasonable assurance abou whether the
financial statements are free of marterial misstatement and whether effective internal conrrol over
financial reporting was mainained in all material respects. Qur audits of the financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating 1he oversll financial statement presentation, Ounr audic of internal control over
financial reporting included obaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, und testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based ou the assessed risk. Our awdits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed 10 provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with gencrally aceepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal conirol over financial reporting includes those policics and procedures that (i) pertain o the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and
(i11) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or umely detcction of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
derect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject 1o the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of cornpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
September 12, 2008




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except par value)

As of
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... .. ... o oo S 20.396 $ 30,287
Accounts receivable, net ... 217,446 214,972
Inventories . ... ... ... e 408,563 380,232
Deferred income taxes ... ... .o 14,785 17.427
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ........... .. ... ... 24,607 22,675
Total current assets .. ... .. o 691,797 665,593
Property and equipment, net . ... oL o oo oo 52,148 42,471
Exclusive brand licenses, trademarks and intangibles, nev . ... ... .. 221,253 224,611
Debt financing costs, mer ..o i 4,952 5777
Other . . e e 584 723
Total aS5C1S .« . ottt e 070,734 $939.175

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current. Liabilities

Short-termn debt ... $119,000 S 97.040
Accounts pavable—wade ... oo oL 170,440 180,532
Other pavables and acerued expenses ... ... ... oL o 05,233 88,131
Current portion of long-term debe ... ..o oo oo L 1,261 1.125

Taral current liabilities . ........ ... ... .. .. .. . ... ... 385,934 367.428

Long-rerm Liabiliries

Long-termdebr ... ... oo 223.696 224,530
Deferred income taxes and other liabilites ... ... ... ... ... .. 24,503 26,290

Toral tong-term liabilites . ... ... ... ... ... 248.199 250,820

Toral Kabilities .. .. ... ... . . . . .. 634,133 618,248

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 11)
Sharcholders” Equity
Commoen siock, .01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized:

31,157,057 and 30,473,294 shares issued, respectively .. ... ... 312 305
Additional paid-incapital ... .. oo o oo 280,973 265,245
Retained earnings . ... . o o 105,576 85,675
Treasury stock (2,475,129 and 1.862,169 shares at cost,

respectively) oL (45,768) (33,879
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income ... 0L (4,492) 3.581

Total sharcholders’ equity . ... oo o 336,601 320,927

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ... 0.0 $970.734 $939.175

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidared Financial Statetnents.
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ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Netsales ..o o e 51,141,075 $1,127.476  §954,550
Cost of sales (excludes depreciation of $4,245, $3.640 and
82,478, respectivelv) . ... o 674,957 666,157 550,478
Grossprofit ... ... .. i 400,118 461,319 404,072
Operating cxpenses
Selling, general and administrative . ... ............. 392,320 362,795 313,706
Depreciation and amortzation . ... ... 0 L 24,768 24,518 22,109
Total operating expenses ... ... . i 417,088 387313 335,815
Income from operations ... .. ... . o oL 49,030 74,0006 68,257
Other expense
Interest expense ... . o i 27.505 29,198 23,424
Debt extinguishment charges ... .. .. Lo oL — — 58
Other expense, net .. ... . . i 27,595 29.198 24182
Income before income taxes . ............ ... .. ... ... 21,435 44,808 44,075
Provision for income faxes .. ... ... .. . ... 1,534 7,474 11,281
NECIICOIMIE L oot e et e eee e S 19,901 37.334 $ 32,794
Earnings per common share:
Basic .. .o e ol 0.71 1.35 § 115
Diluted . ..o % 0.08 1.30 1.10
Weighted average number of common shares:
Basic ... ... 27,981 27.607 28,628
Dilwted ... . 29,303 28,826 29,818

The accompanving Notes arc an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
{Amounts in thousands)

Accumutated
M A([l’(lt::;:l::l! Retained M Lom ?rll!ll::n.-aim llj,'::(l':l::-::;i Shu:v'l:lc‘-llldcr.-'
Shares Amount  Capital  Earnings Shares  Amount negme Compensation Equity
Balance at Julv 1,2005 .. ... ... 20,257 293 §249919815547 — 8§ — $ 5,730 $(12,289)  $259,200

Chunge in accounting principle for

adoption of SFAS 123R

Share-based payment awards

(SeeNote 1) ..o e - - (12,150} — - - — 12,289 139
Issuance of commeon stock upan

exercise of stock options .. ..., 278 3 3,100 — - - — — 3,142
Issuance of common stock for

employee stk purchase plan. ... 101 1 1.663 - - - — —_ 1.664
Lommon stock issued toan

independent contractor ... oL - - 0678 - — - — — 678
[ssuance of resiricted sinck, ner of

forfeitnres ... ool 233 2 2y - - — - - -
Ameortization of share-based

awards ... Lo — — 9,348 — — — — — 9.1348
Repurchase of common stock ... . .. - - — — (1.338) (25,33Y) - — (25.339)
Comprehensive income:

Netineome ... oo - - - 3270 - - — - 32,70

Foreign currency trunslation

adjustiments ... - - - — — - (3435) — (:335)

Disclosure of reclassification

wnounts, net of txes (8%

1nx rate):
Unrealized hedging loss arising

during the period ... ..o - - - — - (1.436) - {1,430)
Less: reclassification adjustment

for hedging gains included in

NEt NGOG ... - - - — — — (1,978) - (1,978)

Net unrealized cash flow
hedging loss ............. ... - - - — — - (3.414) — (3.414)
Total comprehensive income ... . ... - - - 32791 - - (3.749) e 29 045
Balance at July 1,2006 .. ........... 20869 $299  $252 565 848,341 (1,338) §(25,339)  $ 1,981 5 — 3277 847

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statemens.
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ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY — (Continued)
{Amounts in thousands)

. Aceumulnted o~
__—Cnmnmn Stoek ‘\f’ﬂli:;‘-}il::ll Retnined _____'l'rca:-ur_\' Stock Com 0:-‘1'5;" Kive Shur:',(ljl'l?lldurs'
Shares Amount  Capital  Earoings Shares  Amount |ll)l(‘(ltll(! Equity
Balunce ac July 1,2006 ................. 29,869 3299 5232565 348341 (1.338) $(25.339) 51,981 $277.847
Issuanee of common stack npon
excrcise of stock options ... 260 3 3,109 - - — - 3.112
lssuanee of common stock for emploves
stock purchase plan ... L 03 1 1,445 - - - — 1,446
Issuance of restricied stock, net of
forfeitures . ... oL 251 2 (2) - - — - -
Amortization of share-based awards ... - - 8,171 - - - - 8,171
Repurchase of commom swock ... L. - - - - (524)  (8.540) - (8.540)
Other oo - - (+3) - — — - . (43)
Conprehensive income:
Netinemne ..o - - - 17334 — — - 37.334
Foreign currency trmslation
adjustments .., oL — — — — — — 2577 2.577

Disclosure of reclassifteation

amounts, uet of taxes (8%

tax rate):
Unrealized hedging gains arising

during the period ..o oL — — - - — — {3,337) (3.337)
Less: reclassification adjustment for

hedging losses included in et

HICOMIE L. - - - — — - 2,360 2,360

Net unrealized cazsh flow

hedging loss ..ol - - - - — — 7 (‘)7;!)
Totat comprehensive income ... — - - 37,334 — — 1.600 38,934
Balance at July 1, 2007 ... ... .0 0L 30,473 3305 5205245 385,675 (1.862) $(33.879) 83,581 §320,927

The accompanving Noies are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY — {Continued)
{Amounts in thousands)

Accumulated
Commuon Stock Additional Other Total

M R Treasury Stock
Paid-in  Retained Jury St

Comprehensive Sharcholders®

Shares Amount Cupital  Earnings Shures  Amount  Income (loss) Equity
Balance at Juby 1, 2007 ... ..., 30473 $305 $205.245 § 85,675 (1.862)5(83.879)  § 3,581 $:320,927

Issuanrce of eomimon stock upon

exercise of stock options .. ..., ... 524 5 6.823 —  {202) {4.450) — 2378
Issuance of common stock for emplovee

stoek purchase plan .. ..o 00 110 1 1,718 — - - — 1719
Issuance of restricted stock, net of

forfeinures ... oo Al 1 (1} — - - — -
Amortization of share-based awards ...~ - 7183 - - - — 7.133
Repurchase of commeon stk ..o — - - - (#11) (7.8 — (7439)
Other ... o — - 55 - - - — 55
Comprehensive income:

Netineome - ... oo - — — 19,901 - — — 19,901

Foreign currency translation

adjustments ..o L L - - — - — — 95 95

Disclosure of reclassilication

amonnts, nee of waxes (10%

tax rate):
Unrealized hedging loss arising

during the peviod .00 - - - - - — (16,659} (16,659)
Less: veclassification adjostment for

helging losses included i net

HICOINE o c s - - - - - - 8,491 8,491
Net unrealized cash flow
hedging loss ... — — - - - - (8.168) (8.168)
Total comprehensive loss ... ... - — - 19901 — - (8.073) 11,828
Balanee at June 30,2008 ..., ...... 31,157 $312 £280,973 §105,576 (2,475)3(45.768)  §(4,492) 336,601

The accompanying Notes are an imegral part of the Consolidated Finuncial Statemenms.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Endt.:(l June 30,
2008 2007 2006

Operating activities:
NELTHCOMIE e e e e e e e e e e e e e e S19.901 § 37,334 § 32,794

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities: ... ... L Lo oL
Depreciation and amortization ... ... oo oL L. 24,768 24.518 22,109
Amortization of senior note offering, credit facility and
SWAp (ernination costs .. ... oo 1.225 1.324 1.214
Amortization of share-based awards . ... ... ... ... ... 7.133 8.171 9.348
Cuomulative effect of a change in accounting for share-
based pavmentawards ... o 0o oL — - 139
Debt extinguishment charges ... o000 000 0 00 — - 758
Delerred income taxes .. ... ... o oL {5.033) 2,136 7,565
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions: . .... ... ..
Increase in accounts receivable ..o o L 0 L 0L (2.474) (35,556} (30.828)
{Increase) decrease ininventories .. .. .. ... L., {28.331)  (44.945) 13,864
Iicrease in prepaid expenses and other assets ... ... ... .. (2.597) (1.193) (3,702)
= (Deerease) increase in accounts payable ... o oo (7.927) 44,360 26,458
og [nerease (decrease) in other pavables and acerned
ud EXPCISES L o v it ettt e 481 20,547 {14,160)
60 T 491 2,120 (283)
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ........ 8,037 58816 05,276
Investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment ... ..o oo oL (22,155)  (19.031) (19,225)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment ... ... — - 9,945
Acquisition of licenses and other assets ... ... . ... .. (6,433) (91.487) (15,055)
. Net cash used in investing activities ........... ... (28,588) (110.518) (24,335)
| Financing activities:
Proceeds from (paviments on) short-term deb .. ..o o0 21,360 57.640  (7,700)
| Payinens on long-term debe .o oo oo {1.,227) (538)  (9.321)
Repurchase of common stock 000 oo oo (7.439)  (8,540) {25,339)
Proceeds Trom the exercise of stock options .. ............ .. 2.378 3.112 3112
Proceeds from emplovee stock purchase plan.. ... ... 0. .. 1,719 1,440 1.664
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ... 16,791 53,120 (37.584)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . .. (131} 403 (207)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalems ..o 00 0. (3.891) 1,621 3.150
Cash and cash cquivalents ai beginning of vear ............. ... 30,287 28.460 25,316
Cash and cash equivalents atend of vear . ... ... oo o oL $ 26,390 S 30,287 § 28,460
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
luterest paid during the vear .. .00 000000 o oo oL § 27,082 8 28,147 § 25,572
lucome taxes paid during the vear ..o o000 oL $ 10,182 8 2770 8 5.659

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Business Activify.  Elizabeth Arden, Inc. {the *Company” or “our™) is a
global prestige beauty products company thar sells fragrances, skin care and cosmetic products 10
retailers in the United States and approximately 90 countries imernationally.

Basis of Consolidation.  The consolidated financial statemens include the accounts of the
Company’s wholly-owned domestic and international subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts andl transacrtions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates.  The preparation of the consolidated financial starements in conformity with
generally accepred accoundng principles requires management 1o mmake estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of asscis and liabilitdes and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statcments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporiing period. Actual results could differ fromr those estimates. Significant estimates
include expected useful lives of brand licenses, (rademarks, other intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment, allowances for sales returns and markdowns, allowances for doubiful accounis
receivable, provisions for inveniory ubsolescence, and income 1axes and valuation reserves. Changes
in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates, which are recorded in the period in which
they become known.,

Revenue Recognition.  Sales are recognized when title and the risk of loss transfers to the
customer, the sale price is fixed or determinable and collectibility of 1he resulting receivable is
probable. Sales are recorded net of estimated returns, markdowns and other allowances, which are
granted 10 certain of the Company’s customers and subject 10 the Company’s authorization and
approval. The provision for sales returns and markdowns represents management’s estimate of
future returns and markdowns based on historical and projected experience amd considering current
external factors and market conditions. During the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, one
customer accounted for an aggregate of 15%, 18% and 13%, respectively, of the Company’s ner
sales.

Foreign Currency Translation. 'The financial swatements of the Company’s non-US.
subsidiaries are translated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation (“SFAS No. 527). SFAS No. 52 distinguishes
between translation adjustments and foreign currency transactions. All assets and liabilities of
foreign subsidiaries and affiliates thar do not wtilize the U.S. dollar as its funcrional currency are
translated at vear-end rates of exchange, while sales and expenses are translated ar monthly
weighted average rates of exchange. Unrealized translation gains or losses are reported as foreign
currency  translation  adjustments  through other compreliensive loss or income included in
shareholders’ equity. Such adjustments resulted in unrealized gains of $0.1 million and $2.6 million,
and an unrealized loss of $0.3 million, during 1he vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 20006,
respectively. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are recorded in the foreign
subsidiaries’ statements of operations. Such gains or losses totaled losses of $2.2 million and $2.1
million and a gain of $2.9 million in the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.  Cash and cash equivalents include cash and interest-bearing
deposits at banks with an original maturity date of three months or less.

Allowances for Doubtfid Accounts Receivable. The Company maintains allowances for
doubtful accounis to cover uncollectible accounts receivable and evaluates its accounts receivable 1o
desermine if they will ultimately be collected. This evaluation includes significant jodgments and
estintutes, including an analysis of receivables aging and a customer-by-customer review for large
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accounts. If; for examnple, the financial condition of the Companv’s customers detcriorates resulting
in an impairment of their ability o pay. additional allowances may be required, resuldng in a
charge 10 income in the period in which the derermination was made.

Ineentories.  Iuventories are stated at the lower of cost or marker. Cost is principally
determined using the weighted average method. See Note 6.

Property: and Fapupment, and Depreciation.  Property and equipment are stated at cost.
Expenditures for major improvemems and additions are recorded to the asser accounts, while
replacements, maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend the lives of the respective
assets, are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets
using the straight-line method. When fixed assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the accounts are
relicved of the original cost of the assets and the related accumulated depreciation and any resulting
profit or loss is credited or charged 10 income. See Note 7.

Erclusive Brand Licenses, Trademarks, and Intangibles.  Exclusive of inrangible assets that
have indefinite uscful lives that are no longer being amortized, the Company’s intangible assets are
being amortized using the straighi-line method over their estimated useful lives. See Note 8.

Indefinite-Lived and Long-Lived Assets. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asscts are
reviewed annually for impairment under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. The idemification and measurement of impairment of goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible asscts involves the estimation of the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset
or the applicable reporting wnit in the case of goodwill. The estimates of fuir value are based on the
best information available as ol the date of the assessment and primarily incorporate management
assumptions about discounted expected future cash flows. Fulure cash flows can be affected by
changes in industry or market conditions or the rate and extent to which anticipated svnergies or
cost savings are realized with newly acquired entities. See Nowe 8.

Long-lived asscts are reviewed on an ongoing basis for impairment based on a comparison of
the carrying value of such assets against the nndiscounted finure cash flows. Il an impairment is
idenified, the carrving value of the assct is adjusted 10 estimated fair value. No such adjustments
were recorded for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Senior Nofe Offering Costs and Credit Facility Costs.  Debt issuance costs and transaction fees,
which are associated with the issuance of senior notes and the revolving credit facitity, are being
amortized (and charged to inerest expense) over the term of the related notes or the term of the
credit facility. In any period in which the senior notes are redecmed, the nnamonized debt issuance
costs and transaction fees relating to the notes being redeemed are expensed. See Note 10

Cost. of Sales.  Included in cost of sales are the cost of producis sold, the cost of gift with
purchase items provided 10 customers, rovalty costs related 10 patented technology or formulations,
warchousing, distribution and supply  chain costs, The major components of warchousing,
distribution and supply chain costs include salary and related benefit costs for emplovees in the
warehousing, distribution and supply chain areas and facility reluted costs in these arcas.

Selling, General and Administrative Costs.  Included in selling, gencral and administrative
expenses are salary and related benefit costs of the Company’s emplovees in the finance, information
technology, legal, hwman resources, sales and marketing areas, facility related costs of the
Compuany’s administrative funciions, costs paid to consultanis and third party providers for relared
services, rovaly costs related o trademarked names or images, and advertising and promotion costs
not paid directly 1o the Company’s customers.
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Advertising and Promotionad Costs.  Advertising and  promotional costs paid directly to
customers for goods and services provided (primarily co-op advertising and certain direct sclling
costs) are expensed as incurred and are recorded as a reduction of sales. Advertising and
promotional costs not paid directly to the Company’s customers are expensed as incurred and
recorded as a component of cost of goods sold (in 1he case of free goods given to customers) or
selling, general and  administrative  expenses.  Advertising and  promotional  costs  totated
approximately $297.8 million, $276.0 million and $267.3 million, during the vears ended June 30,
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Advertising and promotional cosis includes promotions, direct
selling, co-op advertising and media placement.

Income Tuxes.  The provision for income taxes is the tax pavable or refundable for the peried
plus or minus the change during the period in deferred 1ax assets and labilities and certain other
adjustments. The Company provides for deferred taxes under the liability method. Under such
method, deferred taxes are adjusted for 1ax rare changes as they occur. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are compured annually for differences between the financial stuemenm and 1ax bases
of assers and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amoums in the furure hased on
enacted tax laws and rares applicable 10 the periods in which the differences are expected 10 alfcer
taxahle income. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if i is more likely than nm
that these items will either expire before the Company is able 1o realize their bhenefit, or thar futare
deductibility is uncertain,

In accombunce with the Financial Accounting  Siandards  Board  (*FASB®)  Financial
Imerpreiation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 487}, the Company recognizes in its consolidated financial statements the
impact of a wax position if it is more likely than not that such position will be sustained on audit
based on its technical merits, While the Company believes that its assessments of whether its 1ax
positions arc inore likely than not 1o he sustained are reasonable, each assessment is subjective and
requires the use of signiflicant judgmems. As a result, one or more of such assessments may prove
ultimarely to be incorrect, which conld result in a change to ner income.

Accumutated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income.  Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)
income includes, in addition 10 net income or net loss, unrealized gains and losses excluded from the
consalidated statements of operations and recorded directly into a separate section of shareholders’
equity on the consolidated balance sheet. These unrealized gains and losses are referred 10 as o1her
comprehensive (loss) income items. The Company’s accumulaied other comprehensive (loss) inconie
shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheet ar June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, consists of forcign
currency translation adjustments, which are nos adjusted for income taxes since they relne to
indefinite invesunents in non-U.S. subsidiarics, and the wnrealized (losses) gains, net of taxes,
related 1o the Company’s foreign cnrrency contracts, respectively.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss} income as of June 30, 2006, 2007
and 2006, were as {ollows:

Year Ended June 30,

{nounts in thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments ... .. e 85041 34940 52,309
Unrealized hedging loss, necof taxes ... ..o o oo (9.533)  (1.365)  (388)

Acenmulated other comprehensive (loss) income . ... oo oo oL S(4.492) 3,581 351,981
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments.  The Company’s finuncial instruments include accounts
receivable, accounts pavable, currency forward contracis, short-term debt and long-term debr. See
Note 10 for the fair value of the Company’s senior subordinated notes. The fair value of all other
financial instruments was now materially different than-their carrving value as of June 30, 2008, and

June 30, 2007.

Hedge Contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, ("SFAS 133%) as amended, the Company has designated each foreign currency contract
entercd into as of June 30, 2008, as a cash flow hedge. Unrealized gains or losses, net of taxes,
associated with these contracts are ineluded in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income on
the halance sheet. Gains and losses will only be recognized in earnings in the period in which the
CONLracts cxpire.

Share-Based Compensation.  All share-bascd payments 1o employees, including the grants of
emplovee stock options, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair
values, but unly to the exten that vesting is considered probable. Compensation cost for awards that
vest will not be reversed if the awards expire without being exercised. The fair value of stock options
is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the market-based
restricted stock awards is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model, and 1he fair value of all
other restricted stock awards is based on the c¢losing price of the Company’s common stock, $.01 par
value (“Comunon Stock™) on the date of grant. Compensation cosis for awards are amortized using
the straight-line method. Option pricing model input assumptions such as expecied term, expected
volatility and risk-free interest rate impact the fair value estimate. Further, the forfeiture rate
impacts the amoumt of aggregate compensation. These assumptions are subjective and generally
require significant analysis and judgment o develop. When estimating fair value, some of the
assumptions are based on or determined from external data and other assumptions may be derived
from the Company’s historical experience with share-based arrangements. The appropriate weight to
place on historical experience is a matter of judginem, based on relevant facts and circumsiances.

The Company relies on its historical experience and posi-vesied termination activity to provide
data for estimating expected term for nse in determining the fair value of s stock options. The
Company currently estitnates its stock volatiliy by considering historical stock volatility experience
and other kev factors. The risk-free interest rate is the implied vield carrently available on U.S,
Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining (erin equal o the expected term used as the input to
the Black-Scholes model. The Company estimates forfeitures using its historical experience, which
will be adjusted over the requisite service period based on the extent to which aciual forfeitures
differ, or are expected 1o differ, from such estimates. Because of the significant amount of judgment
used in these calculations, it is reasonably likely that circumstances mayv cause the estimate to
change. If, for example, actual forfeitures are lower than the Company’s estimate, additional charges
10 net incomne may be required.
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NOTE 2. Earnings Per Share

Reclassifications.  To conform 10 the vear ended June 30, 2008 presemation, certain
reclassifications were made 10 the prior vears’ Consolidated Financial Statements and the
accompanying footnotes.

Basic income per share is computed by dividing the ner income by the weighted average shares
of the Company’s omsianding Common Stock. The caleulation of income per diluted share is similar
to basic income per share except that the denominator includes porentially dilutive Common Stock,
such as stock options and non-vested restricted stock. The following table represents the
COll]pllrﬂtiOll (]r Cal'[lillgs ])(:I' S|mrt::

Year Ended June 30,

{Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006
Basic
Netineonie ... ... $19.901 $37.334 $32.794
Weighted average shares outstanding . .......... o oL 27.981 27.607 28,0628
Net income per basic share ..o 0 o oo oo $ 071 % 135 § 1.15
Diluted
Nl TGO« ot et e et e e e e e e e e e $19.901 $37.334 532,794
Weighted average basie shares owstanding .. ..o oo 27,981 27,007 28,028
Potential common shares —treasury method o000 000000000 1.322 1.219 1,190
Weighted average shares and potential diluted shares .. ... .. 29303 28,826 29.818
Net income per diluted share ..o o oo $ 068 5 130 5 1.10

The following table shows the number of shares of Common Stock subject 10 options and
restricted stock awards that were outstanding for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
which were not included in the net income per diluted share caleulation because to do so would have
been anti-dilutive:

Year Ended June 30.
2008 2007 2006

Numberof shares ... .. ... .. .. . . . ... ... . 1,117,193 1,142,509 829.734

NOTE 3. Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2007, the Company commenced a comprehensive review of its global business
processes to re-engineer its extended supply chain, logistics and transaction processing systems. In
May 2008, the Company aunounced a decision 10 accelerate the re-engineering of its extended
supply chain functions as well as the realignment of other parts of its organization 10 better support
its new business processes. This initiative includes a migration to a shared services model 1o simplify
transaction processing by consolidating the Company’s global transaction processing functions and
the implementation of a new financial accounting and order processing svstem.
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As a result, the Company has implemented a plan that will result in restructuring and one-time
expenses, including severance, relocation, recruiting and remporary stalfing expenditures roraling
approximately $12 10 $14 million through hune 30, 2070, Approximately $0.7 willion of these
expenses were incurred during the vear ended June 30, 2008, Additionally, uarelated ro this plan,
during fiscal 2008 1the Company incurred approximately §2.3 million of restructuring expenses
related o the reorganization of certain of its departments. Restructuring charges incurred during the
vears ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, were not significant.

The restruciuring expenses discussed above are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of income have not been atributed (o any of the
Company’s reportable segments and are included in unallocated corporate expenses as described in
Note 18. At June 30, 2008, ihe Company had a restructuring hability of $0.4 million.

NOTE 4. New Accounting Standards
Disclosures about Derivative Instriments and Hedging Activities

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statememt of Financial Accounting Srandards No. 161,
Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (*SFAS 1617}, The new standard is
intended 10 improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by
requiring enhanced disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts of gains and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures
about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative agreements. SFAS 101 is effective for the
Company in its fiscal quarter beginning lanuary 1, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of SFAS 161 on its consolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statemenc of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141
{revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R7). 5FAS 141R significany changes the
accounting for husiness combinations in a number of areas including the treaument of contingent
consideration, pre-acquisition contingencies, transaction costs, restructuring costs and income taxes,
SIFAS 141R wilt be effective for the Company on July 1, 2009, The Company is currently evaluaring
the impact of SFAS 141R onits consolidated financial statements,

Fair Value Measurements

In Seprember 2006, the FASB issucd Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in accordance with generally aceepied accounting principles;, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements, In Febroary 2008, the FASB issued Siaff Posidon FSP
157-2 which delaved the effective date of SFAS 157 for those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liahilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring
basis until fiscal years beginuing after November 15, 2008, With respect to financial asscts and
liabilities, SFAS 157 will be effective for the Company on July 1, 2008. For nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilitics, SFAS 157 will be effective for the Company on July 1, 2009. The Company
is currcntly evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 on its consolidated financial statements.
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The Fair Value Option for Financioad Assets and Financial Liabilitios
(i

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 permiis
entiries to choose to measure at fair value many financial instriments and certain other items tha
| are not currenty required 1o be measured at fair value. This option is only available for sclec
| financial instruments and is irrevocable once applied. SFAS 159 will be effective for the Company
beginning July 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS 159 will not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, as the Company does not anticipate using the fair
value option.

NOTE 5.  Accounts Receivable, Net

The following table details 1he provisions and allowances established for potential losses from
uncollectible acconnts receivable and estimated sales returns in the normal course of husiness:

Year Ended June 30,

{hrmorents in thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Allowance for Bad Debu:
Beginning halance ... .. ..o oo $ 4,023 § 4278 5§ 4718
Provision .. ... ... e 1.402 718 1,929
Write-offs, netof recoveries . ..o oo oo ool oL (023} {973}  (2.369)
Endingbalanee ... oo oo oo § 4502 8§ 4023 5 4,278
Allowance for Sales Rewnrns:
Beginning balance .. ... oo o oo $12,120 § 9511 5§ 7,179
Provision ... ... . e 51,191 50,126 39,421
Actual returs oL L (51,743) (47,511} (37,089)
Ending balanee ... ... oo o oo S 11,574 $12.126 3 9511

NOTE 6, Inventories

The components of inventory were as follows:

June 30,

(Amtonris in thousands} 2008 2007

Raw materials ... 8§ 94500 $ 01,297

Work inprogress ... 4(),195 32,681

Finished coods .o 0 273.868 286,254
4 ; :

Totals ..o 5408,563  §380.232
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NOTE 7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following:

g

June 30, Estimated
{Atnaanis in thousamnds) 2008 2007 Life
Land . o e 8 64 S 71 -
Building and building improvemenrs ... .0 00 0L 886 930 40
Leasehold improvemenmts ... o ool 9.383 7,366 2 —15
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles .. .. .. 11,939 10,158 5 — 14
Computer equipment and software .. ... . o L 21,387 18,225 3 =5
Counters and trade fixtures ... ... . . . 48,240 41,592 3 -5
Toolsandmolds ... ... .. o 15,333 11,650 1 -3

107,232 90,042
Less accumulated depreciation ... oo o oo o oL (05,364} (53,580)
41.808 36,462

Projects inprogress . .......... ... L il 10,280 6,009
Property and equipment, net . ... oo oo $ 52,148 § 42,471

Depreciation expense for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was $15.3 million,
$13.4 million and $12.6 million, respectively. At June 30, 2008, property and equipment under
capital leases was approximately $4.2 million, net, and consist of computer equipment and software.

NOTE 8. Exclusive Brand Licenses, Trademarks and Intangibles, Net

The following sunmmarizes the cost basis amortization and weighted average estimated life
associated with the Compuny’s intangible assets:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Estimated Estimated
{Amounts in thousards) June 30, 2008 Life June 30, 2007 Life
Elizabeth Arden brand vademarks ... .. ..., 0. $122.415  Indefinite  $122,.415  Indefinite
Exclusive brand licenses and related
trademarks .. ... L L L 87.358 17 87.131 17
Exclusive brand trademarks ......... ... ... 42,668 9 42,230 8
Other imangibles™m ... ... ... L 20,489 11 20,489 11
Goodwill® ... ... .. ... 20,721  Indefinite 15.287  Indefinite
Exclusive brand licenses, trademarks and
intangibles, gross ........ ... . oo 0L 293,651 287,552
Accurnulated amortization:
Exclusive brand licenses and related
trademarks ... ... ... o L (33,9607) (28.800)
Exclusive brand trademarks .. ... .. .. (34,457) (31,885)
Other intangibles ..................... {3,974) (2,250)
Exclusive brand licenses, trademarks and
intangibles, net ... ... oL $221,253 $224 611

(1) Primarily consists of customer relationships, customer lists and non-compete agreements.

(2) The $5.4 million increase from the vear ended June 30, 2007 10 June 30, 2008 is due to the
satisfaction of the conditions for the pavient of the second instullment of the contingent
consideration relating to the acquisition of certain assets comprising the fragrance business of
Sovereign Sales, LLC (*Sovereign Sales™). See Notes 11 and 12. The emire amount of the
goodwill relates 1o the North America Fragrance segment.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

The Company has determined that the Elizabeth Arden irademarks have indefinite useful lives
as cash flows from the use of the trademarks are expected 1o be gencrated indefinitely. During the
quarter ended June 30, 2008, the Company performed its annual impairment testing ol these assets
with the assistance of a third party valuation firm and also performed its annual impainnent test for
goodwill. The analvsis and assessments of these assets indicated that no itmpairment adjustment was
required.

Amortization expense for the vears ended fune 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was $9.5 million,
S11.1 million, and $9.5 mllhml '(,:pm,imlv Amortization expense, based on currenn facts and
circnmstances, for fiscal vears (‘INllll" June 30, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is expected 1o he
§9.0 million, $8 7 mlllmn $6.8 IIII“I(]IL $4.9 million, and $4.5 million, respectively,

NOTE 9. Shori-Term Debit

The Company has a revolving bank crediv facility (the *Credit Facility™) with a syndicate of
banks, for which JPMorgan (h.m, Bank is the administrative agent, which generally provides for
I)(umwmga on a u:\.nlvulg hasis. In order 1o accommodate increased working capital requirements
associated with the growth of the Company's business, on July 21, 2008, the Credit Facility was
amended 1o increase its size from $250 million 1o 55%‘7“) I]ll”l(l!l. with a $7‘) million sub Timit for
letters of credit, Under the terms of the Credin Facility, as ainended by the July 2008 amendmen,
the Company may, at any time, increase the size of the Credit F lCIlII\' up (o $375 million without
entering into o formal amendment requiring the consent of all of the banks, subject 1o the
Company’s satisfaction of certain conditions. The Credit Facility expires in December 2012,

The Credit Facility ts guaranteed by all of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and is collateralized
by a first priority lien on all of the Company’s US.. Canada and Puerto Rico accounts receivahle
and U.S. inventory. Borrowings under the Credit qulnv are limited 10 85% of eligible accounts
receivable and 85% of the appraised net liquidation value of the Company's iu\'e‘nmr\' as
determined pursuant 10 the 1erms of the Credic Faciliny: provided, however, that pursuant to the
terms of the July 2008 amendment, from August 15 o Ot,lnhu 31 ol each vear the horrowing hase
is lvmpnranlv increased by $25 nullmn. Ilw “ompany’s obligations under the Credic F Llullly rank
senior to the Company’s 7%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 (the *7%% Senior
Subordinated Notes™).

The Credit Fucility has only one financial maimenance covenant, which is a debr service
coverage ratio that must be me iintained at not less than 1.1 1o 1 if ave rage borrowing base capaciy
declines to less than $25 wmillion ($35 million from December 1 lllmugh May dl). No financial
maintenance covenarm was applicable for 1he vear ended June 30, 2008, Under the 1erms of the
Credit Facility, the Company may pay dividends or repurchase Common Swock i the Company
maintains I)OII‘UWHI" base capacity of at feast $25 million from June 1 to November 30, and at least
$35 million from I)l:(,cml)el 1to 1\1.1}' 31, after making the applicable pavinent. The Credic Facility
restricts the Company from incurring additional non-trade indebtedness {other than refinuncings
amdl certain small amounts of indebiedness),

Borrowings under the credit portion of the Credit Facility bear imerest at a flonting rate bused
on the “Applicable Margin.® which is determined by reference to a specific financial ratio. Av the
Company’s option, the Applicable Margin imay be applicd 10 either the London Interbank Offered
Rate (YLIBOR™) or the prime rate. The reference ratio for determining the Applicable Margin is a
debi service coverage ratio. The Applicable Margin charged on LIBOR loans ranges from 1.00% to
1.75% and is 0% for prime rate Joans, except that the Applicable Margin on the first $25.0 million
of borrowings from August 15 10 October 15 of each vear, while the wmporary increase in the
Company’s borrowing base is in effect, is 1.00% higher. As of June 30, 2008, the Applicable Margin
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was 1.25% for LIBOR loans and 0% for prime rate loans. The commitment fee on the unused
portion of the Credit Facility is 0.25%. For the fiscal vears ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the
weighted average annual interest rate on borrowings under the Credic Facility was 6.1% and 7.1%,
respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company had $119.0 million in owstanding borrowings and
approximately $5.0 million in letters of credic omsianding under the Credit Faciliny, compared with
$97.6 million in oustanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at June 30, 2007, As of June 30,
2008, 1the Company had approximately $226.0 million of eligible accounts receivable and
inventories available as collateral under the Credit Facility and remaining borrowing availability of
$101.4 million. The Company classifies the Credit Facility as short-term debt on its balance sheet
because it expects 1o reduce outstanding borrowings over the next twelve months.

NOTE 10.  Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debr consisted of the following:

June 30,

{Amonnts in thousands) 2008 2007
7¥4% Senior Subordinated Notes due lanuary 2004 0000000000 $225.000 §225.000
Termination costs on interest rate swap, 06l . ... {1,919) (2.182)
Riviera Termi Note ... 1.876 2.837
Total debu. .o 224,957 225.055

Less: Current portion of long-termdebt ... o000 o 0L 1.261 1.125
Towal long-termodebt oo oo $223.696 $224.530

Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes.  In January 2001, the Company issued $100 million
aggregate principal amount of 11%% Senior Notes due 2011 (the “11%% Senior Notes™). A 1otal
of $151.2 million aggregare principal amount of 11%% Senior Notes were repurchased by ihe
Company in 2003 and 2004. On Febroary 1, 20006, the Company redeemed the remaining $8.8
mitlion aggregate principal amount of 11%1% Senior Notes Tor 39.3 niillion representing the
redemption price plus accrued interest. The Compiny wilized borrowings under the Credin Facility
to repurchase the remaining 11%% Senior Notes. As a result of the redemprion, the Company
incurred a pre-tux charge of approximately $0.8 million related 1o the early t:xl:inguisl!mmll of the
remaining 11%% Senior Notes during the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2000.

The following table lists all redemptions of 11%:% Senior Notes {and associated warranis 10

Che foll g table lists all redemp f11%% 8 Not ! ted 151
purchase Common Stock) daring the vear ended June 30, 2006, and the related linancial statement
clfect: (Amounis in thousands, exeept percentages)

Excess of

Write OIT
of or
Redemption Debi Principal Call Oifering Principal Totad
Dade Instrument Repurchased  Preminm Costs Repurchpased  Losstl
02/01/006 11%% 105.875% $8,802 8517 8241 ol — 5758

(1) Loss refers 10 debt extinguishment charges in the Company’s Consolidated Swatements of

Income.

In January 2004, the Company issucd $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7%%
Senior Subordinated Notes due January 2004, In February 2004, the Company entered into an
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inferest rate swap agreement o swap $50.0 million of the owtstanding 7%% Senior Subordinated
Notes to a {loating inicrest rare based on LIBOR. The swap agreement was scheduled ro mature in
February 2014 and was terminated March 16, 2006, As a result of this action, the Company
incurred termination costs of $2.5 million. The swap termination costs were recorded as a rednction
to long-term debt and will be amortized 10 imerest expense over the remaining life of the 7%
Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company had designated dhe swap agreemen as a fair value hedge.

The indentures pursuant to which the 7%% Senior Suberdinated Notes were issued (the
“Indentures™) provide thar such notes will he senior subordinated obligations of the Company. The
7%:% Sentor Subordinated Notes rank junior 10 all existing and future senior indebtedness of the
Company, including indebtedness under the Credit Facility and pari passu in vight of payinent o all
senior subordinated indebtedness of the Company. The Indentures generally permit the Company
{subject 1o the saislaction of a fixed charge coverage ratio and, in certain cases, also a net income
test) to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, purchase or redeem capital stock of the
Company, or redeem subordinated indebnedness. The identures gencrally limit the ability of the
Company 1v create liens, merge or wransfer or sell asse1s. The ndentures also provide that the
holders of the 7%:% Scnior Subordinated Notes have the option to require the Company to
repurchase their notes in the event of a change of control in the Company (as defined in the
Indentures).

In connection with the June 2006 acquisition (the “Riviera Acquisition”} of certain asseis
including inventory, accounts receivable and certain brand licenses, of Riviera Conceprs Ine.
(*Riviera™), the Company assuned a promissory note held by Riviera in the principal amount of
approximately $3.4 million (the “Riviera Term Note™). The Riviera Term Note bears interest at a
rate of 4.15% per anmium and is pavahle in six successive equal semi-annual isstallments beginning
on lanuary 15, 2007, The Riviera Term Note is subordinated o the Credit Faciliy and the 7%:%
Sentor Subordinared Notes.

At June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the estimated fair valne of the Company’s 7%% Senior
Subordinated Notes and the Riviera Term Note, as applicable, using available marker information
and interest rates was as follows:

June 30,

(Amaients in thoisands) 2008 2007
7%% Senior Subordinated Notes ... ..o o L £210,375  $226.969
Riviera Tert Note .. ... e i 8 1,876 § 2,848

The scheduled matrities and redemptions of long-term debt at hane 30, 2008 were as {ollows:

(Amaounts in thousands)

Year Ended June 30, Amount
00 . e e $ L2061
4 e 615
2000 . e e -
202 . ... e —
2003 . ........... e —
After 2013 ... .. e e e e 225,000
Total 0, e coe. $226,876

(1) Toral scheduled marorities does not include approximately 51.9 million of swap termination
costs that were recorded as a reduction (o long-term debt and are being amortized 10 interest
expense over the remaining life of the 7%% Senior Subordinated Notes,
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NOTE 11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has lease agreements for all of the real property it uses, and owns a small
manufacturing facility in South Afriea. The Company’s leased office facilides are located in
Miramar, Florida; Stamford, Connecticut; Bentonville, Arkansas; and New York, New York in the
United States, and in Australia, Austria, Canada, China, Denmark, Dubai, France, Germany, Ttaly,
New Zealand, Puerto Rico, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Spain, Switzerland, Taiwan and
the United Kingdom internationally. The Company also has leased distribudon facilities in Roanoke,
Virginia and Puerto Rico. The Company’s rent expense (or operating leases for the vears ended
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was $20.7 million, $17.0 million and $14.5 million, respectively.
The Company also leases distribuiion equipment, office and computer equipment, and vehicles. In
accordance with SFAS No. 13, dcconnting for Leases, the Company reviews all of its leases 10
determineg whether they qualify as operating or capital leases. As of June 30, 2008, the Company has
hoth operating and capital leases. Leaschold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the
lesser of the useful life of the asset or current lease term. The Company accounts for frec rent
periods and scheduled rent increases on a straight-line hasis over the lease twerm. Landlord
allowances and incentives are recorded as deferred remt and are amonized as a reduction to rent
expense over the lease term.

The Company’s aggregate mininmnn lease pavments under its operating and capital leases,

- [t v R ) . o .

purchase obligations and committnents under other long-term contractual obligations (other than
long-term debi) ac June 30, 2008, were as Tollows:

Othe
Interest Operating  Capital Purchase Lnn:,-::‘errm

{Amounts n thousands) Payments( Lmlses Leases  Obligations®  Obligations®® Total
2000 .o $17.502 316,463 82,096 $202.886 § 0.490 $245.443
2010 ... .. e 17.450 13,400 2,026 30,233 10,098 79,207
2000 .ol e 17.438 12,258 32 32,424 — 62,152
2002 .o 17,438 7,798 — 23.692 - 48,028
D003 o 17438 5474  — 19.937 — 42,849
and thereafter ... L. 7.205 5,816 — 70,000 — 83,081

Total ... N $94531 $61200 $4.154 $385.172  $16504  $561.660

(1) Consists ol interest at the rate of 7¥%% per annum on the $225 million aggregate principal
amount of 7%% Senior Subordinated Notes and interest at the rate of 4.15% per annum on the
Rivicra Term Note.

(2) Consists of purchase commmmitments for finished goods, raw materials, components, advertising,
promotional items, mininum rovalty guarantees, insurance, services pursnant. to legally hinding
obligations, including fixed or minimum obligations, and estimates of such obligations subject
o variable price provisions.

(3} Includes contingem consideration paid 10 Sovereign Sales in July 2008 of $5.3 million and
consideration potentially pavable to Riviera of $8.6 million. Sce Notes 11 and 12.

{(4) Excludes approximaiely $6.0 million of gross unrecognized tax henefits thai, if not realized,
would result in cash pavimems. The Company cannot currentdy estimate when, or if, the
pavments wilt be due. See Note 13,

In connection with the Riviera Acquisition, the Company entered imo a contingent perforinance
liahility to Riviera in the amount of 88.6 million. This contingent performance liability does not bear
interest, is recorded in “other liabilities™ on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and is
pavable in annuoal installments beginning July 31, 2007 and ending on July 31, 2009, provided that
certain net sales targets are achieved over the threc-vear period after the closing date on the licensed
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brands acquired in the Riviera Acquisition. I the 1argets for the first or second annual insialliments
are noi satisfied, such installmems may still be pavable, based on cumulative targets, in the
subsequent vear or vears, as the case may be, The targets for the first and second installment due on
Julv 31, 2007 and July 31, 2008, respectively, were not achieved. The contingent performance
liability was recorded as a result of the negative goodwill resulting from 1his aceuisition. See Note 12,

In connection with the Augusi 2006 acquisition of certain assets comprising the fragrance
business of Sovercign Sales, $12 million of the purchase price was in the form of contingem
consideration, the majority of which was to be paid in two installments over 1wo years from the date
of closing if certain financial targets and other conditions are satisfied. The conditions for the first
installment were satisfied, and the Company recognized a liability of $6.3 million in the
consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2007, The pavinent was made in September 2007, The
conditions for the second installinem were also satisfied, and accordingly, the Company recognized a
liability of $5.3 million in the consolidated balance shect ac June 30, 2008. The payment was made
in July 2008. The remaining $0.3 illion is due 10 he paid in September 2009 if certain financial
and other conditions are satisficd.

As of Tune 30, 2008, the Company had notional amounts of 63.3 million Euros and
38.2 million British pounds under foreign eonrrency contracis that expire between July 31, 2008 and
June 30, 2009, o reduce the exposure of the Company’s foreign subsidiary revenues to fluciuations
in currency rates. As of June 30, 2008, the Company had notional amouns of 10.1 million
Canadian dollars under foreign currency contracis that expire between September 30, 2008 and
Tune 30, 2009 to reduce the exposure of the Company’s Canadian subsidiary’s cost of sales 10
fluctuations in currency rates. The Company has designaied cach qualifving foreign currency
contract as a cash flow hedge. The gains and losses of these contracts will only be recognized in
earntings in the period in which the contracis expire. The realized loss, net of taxes, recognized
during the vear ended June 30, 2008 from the setddement of these contracts, was approximately $8.5
million. At June 30, 2008, the unrealized loss, net of taxes, associmied with these contracts of
approximately $9.5 million is included in accumulated other comprehensive {loss) income.

When appropriate, the Company also enters into amd settles foreign currency contracts for
Euros, British pounds and Canadian dollars to reduce the exposure of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries’ net balance sheets to fluciuations in currency rates. As of June 30, 2008, there were no
such forcign currency contracts omstanding. The realized loss, net of taxes, recognized from
contracts in place during the years ended fune 30, 2008 and 2007, was approximately $2.0 million
and $1.1 million, respectively.

In October 2005, the Company received a demand from a licensee of certain of the Company’s
patemts alleging the Company had breached the license agreement, indicating that it would not pay
any further rovalties and requesting that 1he Cmnpun_\' return up[‘n'nximmely 83 million in rovaliy
pavmems already made. In November 2006, the Campany filed a lawsuit against the licensee
seeking recovery of its damages for breach of contract. In April 2007, the licensee filed a
counterclaim for hreach of contrac, negligence, unjust enrichment and other related coums, and
also songht declaratory reliel that it was not obligated to make further rovalty payvments and was
entitled 10 recover approximately $3 million in rovalty payments already made plus interest. In April
2008, the Company setled its litigation with the licensee. Under the terms of 1he settlement; the
licensee agreed 1o pay the Company $540,000 in rovaliies in installments through June 2010, and
the Company agreed 10 provide the licensee with a fully-paid license 1o use one of 1he Company’s
patents for the duration of 1the patem,
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The Company is a party to a number of other legal actions, proceedings and claims. While any
action, proceeding or claim contains an element of uneertainty and it is possible that the Company’s
cash flows and results of operations in a particular quarter or vear could be materiallv affecied by
the impact of such actions, proceedings and claims, management of the Company believes that the
outcome of such actions, proceedings or claims will not have a marerial adverse cffect on the
Company’s husiness, prospeets, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

NOTE 12, Acquisitions

In June 2006, the Company acquired certain assets of Riviera, including inventory, accounts
receivable and certain brand licenses. The net purchase price was approximately $14.3 million and
was allocated as follows: $8.2 million for inventory, $1.8 million for accounts receivable, $0.5
million for prepaid, deferred and fixed assets, and &21.3 million for intangible assets, offser by
liabilities of $17.5 million (including the assumption of the Riviera Term Note in the principal
amount of approximately $3.4 million, of which $1.1 million has been paid as of June 30, 2008, o
contingent. performance liability of $8.6 million and other assumed liabilities). The contingent
performance liabilicy is pavable subject to the satisfaction of certain sales targets over ihe three-vear
period after the closing date and was recorded as a result of the negative goodwill resulting from this
acquisition. See Note 11, In addition to the contingent performance liability and liabilities assumed,
the Company paid $12.6 million in cash in counecrion with the acquisition.

In Angust. 2000, the Company acquired the fragrance business of Sovereign Sales. The assets

acquired m(lmlu d inventory and certain II]l.lll"]l)l(, assets. The net pur(,ha:c price consisted of

(i) .lppm\unalcl\' $90.2 million in cash {$87. 7Dm|llmn paid in cash at closing and approximately
$2.5 million in cash paid in five instathnents after the closing) and (i) $12.0 mlllmn in the form of
contingent consideration, the majority of which was pavable in two installments over two vears from
the date of closing if certain financial targets and other conditions were sausfied. The conditions (or
the first installment were sausfied, and the Company rtecognized a lability of $6.3 million in the
consolidated halance sheet ac June 30, 2007, The pavment was made in September 2007, The
conditions for the second installment were also satisfied, and accordingly, the Company recognized a
liability of $5.3 million in the consolidated balance sheet ar June 30, 2008. The payiment was made
in July 2008. The remaining $0.3 million is due to be paid in Seprember 2009 if certain financial
and other conditions are satisfied. See Note 11, The net purchase price was allocated as follows:
566.0 million fm inventory, $31.4 million for certuin intangible assers and goodwill, and $0.8
million of other assers, offset by approximately $1.0 million |)f assumed lease pavments and the
Services ugrt:c:mem. The (,nmpany will allocate the remaining contingent consideration to goodwill.

NOTE 13. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following for the fiscal vears ended June 30,

2008, 2007 and 20006.

Year Ended June 30,

{Amotnts in thousards) 2008 2007 2006
DOmEstiG oo e e $(12,927) § 7.553 $18.501
Foreign ..o e 34,302 37,2-3-3 25,574

Total income before income taxes ... .. . .. oo 8 21.435 $44.808 S44.075
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The components of the provision for income taxes for the liscal years ended June 30, 2008,
2007 and 2006, are as follows:

Year Ended June 330,

{Amonnts in thouscseds) 2008 2007 2006
Current income taxes
Federal ... S 133 % 448 § 325
Lo FY T 160 250 173
Foreign ... o 6,274 4.040 3.218
Towl current ... e S 0,567 $5.338 3 3,716
Delereed income taxes
Federal ... 5(+.065) § 367 § 5,792
o1 [T U AN (1.494) 877 1,219
Foreign . 520 802 Ho4
Towl delerred ... .. (5.033) 2,136 7.505
Total o e $ 1,534 $7.474 §11.281

At hime 30, 2008, tax provisions were not established on approximately $140 million of
andistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, since these earnings are decined 10 be permancily
reinvested. 16 in the futere these carnings are repatriated 1o the United States, or if the Company
determines such earnings will be remived in the foreseeable future, additional 1ax provisions may be
required. Pue o complexities in the tax laws and the assumptions that would have (o be made, itis
not practicable to estimate the amoums of income tax provisions that may he required.

Deferred tax assets relating 1o 1ax benefits of emplovee stock option awards have been reduced
to reflect exercises during the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2008, Some exercises resulted in ax
deductions in excess of previously recorded benefic based on the vption value at the time of gram
(Cwindlalls®). Pursnant 1o SFAS 123R, although the additional eax benefic for “windfalls” is
reflected in net operating 1ax loss carrviorwards, the additional tax henefit associated with the
windfalls is not recognized for financial statement purposes il the deduction reduces 1axes
pavable. Accordingly, since the wx beneliv does not reduce current 1axes pavable due 1o net
operating loss carrviorwards available, “windfall® gross 1ax benefits of $10.8 million arc not
reflected in deferred tax assets for net operating losses for the year cuded June 30, 2008. Onee the
Company is in a regular tax paving position, it will recognize this “windfall® through additional
paid-in capital.

The total income tax provision differs from the amount obtained by applying the statutary
federal income tax rare 1o income before income 1axes as follows:

Year Ended June 3.

2008 2007 2006

{mounts in thousands, except percentuges) Amount Rate Amaount Hate Amount Rate
Income 1ax provision at statwory rates ... $ 7,503 35.0% $15,683  35.0% S515,4206  35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefits .o (883) (4.1 800 1.8 797 1.8
Tax on foreign earnings at differcnt rates

from statwory rates ..o (5.307) (25.0) (7,002) (15.6) (5,605} (12.7)
Rescarch and developmentiax eredits - ... (208) (1.0) (1,985) (4.4 — —
Change in U.S. and Torcign valuation

allowance . ... .. o oo 139 07 (505)  (1.1) 598 1.4
Other oo 350 1.6 483 1.0 65 0.1

Toral .. $ 1,534 7.2% 8 7474 16.7% $11.281  25.6%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net x effects of temporary differences between the carrving
amounts of assets and liabilivies for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes plus operating loss carrvforwards. The 1ax effears of significant items comprising the
Company’s net deferred 1ax assets and liabilivies are as follows:

As of June 30,
{Amounts in thousands) 2008 2007
Deferred 1ax assets
Acerued eXpenSes ..o oL § 6,203 § 4,581
Stock-based compensation, inchiding SFAS 1238 ..., .. .. 0.516 5,324
Net operating loss carrviorwards o000 oo 10.574 9.373
INVentory .. 773 5.847
Comtingentnote ... i 3,388 3.388
Rescarch and development rax incentives, aliernative minimum
taxand othertaxcredits ... ... ... .. . L 4,456 3,918
Other ..o 3,002 1.744
Cross deferved tax assets .o . 8 42,020 $ 34,175
Deferred wax liabilitics
Accounts receivable _ ..o $ (1,053) § (632)
Iangible assets ..o oo o o (26.880) (24,282)
Other o (5,636)  (4,068)
Cross deferred wax liabilides ... ... .. ... ..., (33,509) (28,982)
Valuation alfowances ... ... o oo o oo (823) (697)
Towal net deferred taxassets ..o oL $ 7.628 § 4,490

The following table represents the classification of the Company’s net deferred ax assets and
liahilities:

June 30,

{Amounts in thousands) 2008 2007

Curreninet deferred tax assets .. ... i i e $14,785 % 17,427

Non-current net deferred tax Habilities™M ... . .. 0. . L. (7,157)  (12,931)
Total net deferredqaxassets ... ..o o o $ 7.628 S 4,490

(1) Non-current net deferved tax liabilities are included in deferred income taxes and other
liahilities in the Compﬂn_\"s consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007,

At June 30, 2008, the Company had United States federal net operating loss carrvforwards of
approximately $37 million that will begin 10 expire on June 30, 2024, The Company had state and
local net operating loss carrviorwards “of approximately $54 million that will begin to expire on

June 30, 2009. The Company believes that it will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the

net operating loss carrvliorwards belore they expire. o addition, the Company had acquired United
States federal net operating losses of which approximately $1.1 million are remaining and will begin
10 expire on lune 30, 2008. Due to certain limitations in the Internal Revenue Code, the Company
believes thad ic is more likely than not thar it will not be able to wilize a portion of these acquired
net operating losses, therefore, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance as of June 30,
2008, of approximately $0.2 million related o such acquired net operating loss carrvliorwards.
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At June 30, 2008, the Company had foreign net operating loss carrvforwards of approximarely
$6.6 million that will begin to expire on June 30, 2009. The Company’s ability to use forcign net
operating loss carrvlorwards is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income prior to
their expiration. However, due to the Company’s limited operating history in certain foreign
jurisdictions and the uncertainty of achieving sufficican profits to utilize foreign net operating loss
carrvforwards in these jurisdictions, as of Junc 30, 2008, the Company has recorded a valuation
allowance of approximaiely $0.7 million related to these foreign net operating loss carrylorwards.

In June 20006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribuie for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a 1ax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 requires that the Company recognize in its
consolidared financial statements the impact of a tax position if it is more likely than not thae snch
position will be sustained on audit based on its wechnical merits. The provisions of FIN 48 also
provide guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penaltics, accownting in interim
periods, and disclosure. Effective July 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48.

Prior to July 1, 2007, the Company recognized income tax accruals with respect to uncertain
tax positions based upon Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies {*SFAS 57). Under SFAS 5, the Company recorded a liability associated with an
uncertain tax position il the liabilicy was hoth probable and estimable,

The adoption of FIN 48 resulted in no change 10 the opening balance of the Company’s retained
earnings. The Company’s balance of unrecognized tax benefits ac July 1, 2007 was $5.3 million. As
a result of the adoption of FIN 48, however, $2.8 million relating 10 the Company’s uncertain tax
positions were reclassified from income taxes pavable 1o deferred taxes. At June 30, 2008, the total
amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $6.0 million. These unrecognized 1ax benefits could
favorably affect the effective tax rate in a futire period, if and to the extent recognized.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized 1ax benefits as of
June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Year Ended

{Amounts in thousands) June 30, 2008
Beginning balance ... ... .. S e 55,337
Additions based on tax positions related to the current vear ... ... 676
Additions for tax positions of prior vears ... .. S —
Reductions for tax positions of prior vears ... ... ... ... ... . ... Ceeea —
Reductions due 10 lapse of applicable statate of limitations . ... ... -
Gross balance at June 30,2008 . .............. e e 6,013
Interest and penalties . ........... .. S . 20
Ending balance ... ... ... .. e e e £6.033

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file income tax returns with federal, state and local
tax authorities within the United States. The Company also files tax returns for its international
affiliates in various foreign jurisdictions. The staute of limitations for the Company’s U.S. federal
tax return vears remains open for the fiscal vear ended January 31, 2004 and subsequent fiscal
vears. The Internal Revenue Service recenily completed its examination of the Company’s federal
income tax return for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2005, with no changes. The fiscal vear ended
January 31, 2003 and subsequent fiscal vears remain subject 10 examination for various state tax
jurisdictions. In addition, the Company has subsidiaries in various foreign jurisdictions that have
statutes of limitations generally ranging from one to ten vears. The fiscal vear ended January 31,
2002 and subsequent fiscal vears remain subject 1o examination for various forcign jurisdictions.
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The Company recoguizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest
expense and related penalries in the provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of
income, which is consistent with the recognition of these items in prior reporting periods.

The Company does not expect changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits 1o have a
siguificant impact on its results of operations over the next 12 months,

NOTE 14. Hepurchases of Common Stock

On November 2, 2005, the Board authorized the Company 1o implement a stock repurchase
program 1o repurchase up ro $40.0 million of Common Stock through March 31, 2007. On
November 2, 2006, the Board authorized the repurchase of an additional $40.0 million of Common
Stock under the terms ol the Company’s existing stock repurchase program and extended the werm
of the stock repurchase program from March 31, 2007 to November 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2008,
the Company had repurchased 2,273,038 shares of Common Stock on the openr market under the
stock repurchase program, at an average price of 318.18 per share, at a cost of approximately $41.3
million. including sales commissions. For the vear ended June 30, 2008, the Company repurchased
410,869 shares of Common Stock at an average price of $18.11 per share on the open market under
the stock repurchase program at a cost of $7.5 million, including sales commissions. The acquisition
of these shares by the Company was accounted for under the treasury method. For the three months
ended June 30, 2008, (he Company did not repurchase any shares of Common Stock.

NOTE 15. Stock Plans

At June 30, 2008, the Company had three active stock incentive plans, one for the benefit of
non-emplovee directors of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board™) (the “2004 Director
Plan™), and two for the benefit of eligible emplovecs and independent: contractors (the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan and the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan). In addition, as of June 30, 2008, stock options
granmed under the Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan and 1995 Non-Employee Director Plan were
still owtstanding. The 1995 Stock Option Plan has expired by its terms and no further grants of
options will occur under the 1995 Srock Option Plan. The 2004 Director Plan replaced the 1995
Nou-Emplovee Director Plan, and no further grants of stock options will occur under the 1995
Non-Emplovee Director Plan. All five plans were adopted by the Board and approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

At the Company’s 2007 annual meeting of sharcholders. the sharcholders of the Compuny
approved, at the recommendation of the Board. a 700,000 share increase in the nuinber of shares of
Common Stock available for grant under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2004 Incentive
Plan™). Accordingly, the total number of shares that may be subject to grants of awards under the
2004 Incentive Plan was increased ro 2,700,000 shares of Common Stock. The stock options
awarded under the 2004 Incentive Plan are exercisable at any time or in any installmenis as
determined by the compensation committee of the Board ar the time of grant and may be either
incentive or non-qualified stock options under the Internal Revenue Code, as determined by the
compensation commitice. The exercise price for stock option granis is equal 10 the closing price of
the Conunon Stock on the date of grant. At June 30, 2008, 888,292 shares of Conunon Stock
remained available for grant under the 2004 Incentive Plan.

The 2004 Dirccror Plan authorizes the Company to grant non-qualified stock options for up 1o
350,000 shares of Gomunorn Stock to non-eplovee direciors of the Company. Tach vear on the date
ol the annual meeting of the shareholders and provided that a sufficient nunber of shares remain
available under the 2004 Director Plan, there will automatically be granted 1o cach eligible director
who is re-elected to the Board an option 1o purchase 6,000 shares of Common Stock or such other
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amount as the Board determines based on a competitive review of comparable companies. Unless
service is terminated due o death, disability or retireinent in good standing after age 70, cach option
granted under the 2004 Director Plan on an annual sharcholders meeting dare will become
exercisable three vears from the date of grant if such person has comtinued 10 serve as a director
until thar date. No option may be exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the date of grant,
The exercise price will equal 1he closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant. At June 30,
2008, 227.000 shares of Cormmon Stock remained available for grant under the 2004 Director Plan.

For the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2000, share-based compensation cost charged
against income was $7.1 million, $8.2 million and $9.3 million, respectively. The tax henefit related
to 1he compensation cost charged to income for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 20006, was
approximately $0.5 million, $1.4 million and $2.4 million, respectively,

As of June 30, 2008, there were approximately $7.4 million of unrecognized compensation costs
related 10 non-vested  share-based arrangements gramed under the Company’s share-based
compensation plans. These costs are expected o be recognized over a weiglhved-average period of
approximately three years,

Stock Options Granted

On August 18, 2008, the Board granted o emplovees stock options for 294,600 shares of

Comumon Stock under the 2004 Incentive Plan, The stuck options are duc 1o vest in cqual thirds over
[ I

a three-vear period on dates thar are two business «davs after 1the Company’s financial resubis for
each of the fiscal vears ending June 30, 2009, 2010 and 2011, are publicly annowneed, hut only if
the person receiving the gram is stll emploved by the Company at the vime of vesting. The exercise
price of those stock options is $18.88 per share, which was the closing price of the Conmmon Siock
on the effective date of gram. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options gramed was
57.10 per share hased on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The options expire ten vears from
the date of grand.

Year Ended June 30, 2008, On Auguse 20, 2007, the Board gramed o emplovees stock
options for 347,150 shares of Common Stock under the 2004 Incentive Plan. The stock options are
due 10 vest in equal thirds over a three-vear period on dates that are two business davs after the
Company’s {inancial resulis for cach of the fiscal vears ending June 30, 2008, 2009 and 2010, are
publicly announced, but only if the person receiving the grant is siill emploved by the Company
the time of vesting. The exercise price of those stock options is $23.59 per share, which was the
closing price of the Common Stock on the effective date of grant. The weighted-average grant-date
fair value of options granted was $8.70 per share based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing maedel.
The options expire (en vears from the date of gram.

On Noventher 14, 2007, the date of the Company’s most recent annual ineeting, the Company
granted stock options for an aggregate of 30,000 shares of Common Stock to five non-emplovee
directers under the 2004 Divecior Plan and 6,000 shares of Common Stock 10 an emplovee dircctor
utler the 2004 Incentive Plan. All of the stoek options gramed on November 14, 2007, are
exercisable three years from the date of grant if such persons continue 10 serve as a director until
that date. The exercise price of these stock options is $24.31 per share, which was the closing price
of the Common Stock on he date of grant. The weighted-average grani-date fair value of the
options granted was $8.75 per share based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The options
expire ten vears from the duate of gran.
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Year Ended June 30, 2007, On August 21, 20006, the Board granted to emplovees stock
options for 316,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2004 Incentive Plan. The siock options are
due 1o vest in equal thinds over a three-vear period on the dates that are (wo business days afier the
Company’s financial results for cach of the fiscal vears ending June 30, 2007, 2008 and 2009, are
publicly announced, but only if the person receiving the grant is still emploved by the Company at
the time of vesting. The exercise price of those stock options is $15.00 per share, which was the
closing price of the Common Stack on the clfective date of grant. The weighted-average grant-date
fair value of options granted was $5.85 per share based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
The options expire ten veurs from the date of grant.

On November 15, 2000, the date of the Company’s most recent annual meeting, the Company
granted stock options for an aggregate of 30,000 shares of Common Stock 1o five non-emplovee
directors under the 2004 Director Plan, The stock options are cxercisable three vears from the Jate
of grant if such persons continue 10 serve as a director andl that date. The exercise price of 1hose
stock options is $18.45 per share, which was the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of
grant. The weighted-average grani-date fair value of the options granted was $7.18 per share based
on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The options expire ten vears from the date of grant.

On January 31, 2007, the Board granted stock options for an aggregate of 6,000 shares of
Common Stock 10 an employee director under the 2004 Incentive Plau. The stock options will
become exercisable on November 15, 2009 il the director continues 1o serve as a director uniil that
date. The exercise price of the stock options is $18.90 per share, which was the closing price of the
Common Stock on the date of granm. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of the options
granted was $7.39 per share based on the Black-Scholes oprion-pricing model. The aptions expire
ten vears from (he date of grant.

Year Ended June 30, 2006, On Auguse 10, 2005, the Board gramed 1o emplovees stock
options for approximately 419,700 shares o Common Siock under the 2004 Incemive Plan. The
stock options are due 10 vest over three vears in thirds on each succeeding vear from the date of
grani, assuming the person receiving the grant is emploved by the Company at the time of vesting.
The excrcise price of those stock oprions is $23.40 per share, which was the closing price of the
Common Stock on the date of grant. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted
was $8.79 per share based on ihe Black-Schioles option-pricing model. The options expire ten vears
from the date of grant.

On November 16, 2005, the Company granted stock options for an aggregate of 35,000 shares
of Common Stock to five non-emplovee directors under the 2004 Director Plan, which are
exercisable three vears from the date of granc if such persons continue to serve as a director on that
date. The exercise price of those stock options is $19.39 per share, which was the closing price of the
Conunon Stock on the date of gram. The weighted-average grant-dace fair value of options granted
was $7.32 per share based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing modet. The options expire ten years
from the date of grant.

Compensation expense recorded for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, resuliing
from siock opion grants to employees and directors of the Company amounted to approximately
$2.7 million, $2.9 million and $3.9 million, respectively.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The option activitics under the Company’s stock option plans are as follows:

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Beginning outstanding '
options ... 3.397.968 $15.31 3,366,469 $15.10 3,221,194 3$13.65
New gramis .. .......... 383,150 23.606 352,000 15.36 454,700 23.08
Exercised ............. (523.941) 13.03  (260,167) 1196 (278.081) 11.17
Canceled/Expired ... ... (65, 784) 18.88 (60,334) 1718 (31.344) 16.86
Lnding owstanding options .. 3,191,393 $160.59 3,397.908 $15.31 3,360,469 $15.10
Exercisable ar end of period .. 2,431,761 2,756,923 - 2,770,424
Weighted average fair value
per share of options granted
during the vear .......... 8 8.76 $ 5.99 S 8.67
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding Average Weighted  Excrcisable Average Weighted
as of Remuining  Average as of Remaining  Average
Range of June 30, Contractual  Exercise June 30, Contractual  Exercise
Exercise Price 2008 Life Price 2008 Lile Price
7.00 — 9.38 136,500 20 § 8.00 136,500 2.0 $ 8.00
9.39 — 19.54 1,968,700 4.2 $13.72 1,711,761 3.6 $13.36
19.55 — Over 1,086,193 7.3 $22.88 583,500 6.2 $22.27

3,191,393 5.2 $16.59 2,431,701 4.2 $15.20

The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amount by which the current market value of the
undertying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option. The intrinsic value of stock options
outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $4.5 million, $27.0 million and
$22.2 million, respectively. The total imrinsic value of stock options exercised during the vears
ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, based upon the average market price during the period, was
approximately $5.3 million, $2.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended June 30,
2008, 2007 and 20006, was estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Expected divideud vield ... ..., .. . .. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected price volmiliey .. ... ... . 32.7% 35% 35%
Risk-free interestrate .. ... ... .. ... .. 4,006 — 4.00% +.82 — 4.93% 4.03 — 4.39%
Expected life of options in vears ... ... .. 5 5 5

In February 2008, the Company accepied the tender of 120.861 shares of Common Stock at a
fair market value of $18.72 per share, representing a cost of approximately $2.3 million, as pavinent
for the exercise price of stock options cxercised by the Company’s chiel executive officer as
permitied under the 1995 Srock Option Plan and authorized by the compensation committec of the
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Board. The fair market value of the tendered shares was equal to the closing price of the Common
Stock on the date that the Company was given notice of the tender of slmres. The acquisition of
these shares by the Company was ace numm] for under the treasury imethod.

In Seprember 2007, the Company accepted the tender of 81,230 shares of Common Stock ar a
{air inarket value of $26 93 per share, representing a cost of approximately $2.2 million, as payment
for the exercise price of stwock options exercised by the Company’s chief executive officer as
permitted under the 1995 Swek Option Plan and authorized by the cumpensntion committee of the
Board, The fair market value of the tendered shares was f*qlmi to the closing price of the Comnmon
Srock on the date that the Company was given notice of the tender of shares and the tender of shares
was approved by the compensation committee of the Board. The acquisition of these shares by rhe
Company was accounted for under the treasury method.

Lmployee Stock Purchase Plan.  The Company currently has an Emplovee Stock Purchase
Plan (“ESPP*} under which emplovees in certain countries are permitted to deposit after tax funds
from their wages for purposes of purchasing Common Stock at a 15% discount from the lowest of
the closing price of the Common Stock at either the start of the contribution period or the end of the
contribution period. On May 30, 2008 and November 30, 2007, purchases of Common Stock
occurred under this plan for 69, 121 shares and 41 120 shmea. respectively. For the vears ended
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 9006 the Company l(‘(‘()l(l(‘(l costs associated with the ESPP of
dppunlmdlc]y $0 5 million, $0.4 million and $0.5 million, respectivelv. The next purchase under
the ESPP will be consummared on November 30, 2008.

Restricted Stock

Ou August 18, 2008, the Board granted to employees 117,800 shares of performance-based
restricted stock and 121,133 shares of service-based restricted stock. All or part of the performance-
hased restricted stock will vest on a date that is two husiness davs after the Company’s financial
results for fiscal 2011 are released to the public, but only if (i) the person receiving the grant is stll
cuiploved by the Company and (ii) the Company achieves a cumulative carnings per diluted share
target. The service-hased restricted stock will vest in equal thirds over a three-year period on a date
that is two business davs after the Company’s {inancial results for each of the fiscal years ending
June 30, 2009, 2010 and 2011, are publicly announced b only if the person is still emploved by
the Cowmpany at the time of vesting. The fair value of the restricted stock granted was based on the
closing price of the Common Stock on the dare of grant. The restricted stock is recorded
additional paid-in capital in sharcholders’ equity as amortization occurs over the three-year vesting
period.

Year Ended June 30, 2005, On August 20, 2007, the Board granted to emplovees 68,700
shares of performance-based resiricted stock and 80,300 shares of service-based restricted stock. All
or part of the performance-hased restricred stock will vest on a dare thac is two business days after
the Company’s financial results for fiscal 2010 are released ro the public, but only if (i) the person
receiving the grant is still employed by the Company and {ii) the Company achieves a cumulative
earnings per diluted share target. The service-based restricted stock will vest in equal thirds over a
three-vear period on a date that is two business days after the Company’s financial results for each
of the fiscal vears ending June 30, 2008, 2009 and 2010, are publicly ammounced but only if the
person is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting. The fair value of the restricted stock
granted was based on the closing price of the Common Stock ou the date of grant. The restricted
stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in sharveholders’” equity as amortization oceurs over the
three-vear vesting period.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Year Ended June 30. 2007. On August 21, 2006, the Board granted 10 cinplovees 138,675
shares of performance-hased restricted stock and 142,125 shares of service-hased restricted stock.
All or part of the perfornance-hased restricted stock will vest on the date that is 1wo business days
afier the Company’s financial resulis for fiscal 2009 are released to the public, but only if (i) the
person receiving the grant is still emploved by the Company and (i} the Company achicves a
cunulative carnings per diluted share targer. The service-based restricied stock will vest in equal
thirds over a three-vear period on the dates that are two business days after the Comprany’s financial
resulis for cach of the fiscal vears ending June 30, 2007, 2008 and 2009, are publicly announced,
but ouly if the person is stll emploved by the Company at the time of vesting, The air value of the
restricied stock granted was based on the closing price of the Comunon Stock on the date of granr,
The restricted stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in sharcholders’ equity as wnorization
vcears over the three-vear vesting period,

Year Ended June 30, 2006, On Mav 13, 2000, the Board authorized the grant 1o cinployees of

an aggregate of 45,556 shares of vestricted stock thar vested in full one vear from the date of grant.
The fair value of the resiricied siock gramed was based on the closing price of the Common Stock on
the date of grant. The resiricied stock was recorded as additional paid-in capital in shareholders®
equity as amortization aceurred over the one-vear vesting period using the graded vesting method,

On August 10, 2005, the Board gramed to emplovees 195,949 shares of performance-based
restricted stock, one thivd of which was scheduled 1o vest two vears from the daie of grant and the
remaining twa thirds of which was scheduled to vest three years from the date of grane if the
Company achieved a 10% cumulative average annualized increase in earnings per share, excluding
any one-time or extraordinary events (as determined by the compensation committee of the Bourd),
over the relevant measurement periods. The Tair value of the restricted stock granted was based on
the closing price of the Conunon Stock on the date of grant, The restricted stock was recorded us
additional paild-in capital in shureholders’ equity as amortization oceurs over the two- and three-
vear vesting periods using the graded vesting method. The Company did not achieve a 10%
cumulative average anmmalized increase in carnings per share over the measuremoent periods of
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2007 or July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008, During fiscal 2006, the
Company determined that it was not probable thac dhis performance-hased restricted stock grant
would vest. As a resuli, the Company did not record compensation expense in the vears ended
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2000, refated to this award, and chis award has heen forfvited.

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock activity for the vear ended June 30. 2008, is
presented helow:

Weighted

Average

Grant-
Shares  Dade Fair

Restricted Stock ()ny Value
Non-vested ar July 1, 2007 ... .. e e e 921 $18.82
Granted ... ... .. ... .. P 149 $23.59
Vested ... . o L, e e e (104) 8187
Forfeited ... ... . ... ... D e e (100)  $21.57
Now-vested at June 30, 2008 . .. .. ... .. . L 866 $19.34

In March 2005, the Company granted 1o emplovees 4$10.800 shares of marker-based restricted
stock ("MBRS™). As a result of snch approval, the Company issned 410,800 shares of MBRS. The
MBRS will only vest il the Company’s total sharcholder return surpasses the wtal shareholder return
ol the Russell 2000 lndex over o three, four, five or six-vear period from the date of grane, in which
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case the MBRS will vest at that time. As of June 30, 2008, the MBRS had 1ot vested. Upon adoption
ol SFAS 123R on Julv 1, 2005, the Company revalued the MBRS using a Monte Carlo simulation
model using the assumptions presented below:

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2005

Expecied dividend vield ..o oo oo o oo oo 0.00%
Expected price volmility ..o oo o o o +0.00%
Risk-free interest rate .. ... 3.72%
Derived service periodinyvears oo oo o oo 3

Compensation expense for the vears ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 20006, resulting from
restricted stock grams (o emplovees of the Company, amounted to approximuely $3.9 million, $4.9
million and $5.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 16.  Quarterly Daia (Unaudited)

Condensed  consolidated  quarterly and  interim  information is as follows: (dmounts in
thousands, cxcept per share data)

Fiscal Quarter Ended

June 30, March 31,  December 31, September 30,

2008 2008 2007 2007
Netsales ... ... i $236.280 $210,554  $422 444 $271,789
Grossprofit......... ..o oo i 90,124 90,754 178.860 106,381
(Loss) income from operations ............. {13,666) 1,452 53,289 7.955
Net (loss) income . ... o oL (10.435) (3.812) 33.799 350
(Loss) earnings per common share:
Basic ... .. . $ (038§ (014 3 120 $ 0.01
Dilated ... $ (038 % (014) § 115 $ 0
Fiscal Quarter Ended
June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30,
2007 207 2006 2006
Netsales ..o 0 oo $242.674 $219.223  $410,771 $254.808
Grossprofit .. ... ... ... .. . .l 105,661 08,479 157,954 99,225
Income from operations ... ... oo L oL 14,783 10,347 43,282 5,594
Netincome (loss) ... ... .. ... .. ... 9.6.34 3,157 25.850 (1,313)
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic ... ... § 03 § 011§ 094 $  (0.05)
Dilated ..o § 033 8 o011 8 091 §  (0.05)

NOTE 17. Condensed Consolidating Finaneial Informaition

The following condensed financial statements as of June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, and for
the vears ended Tune 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, show the consolidated finuncial statements of the
Company, and, in separate {inancial statements, the financial statements of those subsidiaries that
are: guarantors of the 7%% Senior Subordinated Notes, plus, in each case, the financial statcments
of non-guarantor entittes, elimination adjustments and the consolidated total. The Company’s
subsidiaries, DF Enterprises, luc., FD Management, Inc., Elizabeth Arden International Holding,
[ne., Elizabeth Arden (Financing). Inc., RDEN Management, Inc. and Elizabeth Arden Travel Retail,
Ine., are guarantors of the 7¥i% Senior Subordinated Notes. Equity income of the guarantor
substdiaries is included in other expense (income), net. All subsidiaries listed in this note are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company and their guarantees are joint and several, full and
unconditional, All information presented is in thousands.
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Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2008

T%% Senior
Subordinated

Non- Notes
Company Guarantors  Guarantors  Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Current Assers:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... ... $ 3487 § 22801 § 108 § — 8 26,396
Accounts receivable, net ... 121,489 95957 - — 217,446
[aventories .............. ... ..., 310,912 97.651 — — 408,563
Intercompany receivable ... ... 52,555 203515 274,285 (530,355) —
Deferred income taxes .. ... ... .. 15,186 (401) — — 14,785
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . 9.430 15.032 - 139 24,607
Totwal current ussets .. .......... 513,005 434555 274,393 (530.216) 691,797
Property and eeuipment, net ... ... 34.209 17.879 - — 52,148
Othter Assets:
Invesunent in subsidiaries .. ... .. .. 295,404 — 9.136 (304,540) -
Exclusive brand licenses, trademarks
and intangibles, net ... ... 60,517 7.404 153,272 — 221,253
Debt financing costs, net ... +,952 — — — 4,052
Other ... ... . oo o ol 12,235 (11.385) 11 (277) 584
Total other assets ............. 373,108 (3,921} 162,419 (304.817) 226,789
Total assets .................. $920,442 3448.513 $430,812  $(835.033) $970,734
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Shor-termdebt . ... .. . . ... 5119000 $ - 8 - 3 — 5119000
Aceounts pavable—wade ..o 0. 147.971 22.469 - - 170,440
Imtercompany pavable . ... ... oL 35,288 2063445 240,573 {539.300) -
Other pavables and accrued
EXPENSES . oot 47,352 47,770 81 30 095,233
Current portion of long-term debt .. 1,201 - - - 1.261
Total current liabilities ... .. .. 350,872 333,684  240.054 (539.276) 385.934
Long-termmdebt . ... . ... L. 223,696 — — - 223,096
Deferred income taxes and other
liabilices .. .................... 9.273 4,505 11,078 (353) 24,503
Total liabilities ............... 583.841 338,189 251,732 (539,629} 634,133
Sharcholders’ Equity
Commonstock .. ... ........... .. 312 — — - 312
Additional paid-in capital ... 0oL 280,973 9136 197411 (200,547) 280,973
Retained earnings (accumulated
deficit) ... oo 105,576 105,106 (12,331) (92.835) 105,576
Treasurystock .. ... ... L (45,768) - — — (45,768)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) ....... ... ..., (4,492)  (3,978) — 3.978 {4,492}
Toral sharcholders” cquity .. ... .. 336,601 110,324 185,080 (295.404) 336,601
Total liabilities and shareholders’®
EQUILY oo $920.442 3448513 $436.812  $(835,033) $970.734
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Balance Shecet

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalems ... ... ..
Accounts receivable, net .. ... ... ...
Inventories ... .. .. ... ... ... . ...
[ntcreompany receivable ... ...
Deferred income taxes ... ... ... ..
Prepaid expenses and other asscts ..

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net . ... ...
Other Assets:
Investinent in subsidiaries .. ..., ..
Lxclusive brand licenses, trademarks
and intangibles, net ..o oL
Delu financing costs, net

Other. ... . o

Total otherassets ... .o .o . ..

Totalassets ..o oo o

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Short-term debt ... ... .
Accouts pavable—wrade ..o oL
Intercompany pavable ..., ..
Other pavables and acerued
EXPENSES .ottt
Current portion of long-term debt ...

Total cuwrrent liabilities . ... ......

Long-term debt
Delerred income 1axes and other
liabilities .. ... .. ... ... .....

Total iabitivies . ...............

Sharcholders” Equity
Juaty

Commonstock ... .. ... ..
Additonal paid-in capial ... ...
Retained earnings (accumulated
deficit) ...
Treasurystock ... o
Accumulated other comprehensive
ICOIE ..o
Total shavcholders’ equity . ... ...

Total liahilities anl shareholders®
equUIIY L L.

As of June 30, 2007

Company

Non-
Guarantors

7%% Senior
Subordinated

Notes

Guarantors

Eliminations

Total

$ 7.274

$ 23,001

8 8

g —

$ 30,287

116,360 98,612 - — 214,972
291,536 88.696 — — 380,232
66,931 137,561 287,063  (491,555) —
18.221 (794) - - 17,427
9,611 13.003 — 61 22,675
509.937 360,079 287,071  (491,494) 665,593
25,445 17,026 — — 42,471
293,357 - 9,136 (302,493) -
60,404 8,332 155,785 — 224611
5,777 — — — 5.777
4525 {3.830) — 28 723
364.153 4,502 164,921 {302,465) 231.111
$899.535 $381,607 $451,992  $(793,959) $939.175
8 97.640 S - 5 - 3 —  § 97640
161,188 19,344 - - 180.532
33,901 220.747 246,180  (500,828) —
45,605 42,204 197 35 88,131
1,125 — — - 1,195
339.459 282,385 246,377 (500,793) 367,428
224,530 - - — 224530
14,619 4,062 7.418 191 26,290
578,608 286447 253,795  (500,602) 618,248
305 - — - 305
265,245 9136 217.015  (226.,151) 265,245
85,675 81946  (18.818) (63.128) 85,675
(33.879) - - - (33,879)
3,581 4,078 - (4,078) 3,581
320,927 95,160 198,197 (293,357) 320927
$899.535 $381.607 $451.992  $(793,959) $939,175




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Statement of Income

Netsales ... o ..
Costofsales .................

Grossprofic ... ... .. ..

Selling, general and
g2

administrative costs .. ..... ..
Depreciation and amortization . .

Income (loss) from vperations . ..

Other expense (income):

Interest expense (income) ...

Other ..................

Income before income taxes .. ..

(Benefit from) provision for

mecometaxes ..............

Nlil income ... . ...

Statement of Income

Netsales ... .. ... ... ...
Costofsales . ................

Grossprofic .................

Selling, general and
Lokl o]

adminisirative costs .. .......
Pepreciation amd amortizaton ., .

Income fl'UllI U])c:rat‘ious .......

Other expense (income):

Interest expense (income) . ..

Other ... ... ... ... ...

Income before income taxes .. ..

(Benefit from) provision for

COME {AXeS . oo v v v ...

Netincome .................

Year Ended June 30, 2008

7 %1% Senior

Subordinated
Nan- Notes
Company  Guarantors  Guarantors  Eliminations Total
$685.351 $455.724  SI14776  $(14.776) $1,141,075
465,558 200,399 - — 674.957
219793 246,325 14,776 (14.776) 160,118
206,590 201,881  (1.375)  (14.776) 392,320
14522 7985 2.961 — 24 768
(1,319) 37,159 13,190 _ 49,030
97560 1602 (1,576) - 97,595
(39,862) 771 4618 34 473 _
10,074 34,786 10,148 (34.473) 21,435
(8.927) 6800 3,661 - 1.534
$ 19,901 $ 27,986 S 6487  $(34473) $ 19,901
Year Ended June 30, 2007
7 %1% Senior
Subardinated
Non- Notes
Company  Guaranters  Guarantwrs  Eliminations Total

$706,500 $420.967  S$14.919  $(14.919) $1,127.476
468,168 197,989 — ~ 666,157
238,341 222978 14919  (14919) 461,319
197,684 181,277 (1.247)  (14.919) 362,795
14.670 6,925 2914 — 24518
95978 34776 13.252 _ 74,006
20.156 1,692 (1,650) — 29,198
(38.761)  (4.318) 4,736 38,343 —
35583 37402 10,166 (38.343) 44,808
(1,731) 5,532 3,693 _ 7,474
$ 37334 5 31.870 S 6.473  $(38.343) $ 37334




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES T0O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Statement of Income

Year Ended June 30, 2006

7%1% Senior
Subordinated
Non- Notes

Company  Guuranters  Guarantors  Eliminations Total
Nevsales . ... ... ...... $576,633 $377.917  $13,731 $(13,731) $954,550
Costolsales ................... 308,397 182,081 - — 550,478
Grossprofic.................... 208.236 195.836 13,731 (13,731} 404,072
Selling, general and administrative
COSIS Lottt et 108,164 160,245 {972) (13.731) 313,706

Depreciation and amortization . . . .. 11,978 7.295 2.836 — 22.109
lncome from operations .. ...... .. 28,094 28.296 11,867 - 08,257
Other expense (income):

[nierest expense {(income) .. ... 23.408 1,747 (1.731) - 23,424

Debt extinguishment charge . . . 758 - — - 758

Other .o {33,192) 842 5.268 27.082
Income before income taxes ... .. .. 37120 25,707 8,330 (27,082) 44,075
Provision for income taxes ... ... .. 4,326 3.944 3,011 — 11.281
NEetineome .. ..o..ouiee e, $ 32,794 $ 21,763 § 5319 $(27.082) § 32.794




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30. 2008

T¥1% Senior

Subordinated
Non Notes
Company  Guaranters  Guaranters  Eliminations Totul
Operating activitics:
Net cash (used in) provided by
aperating activities ... ... ... S(10,187) 8 26,382 $(7,059) $(1.099) § 8,037
Investing activities:
Additions 10 property and
COQUIPIGNT .o (15,355) (6,800) — — (22,155)
Proceeds from disposals of
property and equipment ... .. - — — — —
Acquisition of licenses and other
ASSETS . oot (6.433) — - — (6.433)
Net cash used in investing
activities .. ... ... ... ... (21.788) (6,800) - — (28,588)
Financing activities:
Payvments on short-term debt . 21,360 — — — 21,360
Pavinents on long-term debe .. (1.227) — - — (1.227)
Repurchase of common stock .. (7.439) - - — (7.439)
Proceeds from the exercise of
stock options . ... ... ... 2.378 - — — 2,378
Praceeds from the issuance of
common stock under ESPP .. 1,719 — — — 1,719
Net change in intercompany
obligations . ....... ... ... 11,524 (19,782) 7.159 1,099 —
Net cash provided by (used in)
finanecing activities .. ...... .. .. 28315  (19,782) 7.159 1.099 10,791
Effect of exchunge rate changes on
cash and cash equivalems . ... ... (131) — — — (131)
Net decrease (increase) in cash and
cash equivalents . ... ... .. ... (3,791) (200} 100 — (3.891)
Cash and cash equivalents at
heginning of vear .............. 7.278 23,001 8 - 30,287
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
VEAL oot S 3487 § 22801 g 108 g — 8 20,396




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Confinued)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Company

T%1% Scnior
Subordinated
Notes
Guaraniors

Non

Guarantors Eliminations

Total

Operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating

activities ........ . ... 5 142063 $ 38435 § 7.003 $(975) $ 58,816
Investing activities:
Additions to property and
EqUIPIMENT .. .o (9,197) (9.834) — — (19,031)
Procecds from disposals of
property and equipment ... — — — — —
Acquisition of licenses and other
BSSGIS « o it (91,487) — — — (91.487)
Net cash used in tnvesting
activities ... (100,684) {9.834) — — {110,518)
Financing activities:
Pavinents on short-tern debt ... 57,640 — — — 57,640
Paviments on long-terin debt (538) — — — {538)
Repurchase of common stock . .. (8.540) (8,540)
Procecds from the exercise of
stock options . ... ... 3.112 — — — 3,112
Proceeds from the issuance of
common stock under ESPP 1,446 - - —_ 1,440
Net chunge in intercompany
obligations .. .. ... .. ... L. 35245 (29129)  (7,091) 975 -
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activivies .. ... .. 88,305 (29.129)  (7,091) 975 53,120
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalems ... . 403 — — — 403
Net inerease (deercase) in cash and
cash equivalents ... oL 2.347 (528) 2 — 1.821
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of vear ... ... .. 4,931 23,529 0O — 28.460
Cash and cash equivalents a1 end of
VAL ol $§ 7,278 §23000 0§ 8 s - $ 30,287




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30. 2006

7%4% Senior
Subordinated
Non Notes
Company  Guarantors  Guarantors

Eliminations

Total

Op(:mlzing acnvities:
Ner cash provided by (used in)
operating activities .. .. ... .. 8 73.871 S 14,715 $(21,757)

$(1.553)

$ 65,276

[nvesring activities:
Additions 1o property and

EGUIPIENL . .o (10,840)  (8,385) — — (19,225)
Proceeds from disposals of
property and cquipment ..., 9.945 - - - 9.945
Acquisition of licenses and other
BSBLIS . oot (11.472) (3.583) — — (15,055)
Net cash used in investing
activities .. ... ... ... L. (12,307)  (11,908) — - (24.335)
Financing activities:
Pavments on short-tern debt (7.700) - - — {7.700)
Pavments on long-term debn . (9.321) - — — (9.321)
Repurchase of common stock .. (25,339) - — — (25,339)
Proceeds from the exercise of
stock opnions ... ... 3,112 - - — 3,112
Procecds from the issnance of
common stock under ESPP 1,604 - - - 1.664
Net «;lmngt: in intercompany
obligations . ...... .. .. .. (25.192) 1.919 21,720 1.553 —
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities ... .. {62,776) 1.919 21,720 1,557 (37.584)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents ... .. .. (207) — - — (207}
Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalenis ... .o oo 0L (1,479) 4,660 (37) - 3,150
Cash and cash equivalems m
beginning of vear ... .o oL 0,410 18,803 43 - 25316

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

VEAD e 3 4,931 $25520 § O

$ 28.400




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

NOTE 18. Segment Data and Related Information

Reportable operating segments, as defined by SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information, include components of an enterprise about which separate
financial infornation is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker
(the “Chief Executive™) in deciding how 0 allocate resources and in assessing performance. As a
result of the similaritics in the procurement, marketing and distribution processes for all of the
Company’s products, much of the informadon provided in the consolidared financial starements is
similar 1o, or the same as. that reviewed on a regular basis by the Chief Executive.

The Company’s operations are organized into the following reportable segments:

*  North America Fragrance — The North America Fragrance segment sells fragrances to
depariment stores, mnass retailers and wholesalers in the United States, Canada and Puerto
Rico. This segment also sells the Company’s Elizabeth Arden products in prestige
department stores in Ganada and Puerto Rico, and to other selected retailers.

¢ International — The International segment sells the Company’s portfolio of owned and
licensed brands, including the Elizabeth Arden products, in approximately 90 countries
owside of North America through perfuneries, boutiques, department stores and travel
retail outlets worldwide,

¢ Other — The Other reportable segment sells the Company’s Elizabeth Arden products in
prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty salons,
which are owned and operated by an unrelated third party.

The Company’s segment reporting has been revised. Prior to June 30, 2008, the Company
reported its operations nnder one segment.

The Chiel Executive evaluates segment profit based upon operating income, which represents
earnings hefore income taxes, interest expense and depreciation and amortization charges. The
accounting policies for cach of the reportable segments are the sane as those deseribed in Note 1-
“General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” The assets and liabilities of
the Company are managed centrally and are reported internally in the same manner as the
consolidated financial statements; thus, no additional information regarding assets and liabilities of
the Company’s reportable segments is produced for the Chief Executive or included herein,




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Segment profit excludes depreciation and amortization, interest expense, deln extinguistunen
charges and unallocated corporate expenses. which are shown in the 1able reconciling segment profit
to consolidated income before income taxes. Included in unallocated corporate expenses are
(i) adjustments to climinate  intercompany  mark-up, (i) employee incentive costs, and
(i) restructuring charges. Unallocated corporate expenses for fiscal 2008 include $27.0 million of
expenses relared 1o the Company’s license ugreement for the Liz Claihorne fragrance brands, which
became effective in June 2008, including product discontinuation charges of $7.4 million. The
Company does not have intersegment sales.

{Amounts in Thousands} Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006
Sezment Net Sales:
North America Fragrance .. ... ... ... ... .. § 688,807 § 695,983 5565,197
International . ... +00.689 366,951 328,999
Other ... .. .. . 54,799 64,542 60.354
Total .o e e 1,144,295 $1.127.476 $954.550
Reconciliation:
Segment Net Sales .. ... ... ... o oo $1,144.295  $1,127,476  $954.550
Less:
Unallocated Sales Allowances ... ... .. 3,220 — —
NetSales .. . 1,141,075 1,127.476 954,550
Segment Profic:
North America Fragrance ... .. ..o ... $ 116,855 § 116,369 $101.439
loternational ... oL o 16,997 21,623 20,999
Other ... e (3,450) (1.088) (8.119)
Total ..o e 8§ 130,402 8§ 136,904 $114.319
Reconciliation:
Segment Profic ..o o oo 8 130,402 § 136,904 $5114,319
Less:
Depreciation and Amortizavion ..o o0 0oL 24,768 24518 22.109
Imterest Expense ... o 27.595 29.198 23.424
Debt Extinguishment oo - — 758
Unallocuted Corporate Expenses . ... ... 50.604M 38,380 23,953
Income Before Income Taxes .. .o S 21435 3 44,808 $ 44,075

(1) In May 2008, the Company entered into an exclusive long-1erm global licensing agreement for
the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands, which became effective on June 9, 2008. In connection with
this new license. the Company discontinued certain brands and products. Amounts shown
reflect $27.0 million of expenses, including $3.2 million of unallocared sales allowances, related
to the Liz Claiborne license agrecment.




ELIZABETH ARDEN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

During the vear ended June 30. 2008, the Company sold its products in approximately 90
cowtries owtside the United States through its imernational  affiliates and subsidiarics with
operations  headquartered in Geneva, Switzerland, and through third party disiributors. The
Company’s international operations are subject 10 certain risks, including political instability in

certain regions of the world and discases or other factors affecting customer purchasing patterns,

cconomic and political consequences of

terrorist attacks or the threat of such atracks and

Mictuations in forgign cxchange rates that could adversely affect its results of operations. See
liem 1A — “Risk Factors.™ The value of jnternational assets is affected by fluctuations in loreign
currency exchange rates. For a discussion of loreign currency translation, sce Note 1.

Year Ended June 30,

{elenonnts tn thonsards) 2008 2007 2006
Net sales:
United States ..o o § 685351 § 706,510 $570.633
United Kingdom ... ... o0 oo L. 85.710) 71,482 68,487
Foreign {other than United Kingdom) .. .. ... 370,014 349,484 309,430
Towal ... . $1.141,075 SI1.127.476  $954,550

Classes of similar products (net sales):

Fragrance ....... ... .. ......
Skinecare ... .. ..

Cosmetics . ..................

{Antounts in thousdards)

Long-lived asseis

United Seates() 0o L.
Forcign®) .. ... ... . ...

Total ... ... ... .. ...,

(1) Primarily exclusive brand licenses,

l!llllil)[[l(:l]l, nei.,

(2) Primarily property and equipment, net.

.......... $ 845394 § 851051 $716,635
.......... 217,628 200,631 168,962
.......... 78,053 75,794 68.953

.......... 51,141,075 $1.127.476  $954.550

June 30,
2008 2007
................... $251 814 $248.134
................... 97,123 25448
................... $278,937 §273.582

trademarks andd intangibles, ner, and property and




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND) PROCEDURES

The Company’s Chairman, President and Chiefl Executive Officer and the Company’s Executive
Vice Presidenr and Chief Financial Officer, who are the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, respectively, have evaluated the effectiveness and operation of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), as of the end of the period covered by this annual report (the
*Evaluation Dame™). Based upon such evaluation, they have concluded that, as of the Evaluation
Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are functioning effectively.

Muanagement’s report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term
is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f} under the Exchauge Act), is included in our Financial
Statements in lem 8 under the heading Report of Management — Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and is hereby incorporated by reference. The related report of our independent
registered public accounting firm is also included in our Financial Statements in Ttem 8 under the
heading fleport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during
the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affecied, or are likely 10 materially
affeet, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM98B. OTHER INFORMATION

Notu:.

PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have adopted a Supplemnental Code of Ethics for the Directors and Executive and Finance
Officers thar applies to our directors, our chief executive officer, our chief financial officer, and our
othier exccutive officers and finance officers. The full text of this Code of Ethics, as approved by our
board of directors, is published on owr website, at www.slizabetharden.com, under the section
“Corporate Info — Tnvesior Relatons — Gorporate Governance — Code of Ethics.” We intend 1o
disclose future amendments (0 and waivers of 1he provisions of this Code of Ethics on our website,

The other information required by this item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy
Statement. relating to 1the 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders o be filed within 120 days after the
close of our fiscal vear ended June 30, 2008 (1he proxy statement) and is incorporated herein by this
reference or is included in Part Lunder “Execmive Officers of the Company.™

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will he conrained in the proxy statement and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy stwement and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

S [m]s]am]s]
MR 000



ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statcment and is
incorporated hercin by this reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statement and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a . Financial Statements — The consolidated financial statemens, Report of Management anc

1. 1 i Stat 1 I't lidated fi | st . Report of Manag t and
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firmy are listed in the “lndex to
Financial Statements and Schedules™ on page 51 and included on pages 53 through 60.

o

Financial Statement Schedules -

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™) are cither not required under
the related instructions, are not applicable {and therefore have been omited), or the
required disclosures are contained in the financial statements included herein,

3. Exhibits {(including those incorporated by reference).

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company dated November 17,

2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed as part of the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter culed December 31, 2005 (Cornmission File No. 1-6370})).

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference 1o
Exhibit 3.2 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the transition period from
February 1, 2004 ro June 30, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

4.1 Indenture dated as of January 13, 2004, among the Company and FD Management. Ine.,
DF Enterprises, Inc., Elizabeth Arden International Holding, Inc., RDEN Managemem,
Inc., Elizabeth Arden (Financing), Inc., Elizabeth Arden Travel Retail, Inc., as
guarantors, and HSBC Bank USA, as trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended January 31, 2004 (Commission File
No. 1-6370}).

10.1 Secoud Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 24, 2002 among
the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent, Fleet National Bank, as
collateral agent, and the banks lisied on the signature pages thereto (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed as part of the Company’s Form 8-K dated December 30,
2002 (Cornmission File No. 1-6370)}.

10.2 First. Amendment to Second Amended and Restnied Credit Agreemem dated as of
Februarv 25, 2004, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative
h : : g pany, c :
agent, Fleew National Bank, as collateral agent, and the banks listed on the signature
pages thereto (incorporated hercin by reference to Exhibic 4.6 filed as part of the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quaricr ended Mav 1, 2004 (Commission File No.
prau) i v L

1-6370)).




Exhibit
Number

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.0

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Description

Second Amendment 1o Second Amended and Resiated Credit Agreement dated as of
June 2, 2004, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank. as administrative agent,
Fleer National Bank, as collateral agent, and the banks listed on the signatare pages
thereto (incorporated herein by reference o Exhibit 4.6 10 the Company’s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended May 1, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Third Amendment to Sccond Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
September 30, 2004, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative
agent, Fleet National Bank, as collateral agent, and the banks listed on the signature
pages thereto (incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 filed as purt of the
Companv’s Form 8-K dared October 1, 2004 {(Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Fourth Amendmenm to Second Amended and Restated Credic Agreement dated as of
November 2, 2005, among the Company, JPMourgan Chase Bank, as administrative
agent, Bank of America, N. A, {(successor in interesi by merger 10 Fleet National Bank),
as the collateral agent, and the banks listed on the signature pages thereto (incorporated
herein by reference o Exhibit 4.8 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended Sepretmber 30, 2005 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
August 11, 2006, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent,
Bank of America, N. A. (successor in interest by merger 1o Fleet National Bank), as the
collateral agent, and the bunks listed on the signature pages therero (incorporated herein
by reference 1o Exhibit 4.7 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended

June 30, 2006 (Commission File No.1-6370)).

Sixth Amendment 16 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
August 15, 2007, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent,
Bank of America, N. A. (successor in inerest by merger 1o Fleer National Bank), as the
collateral agent, and the banks listed on the signature pages thereto (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear

ended June 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Seventh Amendment 10 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
November 13, 2007, among the Company, IPMorgan Chase Bank, as adminisirative
agent, Bank of America, N. A. (successor in interest by merger 1o Fleet National Bank),
as the collateral agem, and the banks listed on the signature pages thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended December 31, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Eighth Amendment (o Second Amended amd Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
Julv 21, 2008, among the company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agem,
Bank of America, N. A. (successor in interest by merger to Fleet National Bank), as 1he
collateral agenr, and the banks listed on the signature pages thereto {incorporated hercin
by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Company’s Form 8-K dated July 21,
2008 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of January 29, 2001, made by the
Company and certain of i1 subsidiaries in favor of Fleer National Bank, as
administrative agetnt (incorporated herein by refercnce o Exhibit 4.5 filed as part of the

Company’s Form 8-K dated February 7. 2001 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Amended and Restared Deed of Lease doved as of Junuary 17, 2003, between the
Company and Liberty Property Limited Partmership {incorporated herein by referenced
to Exhibit 10.5 filed as o part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 26, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-6370)),




Exhibit

Number

10.12

10.13+

10. 14+

10.15+

10.16+

1017+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

1021+

10.23+

10.24+

Deseription

Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 11, 2006 between the Commpany and Sovereign
Sales, LLG (incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 10.22 filed as part of the
Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended June 30, 2000 (Commission File No. 1-
06370)).

2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated {incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Decewher 31, 2007 (Comunission File Ne. 1-6370)).

2004 Non-Emplovee Direcior Stock Option Plan, as amended {(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibic 10.2 filed as part of the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended Seprember 30, 2006 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

2000 Swock Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.14 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter eaded December 31,
2007 {(Commission File No. 1-6370)).

1995 Srock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 10.4
filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006
(Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Amended 2002 Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference 1o
Exhibit 10.5 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended June 30,
2006 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Nou-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated  herein by
reference to Exhibic 10.6 filed as part of the Company’s Forin 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the
Company’s Non-EEmplovee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference
1o Exhibit 10.8 filed as a part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 (Commission File No., 1-6370)).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the
Company's 1995 Swock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9
filed as a purt of the Company’s Fortn 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005
{Commission File No, 1-0370)).

Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the
Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan {(incorporated herein by reference 10 Exhibit 10.10
filed as a part of the Company’s Formn 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005
{Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the Company’s 2000
Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 filed as a pari of
the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 (Commission File
No. 1-6370)).

Form of Resiricted Stock Agreemens for service-based restricted stock awards (one-year
vesting) wnder the Company’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan {incorporated herein by
relerence 1o Exhibic 10.12 filed as o pare of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended March 31, 2005 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the performance-based restricied stock awards
under the Company’s 2000 Stock Incemive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibiv 10.13 filed as a part of 1he Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).




Exhibit
Number

10.25+

10.20+

10.28+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

12.0%
21.1*
23.1%
24.1%
31.1*
31.2*
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Description

Form of Stock Option Agrecment for stock option awards under the Company’s 2004
Non-Emplovee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated hierein by reference o Exhibit
10.14 filed as a part of the Company’s Form 10-Q lor the quarter ended March 31,
2005 {Conunission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for ihe market-hased restricted stock awards wnder
the Company’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan {(incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit
10.15 filed as a part of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2005 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the Company’s 2004
Stock Incentive Plan {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibic 10,19 filed as a part of
the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended June 30, 2005 (Commission File
No. 1-6370)).

Form of Restricied Stock  Agreement for the restricted stock awards under the
Company’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated hercin by reference 1o Exhibit
10.20 filed as a part of the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended June 30, 2005
(Commission File No. 1-6370)).

2005 Management Bonus Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by relerence to Exhibin
10,28 filed as pare of 1he Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31,

2007 {Commission File Na. 1-0370)).

2005 Performance Bonus Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit
10.29 filed as part of the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31,
2007 {Commission File No. 1-0370)).

Elizabeth Avden, Inc. Severance Policy {incorporated herein by refercnce 1o Exhibit
10.31 filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended June 30, 2007
(Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for service-hased restricted stock awards (three-
vear vesting period) wunder the Company’s 2000 Siock Incentive Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 filed as part of the Company's Form 10-K for the
vear ended June 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-6370)).

Ratio of carnings 10 fixed charges.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of PricewaterhonseCoopers LLP.

Power of Attorney (inchuled as pary of the signatures page).
Section 302 Cenification of Chiel Executive Officer.
Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

Section 906 Cerifications of the Chief Excecutive Officer and the Chiel Financial Officer.

+ Muanagement contract or compensatory plan or arvangement.
* Filed hercwith,

The exhibits w this annual repore are listed in the Exhibit Index located on pages 96 through
99. Llizabeth Arden, Inc. will furnish any or all of these exhibits upon the pavment of $.10 per page
($5.00 minitum). Any request for exhibits should be addressed o Investor Relations, Elizabech
Arden, Inc., 200 Park Avenue Sowmh, New York, NY 10003; should specify which exhibits are
desired: should state that the person making such request was a shareholder on Seprember 15, 2008
and should he accompanied by a remittance pavable to Elizabeth Arden. Ine. in the minimuen
amount of $5.00. Elizabeth Arden, Inc. will bill for any additional charge.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf hy the undersigned, thereumo duly
authorized, as of the 12t day of September 2008,

ELIZABETI ARDEN, INC.

Byv: /s/  E. Scorr BEarie
E. Scott Bentiie
Chairmun, President, Chief
Exccutive Officer and Dircctor
(Principal Executive Officer)

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Elizabelly Arden, Inc., hereby severally constitute
k. Scote Beattie and Stephen J. Smith, and each of them singly, onr true and lawful attorneys with
full power to them and each of them 1o sign for us, in our names in the capacities indicated below,
any and all amendments 1o this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission,

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed by the following persons on behalf of the regisirant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicared.

Signature Title Date
/s/  E.Scorr BEATTIE Chairman, President and Chief September 12, 2008
E. Scott Beaftie Fxecutive Officer and Direcior

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ STEPHEN |. SMITH Exccutive Vice President and Seprember 12, 2008
Stephen J. Smith Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)

/s/ FRED BERENS Director September 12, 2008

FFred Berens

/s/ MAURA |. CLARK Director Seprember 12, 2008
Maura J. Clark
fs/ RicHARD C. W, MAURAN Director Sepember 12, 2008

Richard C.W. Mauran

/s/  WILLIAM M. TATHAM Director September 12, 2008

William M. Tatham

/s/ 1. W. NEVIL THOMAS Director September 12, 2008

J.W. Nevil Thomas

/s/ PauL I. WesT Director September 12, 2008
Paul F. West




Designed and preduced by RR Donnslley, Miami, Florida

CORPORATE AND INVESTOR INFORMATION

Dircctors

I5. Scott. Beattic
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer
Elizabeth Arden, Inc.

Fred Berens{!eharperson (2)Chairperson
Managing Director - Investments
Wachovia Securities, Inc.

Maura ). Clark®®
President, Direct Energy Business
Direct Energy Services, LLC

Corporate Offices
2400 SW. 145 Avenue
Miramar, Florida 33027
954-364-6900

200 Park Avenue South
New York, New York 0003
212-261-1000

200 First Stamford Place
Stamford, Connecticut 06902
203-462-5700

Transfer Agen

and Registrar
American Stock Transfer
and Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038
800-937-5449

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

300 Madison Avenue

28, chemin de Joinville
New York, New York 10017

1216 Cointrin-Geneva
41-22-791-871 1

Richard CW. Mauran)chaipersen
Private Investor

Willizaan M. Tathamt2
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Nex| Systerns, Inc.

Common Stock
Information

Qur common stock is traded

on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market under the symbol “RDEN."

Investor Relations
For mvestor information,
J.W. Nevil Thomas@? including fitings with the
President and Chief Executive Officer Securities and Exchange
Nevcorp Commission and other financial Annual R‘Ieelillg

Paul West literature, please visit our website  Qur annual meeting of

Vice Chairman at ww.ellzabetharden.com shareholders will be held on
Elizabeth Arden, Inc. or wn"te to us at: November 12,2008 at [0:00 am.
Elizabeth Arden, Inc. local time, at our executive
Investor Relations offices located at:

200 Park Avenue South 2400 SwW. 145 Avenue

New York, NY 10003 Miramar, Florida 33027

(1) Audit Committee
{2) Compensation Committee
(3) Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Award Winning

2008 Holiday Shopping Ba

U
o =]

Designed by Chen Lin He, a student in the b
new Master of Arts major at the Fashion Institute "9 A ; A
of Technology (FIT), this award winning design
will be the featured shopping bag for the 2008
holiday season at the Elizabeth Arden Global by ~i¥ ~1 &
Flagship Store, 691 Sth Avenue in New York, '

The competition was conceived by Elizabeth
Arden and FIT as an opportunity for design -
students to execute real-world projects with ano
an iconic company. This partnership is one of DD :
many endeavors that represent Elizzbeth Arden's (=}
commitment to community involvernent ¢ 4 DD

and enrichment.
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% Flizabeth Arden
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